ANNUAL REPORT
2092038

YA S (@A FNeoe

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
(RTFTTH! (PG ITERTT FCATa g @B oo afew)






3 afsrawe

030-2028

aﬁa aﬁa‘vﬂ ANNUAL REPORT

3038 2023-2024

] obr-30
S{feBTETT #Hw 5
Brief Profile of Directors 12-16
FLAED ATCAST ¥a-db
BT TGS AR Ao e b
Notice of the 49 Annual General Meeting 20
c@rfea s 2o 23
(O 454 33-3¢
AETEEAE SrmGe AlanEe YAd eferand 38-99
Brief History of the Company 38
Chairman’s Message 39-40
C ontents Directors’ Report to the Shareholders 41-69
AR 9a-bo
Value Added Statement 8l
Audit Committee*s Report 82

Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s Report 83

Dividend Distribution Policy 84-85
Auditors” Report to the Shareholders 86-00
Statement of Financial Position 91
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 92
Comprehensive Income

Statement of Changes in Equity 93
Statement of Cash Flows 4
Notes to the Financial Statements 95-125

= T e @ PRGS o1



s afsrans

20I9-2038

N TEES! Ira *2wmE afe
T &l

o Emwmﬁ%@@s



ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

|esauag Asejanas .

"WZ0ZT 43GUIaIICD ] € JHUN JUALND SUIDUWAL 21DILf17430 S1Y],

03249y3 Punupaddp sabapaud puv siybu aya yv 03 pajargua s1 puv
saiuedwo?) paisi Apiqnd 4o uoneossy ysapejdueg fo Laquapy; Kivuipio up s

JALINTT ANVAWOD TIO VNNWVI

y3 Kf11422 07 51 S1Y,

JBIYINIY)) PIMIURY

pZ0Z ‘SZ Yo : ansst fo 310(] J1dvd z0z/vz0z-W> ON J2Y

- S3INVAINOD @31s11 A19118Nd 40 NOILYIDOSSY HSIAYIONVE

‘ JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

=P
™ (34



e aferamw

woe@-2o28

Bila] ety

Rad Koiald

Hmﬁwv.vrﬂam,ﬁru_ruhmm (10 L) miellsilie
Mipmi 58 )

(il s 2o ity il el [lite B
lhizhde e "lnlpber Blin B Sl | pBLG) " WELE

3@ Bllalle GiliBir]ible|| e

Bhlaby
Bladls Sl kel ke

T TEA @A ARG

fe=2 1
T
=—=2)

[ZD1b blleb] 8)(Rls [918) 69% ks Blls)le Gliste]l3ls]|Tle)




qife eferawns

2039-3028

[alafilc mm [alololo mm falolol?) mm

15q] 2lblp E22isbile 6 la2l5 LoV lo]lLslf

T TEA @A [ARBS

1
e
===




ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

EEET, LETTER
I OF
= TRANSMITTAL

To

All Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.

Chittagong Stock Exchange Litd.

Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd. (CDBL)

Dear Sir (s)
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June, 2024

We are pleased to send a soft copy of the Annual Report 2023-2024 of
Jamuna Oil Company Limited together with the Audited Financial
Statements comprising of Statement of Financial Position, Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash
Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June,
2024 along with notes thereto through email address of shareholders &

uploaded at company’s website www.jamunaoil.gov.bd for your kind
mformation and record.

Yours Sincerely

o
(Md. Masudul Islam)

Company Secretary

__m
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Brief Profile of Board of Directors
of

Jamuna Oil Company Ltd.

M A Akmall Hossain Azad, Chairman

M A Akmall Hossain Azad joined as Member (Senior Secretary) of the
Physical Infrastructure Division of the Planning Commission. Before
joining the Planning Commission, he served as the Senior Secretary in
the Ministry of Fisheries and Livestock, Health Services Division and
Medical Education and Family Welfare Division of the Ministry of
Health and Family Welfare. He also served Minmstry of Railways as
Senior Secretary. In his long career in Civil Service, he served as
Additional Secretary in the Ministry of Agriculture; Director General of
Family Planning and Chairman, Bangladesh Forest Industries
Development Corporation. An officer of the 1982 batch of Civil Service
(Adminmistration) Cadre has a checkered experience of working at
various levels of field administration and holding top level of secretarial
positions.

M A Akmall Hossain Azad was borm in Mymensingh city, He obtained
LLB Honours and LLM degrees from University of Dhaka. He later
completed a post-Graduate Diploma in Social Policy Development and
Management from the University of Manchester, UK. Moreover, under
the Ministry of Public Administration’s Managing at the Top-2 program,
he completed training on "Public Administration” from the Singapore
Civil Service College and on ‘Legislative Drafting” from the Law
Commission of Canada. Under the *Colombo Plan Schelarship® he
received the award of Best Trainer during training on international HRD
for Decentralized Governance: Need Assessment, Monitoring,
Evaluation and Information Generation Techniques from SDS, New
Delhi and Bangalore. India. He traveled to Singapore, UK. Canada,
India, China, the Philippines, Hong Kong, Thailand. USA, Malaysia and
Australia for work. His wife Sultana Munira Jahan taught Philosophy in
a college in Dhaka, Their only Child Dr. Aranii Mustabeen Azad is
working as a doctor in Newcastle, Australia.

(12 == | JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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Dr. Nurun Nahar Chowdhury, nde. Director

Dr. Nurun Nahar Chowdhury, nde, Additional Secretary to the
Government of Bangladesh, is currently working in the Energy and
Mineral Resources Division under the Ministry of Power, Energy and
Mineral Resources. She joined the civil service on 22 February 1998 as
a member of BCS Administration Cadre of 17th batch. She completed
her graduation and post-graduation in International Relations from
Dhaka University. She obtained her Post Graduate Diploma degree from
International Institute of Social Studies (ISS) in the Nederland's. She
obtained her second Masters and Doctoral degree in Education from
Monash University, Australia, She was awarded the National Defense
Course (NDC) degree from National Defense College, Bangladesh. She
has served at various capacities in the Ministry of Public Administration,
Ministry of Agriculture, Ministry of Defense. Bangladesh Civil Service
Administration Academy, National Institute of Local Government,
Department of Disaster Management, Directorate of primary Education
and in the field administration at Pabna, Feni and Cox's Bazar. In her
personal life, she is happily married to Dr. Mohammed Ziaul Haque and
blessed with one son and one daughter,

Ms. Kaosar Zahura, Independent Director

Ms. Kaosar Zahura, former joint secretary of the Government has recently joined
as independent director of Jamuna Oil Company limted’s board. She joined in
BCS admin cadre in 1982 regular batch. She has a vast knowledge and
experience of working in different sectors of Government. She started her career
as Asst. Commissioner. As Asst. Commissioner she was a Magistrate in
Chittagong and Upazilla Magistrate in Pirojpur and Metropolitan Magistrate in
Dhaka and Chattogram. As Senior Asst. Secretary she was in Ministry of
Information, Intermal Resource Division, Ministry of Woman Affairs and
Ministry of Jute. She also discharged her duties and responsibilities as Additional
Deputy Commissioner (Genl.) in Cumilla, as Deputy Commuissioner in Tangail,
as deputy secretary in Ministry of establishment and joint secretary in Ministry
of education. Besides, She was the Director General of National Academy for
planning and development and Managing Director of Jiban Bima Corporation,
Academically she graduated in Bachelor of Arts (BA) with honours and Master
of Arts (MA) in English from Dhaka University. In addition, she obtained
Masters of Arts (MA) in History form Dhaka University and MBA for NUB,
Dhaka. Moreover, she attended various training courses in the country and in
abroad. In foreign training, She attended training course on gender issues at
London University in London, Management at the Top Training (MATT) course
at university of Birmingham & Civil Servant College in UK. ‘International Jute
Fair in Cairo and atended Conference on [CT in Hanod, Vietnam.

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED _3_3 )
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Md. Shamsul Alam Bhuiyan

Mr. Md. Shamsul Alam Bhuivan is a former Joint Secretary of the government.
He had been a career of Bangladesh Civil Service for about 34 years in different
capacities such as Assistant Commissioner (Worked as UNO, Land, Upazila
Magistrate, Local Government Parishad ete. ), Additional Deputy Commissioner,
Director (Prime Minister Office), Deputy Commissioner { Kisoreganj), Secretary
(Bangladesh Forest Industrial Development Corporation), Director (Directorate
of Primary Education), Dieputy Secretary & Joint Secretary in the Expenditure
Management Wing of the Finance Division, Ministry of Finance. He visited
different countries like Saudi Arabia (KSA), Egypt, Bahrain, Malaysia, United
Arab Emirate, Burma, [taly, Greece, Turkey Kingdom. South Korea, Australia
for foreign training. capacity building and foreign ministry affairs [nter
Ministerial purpose. He served as Board Member of Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation and Board Member of National Tea Company Limited Under the
Ministry of Commerce. In his personal life, Mr, Md. Shamsul Alam is happily
married and proud father of two sons,

Kahir Mahmaood, Director

Mr. Kabir Mahmeod, Joint Secretary to the Government and Director
{Marketing) of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation has been a career Civil
Servant for 22 years in the different capacities, such as Assistant Commissioner,
Magistrate of the First Class, Assistant Commissioner (Land), Upazila Nirbahi
Officer. Senior Assistant Secretary of Internal Resource Division, Ministry of
Finance, Deputy Commissioner & District Magistrate of Borguna & Pabna,
Deputy Secretary of Ministry of Public Administration & Ministry of Land and
Tt Secretary of Local Governmenl Division. He is an officer of BCS
Administration Cadre & belongs to the 21* batch. He graduated in Mass
Communication & Journalism form University of Dhaka and also ordered MSc
in Climate Change Impact and Sustainability from Brunel University, UK. He
actively participated on various training courses, workshops and seminars at
home and abroad and travelled to various Countries including Australia, Turkey,
India, Thailand and Tnited Arab Emirates, Mr. Mahmood was born in Khilgaon,
Dhaka in 1977, In his personal life he is happily married and 15 the proud father
of four danghters.

maen| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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Ms. Anika Chowdhury, Director

M. Anika Chowdhury, grand doughier of the iconic and legendary Founder Chairman of
Sguare Group, late Mr. Samson H Chowdhury and daughter of Mr. Tapan Chowdhury,
Managing Director of Square Pharmaceuticals Lid, and former Adviser to the Caretaker
Government of Bangladesh 1n 2007, She received Master's Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Columbia, New York, USA. She is the Managing
Director of Square Health Limited, Director of Square Fashions Ld, and Mutual Trust Bank
PLC, Director {Business Development) of Square Pharmaceuticals Lid, and Management
Co-ordinator of Square Group the leading business conglomerate in Bangladesh.

Engr. Manzarey Khorshed Alam, Director

Engr. Manzarey Khorshed Alam was General Manager of Eastern Refimery
Limited, a subsidiary company of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation. He is an
electrical engineer graduated from Engineering College Chittagong standing st
class Istin 1981. He was a lecturer of Engineering College in the same year. Later,
he joined ERL as Engineer and retired from ERL in 2016 while he was serving as
General Manager, Presently;, he is serving few companies in Chatipgram as
technical adviser in the field of electrical and Petroleum sector. He is Chairman,
managing committee of Chittagong Ideal High School, Recently, he is appointed as
Director of Board of Jamuna Oil Co Lul. Also, he is nominated as board member of
Chittagong Development Authority (CDA). Formerly, he was Project Director of
IMI Industrial gas co., Techmical consultant of Delta LPG. He was elected
Chairman, vice Chairman of Engineers Institution, Chittagong. He was president of
Lions Club Of Chittagong Central. He visited many countries in the world for the
purpose of business, training and religious matter, His native village is Kachuai,
Patiya Chattogram & presently staying at Panchlaish, Chattogram,

Engr. Shaikh Al Amin, Director

Engr. Shaikh Al Amin is vice Prisident (HRD) of the Institution of Engineers,
Bangladesh (IEB). He was Assistant General Secretary, MED, IEB. Engr. Sheikh Al
Amin boasts over 40 vears of exiensive experience in policy development, education,
research, small and medium enterprises (SMEs), industry growth and business
management. He earned his Master of Science in Engmeering (M.Sc. Engg.) with a
focus on Industrial Production Engineering from BUET in 1997, and he completed his
Bachelor of Seience in Mechanical Engineering (B.Sc. Engg.) at KUET in 1982, In
nddition, he has undergone specialized trmning in Artificial Intelligence and Information
and Communication Technology (ICT) at the National Institute of Singapore in 2001,
along with additional training experiences in countries including China, Malaysia,
Smgapore, India, Nepal and Pakistan, as well as through Engmeering Staff’ College
Bangladesh (ESCB) and IEB initiatives. Throughout his career, he has held prominent
leadership positions, including Managing Director of the Planter Skill Development
Centre, Policy Rescarch and Studies Foundation, Orchid and Wadi Group, Chairman,
Bangla Power and in the private power generation and distribution sector, Genetic
Power. He has also served as Assistant General Manager at the SME Foundation,
Ministry of Industries, Regional Project Director, BMET, Ministry of Labor, Assistant
Enginger, Programmer, Bangladesh Small and Cottage Industries Corporation (BSCIC),
Ministry of Industries,
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Saleh Ahmed Khasru, Independent Director

Saleh Ahmed Khasru is a poet, reciter; essayist, and Executive of The United Exclusive.
His identity and merit are of multifaceted variety.He is a successful Agare in trade and
busmess, social wellare, polities and hierature. Recently, his impressive career expanded
with his appomtment as Independent Director at Jamuna Ol Company Limited (JOCL ).
Born on September 19, 1959, in Satkhira, Khulna, Khasru comes from a loving family, His
four mentionable books are Futeche Sandwa Maloti { poems), Madhabt Laler Sangser
{poems), Anole Tusar (Columns} and Bir Bilramer Sange : Ek Duopur Theke Arek Dhopur
{Memories of Liberation warh, Happily martied to Rumana Ahmed, Khasru has three
children: Musrat Ahmed MNishi, Tasma Ahmed Laly, and Armaan Ahmed Afndi. His eldest
gon=in=law 15 Major Ahmed Nibras Khon. A loving fipure 1 Sylhet, Khasro engaged in
social work and writes regularly in newspapers, serves as a patron and EC member of
Kendrio Muslim Sahitya Sangsad. and s Co-Chairman of Sylhet Mobile Patthagar. He is
also a life member of the Red Crescent Society and a former governing body member of
Blue Bird School & College. Affectionarely called "Rajnoitik Shilp" (Political Artist),
K hasru 1s active in both politics and literature, contnibuting to Bangladesh Betaar and other
media, A strong nationalist, he believes in Bangladesh first and prays for the prosperity of
Svlhet, which ke calls his final destination.

Mr. Mustafa Qudrat - I- Elahi, Managing Director

Mr. Mustafa Qudrat-I-Elahiis the Managing Director of Jamuna Oil Company
Limited (JOCL) since August 15, 2024, Prior to joining JOCL, he served as the
Senior General Manager (Commercial & Operations) at Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation (BPC).Mr. Mustafa Elahi joined BPC as an Assistant Manager in
1993, During his tenure, he held various key positions, including General Manager
{Planning and Development) and General Manager {Marketing and Distribution)
and other important portfolios. He represented BPC in numerous  bilateral
discussions and negotiations with National Oil Companies (NOCs) and
International Oil Companies (I0Cs) regarding the supply of petrofeum products to
ensure the country’s energy security.He has visited Singapore. Japan. China,
Malaysia, Indonesia. Vietnam, Thailand, India, Kuwait, the UAE, Qatar. France.
Germany and Austria as a member of BPC delegations. Additionally, he has
participated in various training courses both at home and abroad. Mr. Mustafa
Elahi was the founding Managing Director of Petroleum Transmission Company
PLC, a subsidiary of BPC, established in 2022 for transporting petroleum products
through pipelines across the countrv.Currently. he serves as a Director on the
Boards of Petroleum Transmission Company PLC. MJL Bangladesh PLC, Omera
Fuels Limited, Omera Petroleum Limited and Omera Cylinders Limited. My,
Mustafa Elahi completed his Bachelor (Honors) and Master’s degree in Public
Administration from the University of Chittagong.

maen| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

s JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

n“;_all {4 Subsidiary of Banzladesh Pevoleum Corparniion)
= TAMUNA BHARAN, AGRABAD {74,

Fen BOEX a4, CHATTORGRAM
Tel : =ER 02 33332000 8] =HE 02 333320183

NOTICE OF THE 49th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 49th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Jamuna Of] Company Limited will be
held by using the Digital Platform on Saturday, 25 February 2025 A1, 12 Falgun 1431 B.S at 430 PM. to transact the
Following husiness:

AGENDA
I, To confirm the proceedings and minutes of the 48th Annuval General Meeting held on 27 January 2024 AD, 13 Magh
1430 B.5;

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the vear ended on June 30, 2024,
together with the Auditors” Report and Directors’ Report thercon;

3. To approve the declaration of dividend for the vear ended on June 300, 2024:

4. To re-cleet Divectors of the Company in the vacaneies caused by the retirement of the Directors nominated by
Bangladesh Petrolewm Corporation (BPC) as per Articles of Association of the company and to approve appoiniment
ol independent direclor;

5. To appoint Joini-Auditors for the vear ended on June 30, 2025, and fo fix their remuneration;
6. To appoint practicing Professional Accountant/Seeretary for issuing Certificate regarding Compliance of Corporate
Governance Guideline to the sharcholders for the vear ended on June 30, 2023 and to fix their remunération and

7. Miscellancous, if any, with the permission of the Chair.,

By order of the Board

02 Magh. 1431 B.S
L6 Januwary, 2025 A.D
Agrabad, Chattogram,

. Masudul Islam)
Company Secretary

{

Notes:
. The Record Date wes 34 December 2024, The shureholders whose names appeared in CDBL Depository Register on the Record
[rate will be entitled to attend the AGM and receive the Dividend.

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the virtual Annual General Meeting inay appaint o proxy (o atténd and vote on histher
behall. In order to be effective, the Proxy Form duly signed and stmped must be received at joclshares @ pmail.eom not later than
Forty-eight hotrs before the mesting.

3 Shureholders wre requested to atténd the 49%h AGM through en oaline live portal. The link for the virtoal AGM is
hetps s jamunaoilagpm49 digitalag mibd. net

4, Shircholders will be able to submit their questionsfcomments and vote electronically from 72 howrs before commencemient of the
AGM and during the AGM. For logging into the system. the shareholders have to put their 16-digit Beneficiary Owmer iBO D
fumber and number of shares.

5 Purswant to the BSEC Notification No, BSEC/CMRRCD 20006 [3R208 Admim/S 1 dated June 24, 2008, solt copy of the Ammal
Report 2023-2024 will be sent to the Members' respective emall addresses as available in the BO account with CDBL, The
Aqinunl Report 2023-2024 will be availsble on the Company’s website al! Rttpafiiwww. jamunaoi | gov. bl

6, The concerned brokermpe houses & merchant bankers are requested 1o provide ox with wostatement with the detalls (shareholders
mame, BO D number, e-TIN number, gross dividend recervable, applicable tox rate and net dividend recetvable ) of their margm
loun holders who hold shares of the Company 45 on the Record Date, The brokerage houses & merchant bankers are alio
requested to provide the company with their bank account name, number, routing number etc. on or before Janwary 26, 2025,

{ ="
(20 == JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

.



3If&F eiferaw

woR9-2038

==
el

=
T SEE @ e

aroae Aefre Aoy

T e et e (cerebram) faste e veires wivarre g gt oo R e mifene o e
TE WAE | T WS SniEte AETEs e A4 @ @ Sw T |

Snb8 AE & (73) I TR e FTg S Ao 4 STad (0 [ e f1fFam arTe SR Biaos
(Feramaen) e ot ma oo 20 | Spad 0 el Welg % Qe SaeE ey (s, anees
% TEATeram) W0 saas (e 7 db, de9)) I07 “fmam Areme s Fhdes «frae w=ts e e e
NILTTEH TEMA FATTE TS WHZ T T 4T T TSI T 27 AL T WEEE AR | WEeew v
e, seqe wildrey ww e W a0 g e AT o) g agE] wee e e (orefa) | arefer
TR TERAETET 33-08-98 TI0ET &% WT-8/4y (4= IF) =l TEmd @ @R iR wewEny o gvnE
¥R (wo et aveed o) g «RwfTe wen ) yeae T ya T @ WIS sade (T dans) 47
Wi e sratfer A ol erEres e fme T we A e @fele o9 st b e
O i o frefee @, % SamiTe 399 so (w1 (G B aee feifis g ¢ (415) @il B | omasiene dhay
s fafeiln e w2 LXXXVILL (30 v Treea dpa Sy Qe oires ou1h) Siewas e 1) 97 o (7)
AT e ST @ TR TG 9 WA TR e S i S () o3 Mt e =
T EE yhb-l FET 4 EENE Ty A egiEme @rte Bt (wfEfRe) o7 v o v e
R o TR EE BT g | A (TG SO AT R T T S e Rfrde s
conhiferms wrefieparm gt Feblemd fome wm e e |

toot-Yoob FE TEET T (0F ¢.oo (Fb 6 UG EF R 39 F@ 4 &R @ Afriie e
Yo.oa I TR BAMS 1 T | ¥ 3¢-ob-2009 TRTE ¢ FTfns andvet MinDs @ e ol Mk
IS FHoMERS a5 B 91 99 SAHE T4 woo o0 @G SRTH BAME =50 @1 | *FTSE do-obr-1o0 4 TE0Y
S[FTHTT .00 (F1 DIEE @WF (079 330 909 “Ta0{4s goew 8¢.00 (@15 BEW Sare Fal 0 | AT COTEIeTT
FrATErT SWE WEETEE (e o ofEf 3o 00 B 09T 3 00, 00, 00l AT o wdf: yo g0 @l G
e ETECERE DGy ey Wiewn WW-UAE «F T U 5 s FRNSE e vim sie awse Hfame v
ob-03-300k SIHY SEFEs o 433 TUHe SAMF (A AEasg FH-7e 41 5 | *Fqe0s Faaad Haw
i e CoraTE W WA 34 WETe T T 3¢-09-303) AT WHE-E = T

fafeg W e car=em A FrawE FOR ST @R (AR 39 T wfRenfas 396 3o 83 @15 T
Tt =41 59, 71 2f6% do T AT 53,08.38 Loall (*ETE @ | TEWLT IrEmae (oiiera STATET @ AW
Fafermmsrardioera ferm TUTE Go ok T € 0. 53% |

GETE (HafRes qrEmEe ey wiee e aieet o9 e aeeeTe wg | owe) ey T s gT W
TEEEG FF | TG 24T FTET SO WEgS | @ure o fafen g 8 fewrin wiew w3k ofb wnefere faa
Wi I0ns |

ool LY BroeT BRYTT SqEE £ T o suft feren amnE | mmefes o7 fawmam ageflt B w3330
arEs, 2487 T AT TR, ave® uafifs feame, 0 oifew feme g9 ot e e waeeEaET w9
wifEitft Fhar g My Faafsene dreae Mt cniifemmeme w0y sEedrs e (5T elWT ST G |

T wfapTEE T TEEI W AN GE HfEsEe ow aee | AfeEe ahme 4w e R meee
FES TAAS, 3 T T0F AfAEE [@IC FEF WS INFE I AEF HYE T WA 28 @3 s T A
craraETEraaE comn Frfte = el wifde i «ifimme oo weaTRe ST wefEE o @ o wEEE
wifafrdtae far w0, 1 & E'T ma aeafre o

ST W o M BE, o< I @, WiEEm anciEne we, SRt e |

e e o RbeafH wAe (3T, a-, FIETW TEE, TRA-335¢ |

feefr FEEE ¢ FOUT, B, UFA 6@ 99|

ST ¢ GEUE, HTEET, BOATT
ferem vl et sl et womE
AR HFE P (IS e, T W 6 S, WHE ww aw i e A, Teeeed, e @ e

@mmmﬁﬁ@@s 21)



31fs aferamw

2o28-2038

”

Tefmen argafa wiEw

B LTy

CeATATEEEg,

YW WA (F AT 7 8T 9iEE HHET WeE SEETHAE e T | WY T9EE v e o 6
] WAL ShAad FANA TI IFEGTE TR I TR 43¢ 3038 L7 TR WE-TER MW 6 TN T
e faferfiet drn Serene e (R 3% W @9 WES U9-Sen | (18 A WEe e WL e
Farerlit 1 e BemART ©, ErE B8RS 3, a e cvgry tafe sIesa wrepe e Favy wre gt B
T WIGEE AEH (O | 2029-28 W WA FE ARANGT AT 6 T FAZ AAF LTS A
I D TUHATE A 4EUS (P7E Wi WS |

I oo wATE ow awh W ey e T wwE @ Shnse Taew e e e
CRTAT CATRIERTR 7 [@eem F g S4ties Saaly S ged S9miH AeE | (FeHes 2039-28 Y T
Mobd,en8 (A0 B ey faeem FEve oFn @l = sl A% T e 883 e @i O creifag S5
AT A AECE T doo.bro GG BT g coftite | ey faeel sifefeien vie crreoEn @ et ST
FreaiEReTE T (o9 FRERE T WS |

T SR W 2o GOTAE T wieeT e (que w9w) b wene e, 6T AU (IS S 2
WG T G A 0T T LT 20 T @ T (e F@on 20 TAT FE Fewne e wme =
Trars e e F1E oW 9TEE | I AR (T 43 960G oF ©F (4TS Yo A VU9 B FE SeEin

(2 T A @R B



q1fFs Aferame
2o8-3038
e e A T Ol e cerelRen gu S wffene Srgnny e 9% oy 99w ferTE oat @ Wy eEEE
TS (T TTa AT e @l | caTeiifeR T e o ST AGTETE S BONTH TR U WAfE #ewt
o7 CHBT ST, FUEE €SS MET T w2z e T s s, W F O9r TF #0w w-30%¢ 97
Ty o T | TeA o e @R e FremeEs e S Mo WETE W arEy
(T TR ST Sl GElE FERETT O Ty §iE urFae s U9 FEEel T513 AT BT
[T BT e | aergl feal rme Rviem et wsl ferem «fmem ariem slmaeE wewn 9
AT (- e efeTia e Gl T SR ABIE w1 G A | e cute wew gfew wen
24T FrFE FEToTnE (76 80,000 (WET 57 4T TewW SN T o oz = T | v e
¢.0oc (NOF B 4T TS OICE (FAICIE S8 &TT (< S[HE WE 1 SEH-5r GEY (89 Wiaae] MY merd
Y TF TF | A (FEE AT SR G S SHE WA GFEE AGn G T (6] FeE
Ferann @) aime | % S Srfer Jrames e e afefere e s 3% o

WA WA T DT GTEeTRE FR O AR eW Teeer A AR o | ARE (Tewe SR
s e | e wfee v el wlfiore aftarfe g3 Frot s et Steme | w3 @,
ceproetel Sfw Wity = arawifie s e wdn o, g9fE, Tey Wi wde WigEFEme Tad e | Wi
(= WS AT (4, 38 TOFE 3038 TACH TI IS (@A DT (89, W ¢ TE Eeriate 38T
WEFAGTAT 755 FNED TS ATeT SEE FEE |

#TABE +[n ] AT Gl WS SAEEE M AT | WA 2ove-38 W 99ET T @i
C=ETE &fE W 80,00 TEE FoETe wfavEm W T% o0 B4R seoT I (EF 2fE de oo TIET TE TR FEnE
ST 1T TS | T W @ T 203e-28 wd ez T, By, fefrew e wer @ 9y wel
(RTEIHITE 230,29 GG Brem e famams o girete wdtefeas Saue wame @1e0E |

Wi e w9, are, i e, Qe e stefimem (R, g e o soum
et a9 ST ChaTarERTEGE S edies e e Terfrew T geee wfy | @ wee A
fasTeragw, @rife aragem T, siedatr, faree, e Feslhe one eImss shem, v e
GFTHY AT & PhUTY 0F 4hY MaFTE T ST @ FECNEE S 4E S |

AT FETs e, A € AT ] T |

w

W
(e O ST TR TS )
st (e =iew)
(ST ST A
MBS SR InE T
s, fesm =6
T WA A e

Emmmﬁrﬁrﬁ@s 23)



I efferams

2039-3038

AT SCEE (@ FRee
85©Y IfFF Y= ST
“orrRTETEIETTE Trwe SffasTEE o e
femfirentas arsafee wrdy
IS R,
AR WS STRTEEHE SRARTEE,,

T S cEres e g vyl smuae et sfasten sifon hE cuTe WA T WS
TieE | Tavre wumas i s Rresey w@ras fefwom b 1o wames w61 wans | fElEee Jgamsm ar
ST SONHEEA AHEd Ao 939 SEiae wrewl ¢ qieawe |

TEFI WIET Sh58 AT HET 3w, shbra FEE FiEcElE ¢ aee 7 13 @9z IATGHEE W9 FIRIE GFEG0H
w2 A (FEFaf) FEe ameifes e oW (WRagn) ¢ TEEies wie aferewm W (TRameamed)
A SEEEE WA W e MR @7 o &, yo38 e e wd wuny FEifee e ey faad
& TET aferawe e 98 e @ ST S g 0 |

I oa:

T THreiele T3 40 | & ETTE AT T ¢ TR 201 P RS T DY SR (R Heae
AT g coE, e, RERM e go e e e a9 errene feidw arfe e 21 ) e
oL W & IROAITE FAIANES T & (FR e A wATEE v ¢ T ewped wawe @
BATE | ETETE (T WA ¢ie EreE we e d, e g anieiE ameEe w0 W |

AT =4 99 Tl Yo e Afdweny e Teras Tem T (EE | T @ SenEE g «fagiee s
fasamens reres oy wfefesie uremy @i sy R crm sy s crefEs e TEe | wE
grrenfa oo Frde TR onenE el fery g forere o Wil e SR O T Rem a9
favire Tesmwr wsunlE wg aege o Teur @ vt sor feres ¢ oty we feay sfmms e simemEe A
T | AT 9 WA (T (ST [y (FHEEE WA (TeE BIEAl ATAEE (ATNE | (e famres Feon 3w
T TG AGA TS| G FEUE HSE AT @Emmg ol @ faw W g e | @eaeie i b e
e, iy ¢ i 4w Tye = fEre @wesfa «in o siere saaer 3% srem g9 v wfirey
gferatrerers gaum el =g e cem gery efernfre 3fE e | m26 s LP Gas (Auto
oA8) OF HHE ST TOUTH (G @ WEA OF BT FEBIEH (T Ad | 9T ool Ao e b gee
T AR SR AT WA WOEE WA W (S0 (4 S Ao SeE WaIEe fiE | el e 4,
wWE Sleare « @ FEE e FeErenwE g9 ¢ dr, e gae aa«iE e wadl e e e
& FEH ATE (YT ST ST WS W 20

24 Emmﬁ@mﬁﬁfﬁﬁ



s eferame

2 oR9-2038
feorm =i
@I T A ATE e ¢ e Teras AR e s Sergres w4 wAn
3632-2038 3033-2039 (g¥1)/4f%
e il B G B TG 57 %
WG 3.0%.3%% 300 A (2,399) (2.5%)
TG 5,39 bog 3 80,933 (39,554) (z:03)
T ' Tansee | T 33,09y (38) (do.33)
i =l Maoovh | 8ecA0y | (aoque) | (buwd)
T S 2,549,540 235, bnlr {8,603 (%.08)
o 9Nt W 3 BN 3o - P
SRgAgFa (G FT) @, 850 8,903 (5,24m) (2, 5a)
B TelfER S 3 Bl ok 3 29 95k (% .13 B3n) (3o.2)
W4 & e 5,880 8 rod (918} (2.00)
= & bl 48 540 {8,303} (= ew)
G 2,588 9,029 (som) {(a.29)
AT W 32,339 Sm,no3 (8,99) (20.53)
FATD o brd E08 ¥a B4 Sk (3, b% 3uB) (30.4b)

B el cares TS G, 203w-2038 W qur v fEfee B fEameTe A fawnr SR @ e b a8
@ 57 o1 feie Temw TEew WS e aveses @BF O W deueh W T @0 Fermge omenm
COTRITFTATE ST TATE Sb,b,004 (pb.ob%) (S B 4T e 47 TR 5¢,324 (0.05%) % o7 | fFormgs
TG #TeiE T g2 Torsm 33 50,0k (90.5¢% ) (I0F b7 U9z OF 792 M9 SEE @F 998+ 3,549,390
(32.03% ) = T | o1, SITTT ST el o Qe AT T 3, 085, T 1,09 %, WEHE U, 54 %,
&b Ay W 0.34%, GHEHATS 0.33%, FGAE o.0e%, #9 6 S o0.20% g wHfE oxv% | Bffre
CHETTETETS ST e wunly Fee o1 Bhe Y WHiwe e e e

| |§| 3039-3038 HTE Fj-fefes M@y

B HE

- LT

W

» foEs

B T
O i o]
B SFEHORE

o7 adiE

TrEiie e TR 5 T 07T T (5, R0%9-2038 WY TEF FAFE FIS [GUEE FI0 (498 (Y 09 A
1 e e b S e e e e T o T o e e o s s - WO 3
g aretaiee wE Ehy sdtaies sfgaer gan G wAE AgEIsE T W 9 e searEl aearE
weneE g colEe | o oafere wfifen sife g enewy gt cer viften e @ e | W fe
0Tk T (FITETE |

E\ﬂgmmﬁm&ﬁ@s 25)



qifis afsrams

3039-3038

S WGF T TR S
— yo88-3a38 Houdaone | 2 4 i BP0 o

(Br) (vt (5r) o7 (%)

w7 “ifE = 36,3 3, 4b0.00 308 B4,0k, 408,00 I3, 93,009,00 0,60
THTD SATBe A7 SO b, Akl oo o Bo Yo 820 oo 8 Bl bb t k.00 8,28
offersTerm TR e, 83,03 vl oo g, 0 gir g8k oo (0 &8 5 483 .00) (9.88)
b 1] EA,0%, 949, 3t 00 Bl 29, Bl oo &9 o, b ko, 00 &3 Y
i w 540l 40 34 oo S L L S WY &80 ik haa oo LYY
o g B30, 58,5 0¢ 00 o, ah,»,089.00 3%0,38,28, 08k 00 3br.brts
=TerEr Rrimily el WS W (%) ab.of et il oo S 2H R BT oo Y00, 53, Mk 00 Tt
HETT cerfe gemyCcufen) we 1,00,23¢.90 8,39,95,380,99 (8,38 80,05¢.00) (Bb.a%)
wrtraea 4 A5 g 203,33, 5%, ¥9¢. 00 8oy, 4¢ i, ve. 00 YR BA,58, 508 00 CERA
TR AT SR Yo Ba bo bdoos B S o bye o0 bbb o0, 08 o0 30,899
I T min A BEY &Y 00 B3¢, 00 B8 bl 48, 458 00 Yoo by M M08 oo a».e9
T offe =y Ho.oo fo.bd LR .2l
AT AW 2,098 Bl bt 2ok oo | 2 24B.09 50, 90900 AGE S S 8R 00 ¥3.an
e 2w T weon 2t by 3o¢.8% 8,53 si.ae

2029-2038 WY TETE W faerm ARFETT I (EE | 1029-2048 ¢ T HfavEE @@ e Terew TEew 8.84
el Orl 91 8.98% % cowE | 7 FwEe @ qnne rge W sprEten s ol v e % i
AT T 2029-3038 WE TEH AFS TEED Ty o.be (D BT A .88 % FT (IOTE | TNNF W TN e
2033-20%0 WY TEE TIH 2030-2038 WE TG WUFT A 309.0h (F6 51O I CHITE T & I TemETere
WTADT 20%0-2038 =Y T2 AN SHAMIEE @ T T T A TE] JFTe! 99T e 300,58 (FI6
1 o brb% A e | TEr 1, WS 9uE cadle wiflds e A aees wened e A0 o 3%
cormamts | @4 T sifasre Wi e I e s i 9% e iR Iy bt g enen i e 3% oo |

HITETST W A & WA € T TEEE A T ¢ % q09W 9w 910 MU @ TR @ S e
ffamb e TS ST o w16 WA TS ¢ed, 33 (G B 0 T WEEE A0S q9w [Arana Wi WEEE fE@ae!
D AT TS BR S &9 (A0 T 1 TS Fura BB Yoo b (G BT wdfin 3% 4% A | 9=EEMT 3089-2038
wd e (e afe = wfee e 8o.0o B A TS THGE wo b B TEE B.0 BT &P ) oo TW, 2048
wifard @ e &E w6 FeemTE e Tt 23k b T A go T, 3020 TE04T 20¢.8% B FIEIT 2w,
T 4R 33,20 % @ | A w94 e T g eI @i oo eife [ o e e cmme |

rm
{prar]
E Bao
‘E - I I I I
hG.:‘ I I l
FodheR O Andc=god T deaodg AudR=don Fo St ol
EFEET 305%-2030 3030-32035 | 20333633 | 3033-3039 3o39-3038
WEEE o 0 WA | AW 0.2 2ok, 5B BO3.Lb @E3. 38
HUEE YAl Aie A | 200,85 305.8 Sbry.e8 S8 bl 885.49




s eferame
R09-2028

Bt e A M A M i
T ETEE e ey WiEE srenrEe creie i B 2o%9-2038 Fere fadifee fntae e e 2.8y @
ol & Blgfre =@y |
Ffeman:
FHEAT s R
& FEZ, Seht T T WA e FinEe ufem wrE afnn SereshTny BT o9 ARy St (seE
i “srfeer e gmE e (amrmames)” sae e 5l e 9 ) 9 G BoarT areeiieE 2%
CoTE AT A e e e voaq cefe Bran e wa | wfew oy gy M (wirenawas) o
T wfEada ey e e finbe (sgawae) @ Tone | B afeim v qq coft Sran Rfrarera e e
(*MIEE BF0 So.0o B WfEEw TENT ba,90.000f cumER wfeT fE ) cEeEiE 20ib-dcis ud qwE
0,00 oo0 BTED (ETEE &7 (49 &47E Yo,00 T EfEms 72 o ofE 20,00 59 208 Yo.00 @ Grem Rfamme
FA1 Z0AE | T FrE A e aiietate sv.4y oI TIFT | SEGT 989 (00 STNE] FrEe FEne &
i R T sh,0e.0¢, She.00 T TEE (Feifwe fTames 76 ¢.8 H891) | 9o T9 soi8 wifETy
#&fs Yo B T PHATAT (16 @70 S (WF475) L8, 4L 5 |
arardr ey FDE (s @ W el ae% o SRR R sred grre Fiibe (suwas) @
crrenfer Fafermamet sty faome =MoameT Sov0-3048 =Y Tl aarBf arew @ =3 TomE | 9o TF Y038
wifars e e FEifes e sl o o MRs S cEaEl WS FTEArE b.88 bbb oo BT WE
30% TET IrEW Q0,230 00 BT WE R YIS AN AT TR |

B, <l grEer] MR (euma) @F AREFeme @rie e B Sihiee SEhE b e EEE
AT ».8¢ (Fio TIFl, STHa qEaE Eaieis 0% CHEET F9AeE 3.80 (Fs G, STET FaFeT Faens
0% ETEe EETE 1e 7w B a9 St afEtEy Gt se% cwwas Reite 9o 7w G i e
fame, o gt agEnoe sree Bitee Tifafemer faftfe o | onve efefies) fafucbe, o cofiremeny Pifde o sorn
aferfarmr Pfinbe s areenfie TiarT ooF 0 Wy O3 ST 4TS o110 0 W = AR

eearea

L TEE, Yokt TR TET WEE @ EERT wfEe Ay ofimr Seresraty ST O WY wiEe (SwE
cEriifer “afew TU iEreen Fhee (YNrsgmee)” st [Ee B s e 9 @Y St e
20 CORTRT A T W (EEHET TS a9, o0 T BT ST B | YEGEns T4 1Y JEEe T mne
w3 W sifarads arr garegs (AreEnore) Dy e e | garEgE AnEmoe FRGY 8o.0o (5% B B
TR WBE A W0H 9r CTOBWE 20d) WIOT BT @ bBar *oe awmree silreres o | wiEhre g smams
8o.00 (BE) @ bR (fef So BT WET 8.00,00.000 (M) (TE BT *F98] GATEaH FRHE0R BRGTE 9
e e ceiffes vferrs 35.8¢% @ Sedre o |

GATEGE AT ST ov-ot-ooe TIfETT FFETGTE TeoWA oF FH | UF (UTF T o8 oHE 4WEHaH
e s e v et e ape.ve (@6 T O @E o e ¢ ,ared voolt e wiEe
TEATE | wo T 3o38 TETd T WEE @ T TS @ CrEEE FEE (A wihere 26 yo
BT TOATTH 0, 3,20, 5005 71 A1ei 057 #f%F b0 T TE (9o-0b-2038 WAH) (T 8v8, 08 b),980,00
BT | wo &, yode St e = Tu aarsias e ST eo% TR FeTe S @ | (afEe senes
WA @ @ 2030-3038 w4 TUE FAW TG T o b, ob.0o0. 00 BRE WEE FETE | QG GUTHGH
e RS oo T, Y038 Wit Fe W TEeE O @3 % TR AT EEIT (el 0S| A W @ @t
3o38-303¢ W] T W TEreA EANT 03,08 00 o oo G WEd FEd |

TETTE T T AT ¢

TS e S

0,600,600 000 AHEYT CEE &6l yo SEETIET BnG, 00, 00,000, 50
33,08 38 Yoo B R ormr &fel so S ey T 350, 84,85 o000

E\ T A @S BT 27)



qifis afsrams

J039-3038
wo BT, Y038 WA ey
RS e S
e et i '
) AT (AR ST ' 3 1,0 8% 90 Lo,olr
=) efedie (wids o sy afed) 389 0,05.29.r8¢ @3,
Eicil 380 ©,00,5%, b3 ©3.93
AT © 3,649,303 o.30
o) ATE 9,03 b, 20,540 b.3d
e 9284 b .0y tr.o8
AATAT AT B3 ©9, 243 .08
Temmait © 3,989 G.6)
ST ' 9, kol 83,08 38,800 Y00.00

i it et
= ATE (T '

= =T (i)

oAg

wo BT, 3038 ST @it e Seuw

= FHAE oS e
= afivrline (i)

© e ()

AT, (T

= ETEE (T

= =i eyl et

wiids e ¢ Tom:
= | Wil T
o 3039-2038 W4 T5F
W o4 A T @2,52,59,29¢.00
EHE TR BRI L30B8 Lo o, 00
W T G G B883.09,90,83¢.00
FES| AT TADE ST (T 300,3F,29,962,00
TUAGHTHT A vl 2,28 590,00
¥ | BT Hetfee
faaam 3039-2038 WY T=8
3@ 0T TIAE TEN Yo 82,84, oon B wieefee Tawtew faedite Sl e sk 00600
sEEE] T WADGE YA 90 ¥ #eY 83,36 Yoo oo

el od BE S9o.00




3”535 efferaw=
2029-3038
TETRA:
e comrrEreRee A, v awree arion, s e g e am el F eferer o
3039-3028 W JEET GO deoV TE Tw e wde onme s ye oo T awiee gefes wEns | s
HFATATY 3038-303¢ Y TEA b, 49,ub,000.00 TR ATGH TA | @I 030-2038 N T57 TFASIF@M
e 2 o fEferes camadt wwafy

- 5% ¢ qura (=T oo off Jemme
Lo
Fan
Soo'l
15
EL
% g SoSy38 Foya-ad
TR CEETIE
FAFIR T Il FEF 2030-3038 € A033-3030 N4 TEA T 4V FOCHH [Haa
wE ST
fema 2930-3038 _I (ROI3-R0%8
i i @ob.bb _@Raed |
uwEE 52,960 33.033.08
e (fafE) b s3g ol ol d Y
:wrm‘__ X 208, % a'i's"i;
T ) 3 a8 | 55 ,330.30

303¢-2038 WY T R AT T w9 (OEE), S, wene () e W uwe weel cEmemE St
33,3 a8 T O TN WO | TS Aoad-yede T T2 aF Al B 45 530, 20 T B |

| [9o1e ¢ 9 R TR @EEE @R S9qwE
Bl t-T R P
SBHYD.L Sabrak 28
E =l letlel
yR3EE 89 b0, st SHEWE_ 8
E Moo
b Teletete]
T TN TN |
ﬁ.ohh—a-: mﬂﬂ -‘ih -‘mih%i knﬁ ‘-‘c&
=4 5T
| = B T | =T B ST m =0

E\ T A @ [NDS 29)



e eforams

2039-3038

FATEE e

& @ FAED AL W S e g AEE A TR AT | @sfee wiEe e iy Rum sewem
TITE] 3] AT wTE ETHTEA ~AC] argel WAEE A0 G2 938 fEafaeen e et S 97 wee
E.wiEle @ Bbwridn O H6eW Sl BTETE | & (@TI BT 0E G e @ SUATY 0 WEhe | GIVeTe S fadr areeres
Priwtfafte sme wamsy afir Rf-Rem sl et wifde s fEed o oo o R aferem
AT AT ST TRl wile wE w ) Wi waiew we A aRbe wWe omne Fe

e A BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/ 80 =fe: co-ob-3ody ), il g
gferamry a3 wFged e, wids e W wunfE awws T w9 T (RafE-A, B, C, -1V) |
R - W11 B | G

AaBIE e Wy WFTeE B (Eeens Wel @18 | 2039-3038 S IE “fmEm ime 7o Hedll, Hew
sfasEaNEng SoEed AT € BTAY Few THigied T eferantm AyiE- 11 @ ewis F 20w |

HArifes AT

T e e e sl e rereents fame areiEs e wmewe (e Sifemmn s ey
ST TG ST A 9 9 | RN Yo20-20a8 WY T Frevsie STienen wewny B, Treaw
faead, w=few, Tme, afsmdet ¢ 95 4T T o, 209,300, 00 BT EWW S0E0E | Slease e e
WIS ] FUEE S WAL 4T |

it e 5l

TN EEE 24T ¢ AN AW TEEEE AU A e e S 5EE (Annual
Performance Agreement) €%a T4 T8 | 97 SO A (ARIFET FEATEAEE ANY @ @
e 5fE sone-28 THeH ¢ IEE THE O 992 S0 R Ao, SeEEAIeEEy g =i, mgdte
AL @ efferavm I FEAbE ATIE 8] TS | SeEFfere, FoWe AIe S plee Sl
OO WEe TATE | (FEE TETAME] 9 T € TEEIeS Fed Seurea M (N T M vh.e%
s T | RS TEAATEITS =SS WE a4 W A T |

W‘aﬂ‘ﬁw{-ﬂ"ﬁ

A I A (T S ST SRIeE (R SEATES T T A 26 e 2 | e
CHGE (FTE AEIAAE FOH] OFCH FATES(E CEFE ATHG S FOEe oW 9 TATE | T SEinE e
TREAAE T (@A G iewe] Sl 0 F6 TETE | FRbe NoEeT e (R (e M
O] TAOT TALE | AHUTE o] TRI6 GEe WY 2-H, SEEn SN € (] *a e AEGaey, TIEmE
wfEieEad, A= ¢ TR T FH-am G297 ¢ AEAET 5] TR | (G T Few SmnE
@EETE SEee FRGT TEEYETd IEAEAT [AE A gTSHE M W 4w e | Sy 1w
10%0-3038 T-TEH TG TS TRIGI (G B - T e WEe T Yo% |

R R I i

o e qgE it ww s o W wa il st wE fEE | e A WiEA SEn 2 959 e
faerife pigmrara e s asioraiorg wrarama Fresifa @ 2w 90 | 2030 6 2038 AEE & @ TEE ¢
WA SR A T FEfe ww Sy Reare g s oftemEe e | et e weTed
Wl 9%, wwa b eifien, s sfsremr gay siafarEre Shae s 2gfay a9y 2 e @i
[AGPEA FEAT AT O T | IFAFET @ FAGECAA WA RACGAF F-TAHE AT AT SIS A
HapsifE WA TH T |

e AT A

afedieR S o W, T @ [Tl e T WeTe e | et e Ty, Wereemd, olh @
el MirosemE (AT FHT T (59 S0 & [ TIEE a9 S AT S & (@S e
WF TFE TS 9008 | O T9E T9Wa T W9e SHumme o e & e g e @ TR SIeage e S
STATER AR Sue T T | @ FEE 09 WEEE (I 30 B afirweandt (anfersfanied) Rl e afrwy ¢
T WO AT | AT TS (AR ST @ T (DI SHOGEs [0 Waw (@LeE |




9 efferam

R00-2028
15 s B i A
AT FEFE T & (FTIE 24 e @ e I G e 20nE | @ 99 e (e S
TR SIS, (Y, FFIOT WU Tenm WCIEs 9 TAE | @ @ ey mre g vepeeee
AT T YE | GTE TS, FEoE ¢ HEFE (AEAPTHE T letgs T g9 2WH Sar TAE AIhe oE
BIEHTE WA BIE T FaE TEATE T | G (57 e SR T al Wa & WA (e 2 e wae e
Teoe 1 =2 7 g @ wgers wdw wee g7 A a9t weiea seeenarrs Ay e s
W et A ar:
wo G, 3038 Tifard HaE RY-TET Weh frAns g-Aaree wde o fram sulrawst awe e wEme T4, G
fafsrraas, grlt s wfede, off e o wfd® wernd afedmee s fone Ffewaase e vl srem
el wremrera Tergre gmme | ofme e st o e enfess s ane |
wEs Fab:
e SfEeRie WS wHre S R W wfEs w0l qw oo ot S50 v Toeer wen
Tl wergde wids Fared e Smm way s ofame @i i il e ey et
wfEEe | @ et et e gy @i wiids sy oferenrg e Rree TR e wiEt
e wel wHire o g3 aweTe ot wfet w0l wde @il cfasem wme wem ergew w7 | wfet
Fibra cr=ntag Widw o S R @ o o FEy o7 IO | dove-38 W ey wiEh by o
oe & 781 s9e 70 | TF Ao A e T vEE e, anen e @t e e e 9 | wies

ARFEE S SE ¢ FEew:
& (T LA 7 Yok, Y80, M8 L Y8 W fafk W a1fife M Fow @we fefare T o

TS I A T FA Y | & AT A A T 49 & W @G e, e wae
T EAW & T (A W WA AT 9 2 e 4% S | Hfenees e OF & FrEe @ Wiee,
“famTeTE T T WETE & TS 0 I FE SR gaue @TeeT 9 Gy e oF smiiee s

ZETE ] AT |
fawpe, T @ e FW TEOETEE T @ ¥E TR [EEIE o T, 00.0000,033 88,003, 38 By TE:

3 TET 2028 [ 97 T TR e oEw T, SEERetd wfEfrE Ae ORI oee AneE e 1w, T
TEE, T« AU A= TEE AT, WEEeld AT OF YU T FeRE T, SERaey YoIEE T T
vifanEEaETE AN e ane SIS GWEEE T ST AT W 4w Ses | e feeehe
WS GHEY TS AT SIET *F TSl qMaF AR ASH TF | RS Fee WA S

THEIHA = EEE |
e offapEreE Helwe Ga 9818 @ WAy eLiiEe uF feramie ofil W 33 TE S« TrEe w4 T )

1 0 4 o 0 e [ AR
e TSRt we gwwe Shrvm SUTEs Term @ e miEige @t e

BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/B0 =1fae: ov-ob-3ady ¥ «F 7w @ wgumg Sfmes %
fafeEAT FEh (GTEE) 459 T T | 2030-3038 FY 997 AN TE FEEEes ST oy  Aw
TS T | AN OF e SNy gierEe e SHE STeTEw A e S I |

A IO e ETER G AT 9 9 (@R, TG AFE0IreA 9L (HE TEMl S (higdl 9% (@R,
BIBTE WETSBIGH & FET ST JE TATE | it s o o(fes) aua o7t s wsmy coovet tar s Grgar
G (1L, BIOTS TRV n e e TAte qar B el B0 (e e | G e e
g% G, BOC QT H of o) Te ol == wnwe sRstrfes Fonsr o2 | weerfere, e mammes efere
@ TE ST BTYR @S (I, BITE GRERIT AR OF OF T O (e, FOTE emE B yo-af e
e v to con.co G BrE (feq 5 e geme B - SULE 9% AOHCE) CTORTIISEN AEad] qfbde
el e +7fE Wiy e o Rl WRThe e e

Eﬂgmmﬁ@mﬁﬁﬁﬁs 31)



i eferawe

2039-30238

TS o FAEn et e e eenneE we rermdar o

qeemwe  Prfatfale wme gwme SheeE FOTED e @ fEE widge bR e
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/ Admin/80 =ifaifz ow-ou-303y &, a7 7% «mn = Certification on
compliance of corporite governance code fE«ETg F98 semem T (9% TEW TIE 4% F, HEE
GITEHTBHE 2038-20%¢ W TG o0 S e 22,000.00 (AF o) b Frfes s e oA
A FEACE | WA A A AW (AR (T AR e 0% (FR, PG OREHIre
Certification on Compliance of Corporate Governance Code &3 FRE={1W I1a% (S11F IE®) 23,000.00
(=18 gram) B frce sieadt T wymas et stw witty s fefine frgfe seramre s e o 2oane |
el amenme wot wey eiyfe Bqe:

Efebrer e Fe=ratrg Qe a9 =T Frfey siyfaree aoe Ffethaies wrbnr ofEm g srfay
G BRI0E | TTSTACHT TR GHE10E @ WA DG SEEE (G EHE G7 WGEN WA T S eHeon
FIOEATE YT T v IENE | (VAR SIS WHTEWE AT Y, YTSRY LY YO, 5Ty el
feay wfa, wa fore, cAterwsa foren, armandt Teosn, bmie focen Proed fersh qae tewg e flae aag
G GANST HCEH WA LA | SEEE FAAUTHE] (AT &9 TIE) W (@AW S e OF T Wees S
aFE FheUTTFe WeTTH T FTOEIEEHE AT e g | e Toer ey O3 W Bt
@ TI0me AF 5 BE TENE | DIHTTY U S, TE WIS W 49 (AEs Gty feree e
FHG MW Gell TOEmEs Ji4Y 9r9gE S47 206 | Sfeare @rviee I-Furd by v Sh9me Afaese
e | e W e e Fery emeEt tef e wame g «f Frfis ey s ame |

TEANTS EEgeTE ST

wfawre gl sz e ofe e ary ffey ferre Tommm ffir ¢ wosm wae swrey “fasmee ffa 5%
TG T T grenfer oo waw @ wifwren spweT 9 @ g ¢ Afeeme fereir Biras B -y @3
TG @ S07 (D [MiEen, (BTAE GIEE Mool OF TIGCEeW FORE, DITSEEY 9% ST, GIGE HIN WGJEE
arE oY o W T ety frfte e | Breerm fovema weredts e wm oFefhe @ Bl foreme
@0 TS e | AESe TErSiiee R e e S e g9 GRS, (e, B,
ararafiE, Anere, FvE, Al g3 Teee e fErene HERE gem o afbfe @y v wn e

B LT T T T i i T

: g AW
o

(7T G

AT S S AT S AW CPEl-ad CHOR 3o TN WA, GTET (T SECETAE Ee SeErht) 3% Mo He

HuTH G TR WATEE P (ED  ATC-s TESAE FRE AUNE TALE S0 S4%  ANCE-o IOE [EGUE-a| 3 .Hic.0n
(DO1-3) «fw =181 WG SrEf=Re T |
| Te=ft e fa=ier mrrries (181, T, AR AT YT WOeToae AeE e Wl R edlels S01s 4%¢ [Ee18S | 3,000.00
& g = | (v &% )
| FEwth TEe [awier TRl (1, TV, W) onlh MECHIE WG Dby #Ter G RREnaren S0/ A9t [Goes | &,0b,00
= 5 =T | (T o el

TR SH Fo, GO 49 ST RS AT 5 | 128 60
g Ferems eoos (4, B ot oty foveer oS Sy fFhe e BI0.33
g forems S w23 a7 BrmedT 89, @0
U T GOIES STLF MRad @ TS 0L T 9 @AE 19 AAEEE G, oA 8 BEeEeE| M 4.ho
TR T8 |

BTer(a Fer+Te =10d E50E= DIE= BIITE TR10L (AP0 [Seas, BIm-ANH:, AIHE, Br0T=, [o0s @ Fa=es =15 | Y900
mﬁz_mmwmmmﬁtﬁzﬂﬁﬁmﬂ,ﬁﬂﬁmﬁm HEIE, THOT, (HbL @ FhMEL 30 | T
EATE] [GLoTA GTIeE BT QAT Sqreraly O SEEes AIEe WA . (TS W e | .00

TR (AT TEreTe ol T @ro (%8 CEETEse (Ete Symier gaz Oibasg) S g wiee 50L.Q0
FEEGE, TV 09 ST T |

THIFE=R TEr=m === I Aieeswy & FEme 75w | 88
aiterats FETsile WHTanT Grv Aref-ot g9 RTsireT = | 3p,08
TATeTE T T Griemear firfer whine ane EnfEs e W By.00
afrere faremr Snomern fefor s Romre= e e Brifte o e Yoo bE




9 efferam

2029-3038
e T ) e I
O =uE e e feats oo e sl (s, e, W) SO WA 6 |
M = T Ty et I T ¢ 000 @, B avee e Gl ST wmm obere D e

24T GroATE W FTE wa T 33,000 T, 5 4@ O T 35, Yo.000 T, BT 4@ wwr wg 6
AR &, oo G, B M1 TS F qooT A0 86 Gonas B i |

ey grom @ feremrre s e Afrafa sy ¢ @ frmee

LY FATAE AEE [erHrs wyfe exfe e farea s 3o = |

Temit T oo Terslem (s, trsen, T9) onfs Teromm shmaie semET = |

e waree Ereradlie e

TR e (e ey g weEe e whte SdFend Tresee a9 424 & I |

Aferrer, qrwe @ T fTrem v wEite gy Sy |

s Terem fafen sl safinfe, o€ Hifey e ayrerer PieBy Frde

TS AT ferend ~faand uf o= oFe awray e AT g JaT fere ffen

T e ST S ST Geniel Ce0eTd AHuww, My 6 2979 FiaE FESE ST WSS
TR |

T TR E e e wy ogiE Srannag Whre Syye wreies a2y |

15T A fEelE o e WiwE I e oy 85 |

T Arens e v @i rondfer Weh wewe & o2 5 oo T B e wwwR T Bges frf,
T e ¢ e il FeTae o FEEE |

ThiETeE ferems e m frslier, Tfeme STl 7o, S¢ 2 TTieee SO e FF T € W |
TG e Feivie freers war St g fecen Ffi

TR TG e Avet feres offFEnd Tl feren Fde

BWAT TBreTe (e AW 7o, TS onies i 9t 3¢o (@8 TF-70+ Ta9aE € F9T |

ATEBTET] (%% =< A (O, ARATTATS T e @ s wefanm i we v, v @ oA o
TG0 GE AN A WA @i AR W € Wi SR 3 S |

% & Sfaars s

TR T G (o9 SeAA @ feee «F A (el ST (ETviad Qe AN BIEEE Tga i o | A
AT e T (FRAR S FATIAE AN | AR AR AT (FE FEF FerE ag ey (59 SR
T g e @ fare BRAMTAT CRUE IS OF g g2 S U a0d 99T B e 6 feree
FIfE ZF e pEeiE e T e crme o TE Ty 5w Tenw formew sifEw e (omas | e
WO TEEE e 1w SI00 (44T WA € (IR F SIRWIEM (TS Ag | (@Ras o 59 ¢ diw, gwiuie
& fapfamas T Ty 9% <Meuy G374 9T FeiE AErT BINA (e Fare TR | B ReE dtafee
FEFTE TS e (EFAG (FTE Hr0E [0 (70 G e '@ TR (HTeE QTS FEG Sene faeiem g
CISIE a1 7eI49 T | Y59 Ry feifee fEnes @10 7e- o8 » Rerfee T 9 =g |

TR Wi e v [T W ST TSR TG Al | GETE TR W waE Shied Mo A 49 T
Tarerem caret o e BE B4 Tre W fum el Tt STae ST | T To 41 AnemE o6y Say
=41 = faurg TR G e e 91 ¥ 9 e wm A wEe @t FEEE @ o e 2ne S
T SUTH AT qH1R YT SO WeaElE iy fEEy evaney 7 |

8 B EE-E 4

o 0d

|

[ N

Ooaoaoaao

Eﬂgmmﬁm&ﬁ@s 33)



qifis afsrams

2039-3038

SiETe,

@I FEF O WASEH] HoY AT ALE, [ By TyEw gSge T IEEAae e G99 Wae
THT 4o TEAETY sieare faeae g Tu e | Teerfere, @rvife Jfmee e TEEE 69 | ST
AT S TeE FHETE @ ETE S e wee faura cEreie v cr Wi e e a9 e |
favemy @b aurd w7 Tafe @ SYframm W9 9UmY (T SRR M Sfeas e g ATE a9 A9
TSI WHeTS WO (Ao ATATEY TaE] 4% i SAue WY §iwa fawan 427 F9 TER | &0 dheead
S ACHE 1 GATA T G (TGS Qremeag Wi aee S 3fas G198 420 T 20 Saane AmEe
A S LA | T SR T oA €, B (3 (- (U o T W) RS T ©1e AE W I
AT | GG T S wr 9 v & =iide Sy o fiw Se 2R | T FTE 9 T Sies
e e « e ore = i T g e aee we @R T | e Sern S fRenE | @ b amE
TR (I S T R R A

T W

T TS (TS T (YT e T S T, T & Fd el sfameen oiw
FEHIO0E AT FAE | TRl WA eI WA 6 FEE el SWAa A [aars, GEe 8 WeE Fee
TEART G € UfeiE T T WA TEe, e (G s aF 97 ww Afeeee,
e TAfEaom WIS ey FHAE, DI & BB 0% SFWHY, T, 0 B9 @riee 4% B,
asrzaE e AT, emer grET AR, S o3 MR e e, se-sEeiE, et g
e e, GTE0/TEREE0T & ST LEFgwE S WAL & FIEIeE T A A e qaram SR FaE |

SETE v g b Awe wifirg e marn @i Safere wewm A @t wee wee wfed, = e
s A o7 an orF Tre e uwie | TR, S e camrersETE @ e
T e WE0e g § AL G Foes| Glve A% |

#fRTATH, T W T 6T OF SErTed Waud ¢ Hefwd S W% A& SEms H0E endn F0E |

A e AFS LAEW ¢ FOCHO] LH BE QA (7] FaTE | WHE LT |



FMEF aferaqs
2039-3038
Heyfe-1
wiifdfe faeadia Tom oferewy .

wifdle faaitmz rite ifds g9y, fsee e, ermereame sxfae ffada s w9 g4z a9
sy @ e fow Torgrm g |

e wele e 9% s s g |
wfdfe faaadit germm aume e Mfeaen wpee w9 e 9 ey e freafy ¢ ammsrs fem |

REes fEe T (WR99e) ¢ wEenies wifds afermms I (S2aFsaas) SgEs S 9ide
feadivrgz a@e w1 2ae |

wETEA FEe g TenEy 4, SRSTeT 4 € THES] T T |

TR SeraTe afewTe e femmam g e @ ciifas wmws g

B i e M) [ B = o L B s o e 4 e [ T O [ T ) o B T A Ao B T T
Hreds SHGT TLE HATF LW 9] T 498 ST afewg gt [y Tvee 9o |

FegrE-11
3039-3038 FA FHHE (ATE TR A @ Afavmaqrvg Soifgfe fmes :

S|
ST 5 “fwa el Tefgfe | A
i
I8 Lot s X i i 1 1 {ﬁ.m} |
T o fF AT wrem gee THARI 39 Y | b,eY000
G (T I T Wi T ey | ox | 38000 |
Tl e G Ad | wemAmEE 0 M | 38 | d.b.0c0 |
G (18 AT | WegedEmeE | M | M | bpo,000 |
B ' s s | 3 | dpo,000 |
G @ (F O TG TEAE ' ATBTEE se | 38 5,4b 000
T A T e G S¢ | 3 | dubpo0
G (<1 L (RS (2T Ao s¢ | se | Swoeoo
| T CRTEI RS ' offawrer T se | se | spocoo|
| e S BTYE | eUATEEE AEEEE | M| do | b.20,000 |
o e FivaeT B s | qEgeEM AESEE | M | M| S,p0,000 |

Eﬂgmmﬁ@mﬁﬁﬁﬁs 35)



qifis afsrams

2039-3028
egfe- 111
S| wo &, Y038 Efdny ey @7 fod -
B W AR TR AT L1 TEA
e S AT e
() AT (LRI ST ©Lo.8b b0 bo.ob TR A
()  «fesm O30 88 )by T
(1) q-lﬁ; b, 9. 549¢ br.ad

35,0838 boo 300,00

3y | HAfwE, e e e, s sifea, ey o
wiad] (Trawe) , wremear Frm e @< o1 (AT

’ﬁﬁ"l‘ﬁ

s, TE (T2 Wi e wrse = =
3, T S 2 e _ )
@, GAIT e ARCHE] . g
8. T SO G _ B}
¢, TWE @ (& O e gE e . 2
. TS (R TR (TS (R - 5
4, TEE A4 FAR FETS! ) _
b, TG R SR - .
». BT W GTEE : .
s, B Tare s e wEeE - i
e TS ierd] | OTEE (AT @ S IS W

we Tl P Sfee ST 2 .
TR A59 OEF (AT © WY IE

T (W13 WG S = 5
Blapa TTER (74T ‘6 WY TS T

TR (AR 4 W . N
wreTEdt R eY, SR (o @ Selre TS HWe:

o fFdme (gym W3 sifed, gym o sfed (Fawe), @rif #be, wemsw Faw dym
T[S AT A T (@FLerT SHel):

3. WA (A3 AT T - To-TERTAEIE (9 < :
3. GATE W WA A - Ge-NEEEES (NAE FEAH) - 4
o, EETs TET IE - Fane (e 91-3) " -
8, T (T2 WA B - e (T ue ) : n
&. T 1T TR S - BRI (W) = .

8 | THEUETESE 99 Yo% 91 OrefE (eoieeE wae:
T (LT Srsfeee (faff) b.b9.80 90 Yo.ob%



qES aferams

Q09-2028
-1V
wrEmee i o e weradt
Bl 3039-3038 | 3033-3039 | 3933-3033 | 3030-3033  Iuih-303s |
e MFW E &) Bl by i B b Mbr L R a8 b
LR ETHTRIRITa PR =5 o (=79 i) »E,BIR. BT 3E RSS9 33 AN I B, N0, 2 3o, BEE 20
T R S ¥ 3 Yok s S on ms 5 B he EE ] o, e, St
T mm‘iﬁ'ﬂ'ﬁ . o bl gy o EHD do o el BE o bE B e R 5 =
=Ifarer e " B G H mid, Bl & 359803 & brEE S
i A " i L b sk b LE PG LR
efars =y ft CL L ERCT B3 ok el a8 99¢ ¢ Sl ol 59 b 8ot 8o
=ity wgeme ) " thr B b3 59 B, okl hE 28 brow,.3% 29,558 ok abr briro, Ba
| |
wifirmemers weE ey Wl ' EWE Vet O ER T 5. 3B H Y80 2o 3 BE: ma
R ST ST ) = g ER-T # s, gk 290,958 330,80 {qR3.9m)
| |
WA wE (T G353 Y Bio, Sl b S bm Ay s oyb el ETTRPUL R
WA AN T “ 83,08t &y | =59 | &, 200, e @ brbed b I
= | |
ST TR ET W HE B0H e @l okl 28 B L s o SHo HES oo R
;!EEEI EE S (= BT bh,eHS B Hh,0HT B sh, 03 B b, 0HI B 2y 0B AL
T S (=T DRI u0E 2 3h08 A 30830 ya0E A N, a0l ag
M e TR e SR (7S B 3,00 BEk ey | Sabmatlnd | Low Goes | ShEbhEac | 359 ae de
=T @fTE Fil = T () 230 | 30085 | Sn.oo Sbo kR us Ao
| 1 |
= 2w\ () Ao oo & b S g S 38 S, 2
eI =ffE == - S (BT 3t .mo ' e | ¥3.00 Y200 sy.oe
- - - - - -
Wi SR (T BT} woH HE N 0o I Woakm G EL 08 I @Y Ashos | QB4 939,049 ol o Ba
| |
wEfE W SR ShaBE | b E0 0o kR I Bl A0s of | hE S30.06 ki3 EE
& S E ol ] 539 B35 5
| RS wake Redte i () g | 303 | RS | yo.on | 3.8
T A (F) 88 8au B Bzl Bra
EC P Nabe 33 e | s34
wfira « FfErET - e mH g | aby |

#fE 1V(B)

AE (opTEITS S (o) s crdifE frp foal T fEeem Aog aome o TR S
= ke (raFas), e oGy MG (anfas) T e s et Mg (e |
3o30-3038 = TErT fonls o Togm wifd @ «favem v o R o o

[ farerart Terafia e forafrae
fa@F (19 57 79F) 3o.brd 39.ub 3250

TeaTRTTY S e 40 A WA 0@ Y480 | 80¢.33 |
e, @y o faeas T S 3¢5} 3358 3%
= #TaeEm a5 yoy. e Seb.oo 382.5%
0 e T 8¢.83 seb.ag 8¢,
T AT A 88349 #8290 Bob.th
et (Bree) 80.00 0.3 83,00
T 2lfs 15 7o o 23 Y 208 33 20300 |
T 2% G ST H 2 bt (88,59) | Loy |
TS, M- AT 88w O b

37)



ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Jamunya 01 Company Limited (JOCL) has been serving the nation through marketing of fuel oil for over five decades,
The ¢ompany i pledge- bound to play an important role in the socio-eeonomic progress of the country,

In 1964, Pakistan National Oil Limited (PNOL), the maiden National Oil Company of the then Pakistan was established
as o private limited company. The company starled Tunctioning with an authorized capital of Tk.2.00 crore. After the
Independence of Bangladesh in 1971 the Government of the Peoples Republic of Bangladesh sequired the assets and
lishilities of Pakistan National Oil Limited by virtue of Bangladesh Abandoned Property (control, Management &
Disposaly Order, 1972 (P. 0. No. 16 of 1972) and the Company was renamed as Bangladesh National Oil Limited. The
Company has been Nnally renamed as Jamuna Ofl Company Limited (JOCL) by the Government on 13 January, 1973, AL
that time the company was operaled by an adhoc committee called Oil Companies Advisory Commitiee (OCAC) under
Petrobangla, constituted by Ministry of Natural Resources as perthe notilication No. 21 m=476 (NR) daled
21473 Jamuna Oil Company Limited was registered with the registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms as fully
Government owned Private Limited Company on 12 March, 1975 under Compuanies Act 1913 with authorized capital of
Tk, 10.00 erove and paid-up capital of TK. 5.00 crore. Subsequently, in the year 1976 the assets and liabilities of the
Compuany were transferred & handed over to Bangladesh Petrolaum Corporation (BPC) ag per schedule stated in clause
3lie) of BPC Ordinance No, LXKV (published in Bangladesh Gazette extra ordinary on 13 November, 1976). Since
then Jamuna Oil Company Limited has been functioning as a Subsidiary of BPC. On 1 January, 1986 all assets and
liabilities of Indo-Burmah Petroleum Company Limited (IBPCL) were transferred to the Company.

In 2005-2006 FY the pad-up capital of the company was mereased o Th, 1000 crore from Tk, 3000 crore by 1ssming of
bonus share out of its profit. The company was converied into s Public Limited Company from o Prvate Limited
Company on 23 June, 2007 and i1 authorized capital was increased 1o Tk 300,00 crore. On 1 August, 2007 the paid-up
capital of the company was increased o Th45.00 crore by 1ssuing bonus share of Tk, 35,00 crore. The company was
enlisted with Phaka Swek Exchange Limiated and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited on % January, 2008 with a view to
off-load 1,35 crore shares of T 10,00 cach under diveet listing procedure and accordingly the shares of the company were
off-loaded in the capital market Subsequently, as per decision of the Government , further 17%Shares were of~loaded m
the market on 25.07.2011.

By issuing bonus shares in the subsequent financial years as approved in the AGM of the company, the paid up capital
wits raised to 110,42 crore which is divided intol 1 04,24 600shares of tk, 10,00 each. At present, the sharcholding of BPC
and general investors are 60.08% and 39.92%,

Maoreover, JOCL also markets world class Mobil brand lubricants and greases in Bangladesh, It also markets s own
Tamuna brand lube oil. The head office of the company is located in Chattogram. Besides, there are 4 divisional offices
and 5 regionul sales offices in different places of the country.

The mun Terminal Office of the Company 15 located in Chattogram and there are 16 depots throughout the country.
1OCL provides umnterrupted supply and service of petroleum products @ costomers through 1is well-established strong
network by is cxsting 755 filling stations, 1220 agenis, 274 packed point dealers, 788 LPG dealers, 21 marine denfers
and 6 foreign bunker suppliers.

There is a Board of Directors constituting 10 members o run the company. 7 Direclors are nominated by
BPC/Government and 2 Independent Directors are nominated by the Board who are finally approved m the Annual
General Meeting and | Shareholder Director 15 elected by the vote of shareholders. The overall activities of the company
are performed with the approval of the Board of Directors. The company implements the Government policies as per the
zuidance wnd directives of BPC from time (o time.

Head Office: Jamuna Blaban, Sheikh Mujib Road, Agrubad Commercial Area, Chattogram, Bangladesh,
Residential Office; BTMC Bhaban ( 1ih floor], 7-%, Kawran Bazar, Dhaka-1215.

Divisional Office: Chatogram, Dhaka, Khulna and Bogura.

Main installation: Guptakhal, Patenga, Chattogram.

MNature of business ; Collection, storage, supply and marketing of petroleum products, lubricating oil and grease, bitumen
and LP gas.
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Chairman’s
Message

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Honorable Shareholders,

Welcome 1o the 49th Annual General Meeting of Jamuna Oil Company Limited. At the beginning of the
speech, 1 remember and pay tribute to the martyrs in the Great War of Liberation in 1971 and those brave
martyrs who sacrificed their lives as well as wonded student-people to reconstruct a new Bangladesh in
July-2024 in the students and people’s movement & uprising. With that, | am grateful to Nobel laureate
Honorable Chief Advisor Dr, Muhammad Yunus, under whose dynamic leadership Bangladesh has shown
courage to stand ahead in the world today despite the global challenges. 1 am pleased to present to you the
business suceess and results of the company for the year ended 30th June, 2024 through the Annual Report.

Jamuna O1l Company Limited as a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation, is making an important
contribution to the economic development of the country by marketing petroleum products nationwide at the
price set by the government. JOCL has marketed 16,81,594 MT of products in the financial year 2023-24 and
the company's net profit after tax was Tk 441.67 crore. The net profit of the company increased by Tk 100,80
crore compared to last financial vear. The company has been continuously supplying petroleum oil across the
country by facing challenges in oil marketing under various adverse conditions.

Under the company's project titled "Construction of 20 storey Jamuna Office Building (Jamuna Bhaban) at
Kawran Hazar, Dhaka 2" Phase" the structural construction of 2" floor to 19" floor of the 20 storey building
has been completed and the finishing work is underway. JOCL's rental income expected to increase at a
significant rate after the completion of the construction project by December 2025 of the building from 2nd to
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19th floor by engaging the consulting services of BUET. Expansion, renovation and pipe line extension and
construction of jetty is in progress & expected to be completed by June-2025 to increase operational capacity
at the company's main installation after receiving approval from Chittagong Port Authority. A contract has been
signed with a reputed consultancy firm, named Tecnicus Reunidus of Spain for automation of the Main
Installation of three oil marketing companies and review of the feasibility report is in progress. Feasibility
study work is in progress by contracting with local and foreign reputed contractors to bring the operational
activities of 39 depots of three oil marketing companies under the scope of automation. There is a plan to
construct storage tanks to increase fuel oil storage capacity up to 40,000 metric tons in main installation and
depots. Construction of a 5000 MT capacity tank at Fatulla Depot which will be connected 1o the
Chittagong-Dhaka fuel oil transport pipeline 1s nearing completion. To set up a new depot 15 under active
consideration on the bank of the Shitalakshya river at Rupganj, near Purbachal residential area, in Narayangan]
district. By implementing all these projects, the commercial capacity of the company will increase.

Jamuna Oil Company Limited is moving forward successfully in providing its services to the customers. The
right leadership is the key to our success. The commitment and dedication of the employees has helped us to
achieve the desired poals of the company. We believe that the company will be able to provide maximum
service, growth, innovation and modernization through its responsible business activities, You will be happy to
know that Jamuna Oil Company Limited has bagped ICMAB 14th Best Corporate Gold Award in Oil. Gas &
Energy category on 14th November, 2024

The Board of Directors always gives the highest priority to investors' returns. We are glad to inform vou that
the Board of Directors has recommended a higher rate of dividend i.e. 150% (Tk 15.00 per share) cash
dividend against the company's earnings per share of Tk 40.00 for the financial year 2023-24. Jamuna Oil
Company Limited has deposited Tk 218.27 crores to the government exchequer in terms of VAT, taxes,
dividends and other taxes in the financial year 2023-24 which is contributing to the economic development of
the country.

[ would like to express gratitude to our respectable members, customers, business associates, Bangladesh
Petroleum Corporation (BPC) and Energy and Mineral Resources Division and others stakeholders for their
continuous support and co-operation. [ would also like to thank to all the Board Members, Management team,
Official, Staff, Auditors, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC. and
Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC. for their sincere efforts and support.

Wish vou pood luck, good health and long life.

.IJ,L v

2

(M A Akmall Hossain Azad)
Member (Senior Secretary )
Physical Infrastructure Divisian
Manning Commission
And
Chairman, Board of Directors
Jamuna Oil Company Limited
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JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

49th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Esteemed Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum Warahmatullahe Wabarakatuhu.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 1 welcome you all to the 49th Annual General Meeting of Jamuna
0il Company Limited. The meeting has been organized on digital platform, as previous years. |
extend my best wishes and warm felicitation to you for attending this occasion through digital
platform.

This Annual Report & Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30 hme, 2024
prepared in adherence to the provision of section 184 of the Companies Act 1994, Rule 12 of the
Securitics & Exchange Rules 1987 and International Accounting Standards (IAS) & International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are presented formally for your kind consideration and
approval.

Business outlook:

Jamuna Oil Company Limited, a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation. is engaged in
marketing of petroleum products. The overall aim and purpose of the company is to ensure the supply
of petroleum o1l, LPG, bitumen and lube o1l at the doorstep of the people on timely basis through a
good management system and to carry out the marketing activities smoothly. The company has been
making significant contributions to the overall economic progress and development of the country by
continuous supply of petroleum oils, such as Octane, Petrol, Diesel, Furnace Oil, Kerosene, Jute
Batching Oil and LSFO all over the country at the price fixed by the government. The company is also
marketing other products such as lube and grease, bitumen and LPG,

Overall sales of the company's products during the year have decreased over the last year, As the fuel
price was unstable owing to war situation between Russia and Ukraine, the company is facimg various
challenges in products marketing. On the other hand, the sale of Dicsel and Furnace Oil will be
subject to further challenges in the future, as there is an opportunity to import Diesel and Furnace Oil
under the own management of energy-based private power plants and use of LNG for power
generation. The demand for fuel oil-based power plants has decreased drastically during this year.
Demand and sale of Kerosene are diminishing day by day as the production of electricity in the
country is increasing and new areas are brought under electricity. With the opening of the Lube and
Grease, LPG and Bitumen business at the private level, the company is facing direct challenges in
marketing products as the supply of these products increases at the private level and being the price
more competitive. With the introduction of LP Gas (Auto Gas) in small vehicles, the demand for
Petrol and Octane may decrease to some extent. However, all efforts to promote marketing of Lube
Oil and other tuel oils through the company's well-established sales network and efficient human
resources development are continuing. It is hoped that in the near future, the company will be able to
generate optimum retums from all sectors, in addition to playing a leading role in the sale of Lube &
Grease. Bitumen, and LPG along with all types of petroleum oil.
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Marketing activities:
The Statement of products marketed by the company during the year 2023-2024 and the comparison with the
previous year

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 Incressed Decrease) %
M. Ton M, Ton M. Ton
HOBC (Outane) 102,919 105,212 (2.293) 2.18)
MS (Petrol) L2T7.605 1.40,722 (13:117) (9:32)
SEO) (Karoseie) 19,153 22,071 (2.918) (13.22)
HSD (Diesel ) [REERIETH I4,30,751 (2376651 (1661
LSFO (Marine Fuel) 3,493 4762 (1,269) (26,65
FO Furnage O11) 217170 221,698 (4.528) 12.04)
TBO (Jute Batching Oil ) 24941 2,580 36l 13.99
Mol Pemroleur il (A1 | 1666367 | 1927796 | (2.61429) |  (13.56)

Lube & Grease 3445 3804 (364) (9.56)
Bitumen H.830 13,070 (4,232} (32.38)
LPG 2,944 3053 (109) (3.57)
Total Other Product (B) 15227 15932 (4,705 (2346010

From the above table it i1s noteworthy that the sales of petroleum products during the financial year
2023-2024 was 16,81,594 M. T. which is overall 2.66,134 M.T. or 13.66% less than the previous year.
Out of the total marketed products of the company for the financial year 2023-2024, petroleum oil is
16,660,367 M.T. or 99.09% and other products are 15,227 M.T. or 0.91%. Out of the marketed
petroleum oils, Diesel is the highest i.e. 11,93,086 M.T. or 70.95% followed by Furnace oil with
217,170 M.T. or 12.91%. Besides, marketing shares of other products are Kerosene 1.14%, Petrol
7.59%, Octane 6.12%, Jute Batching Oil 0.17%, LSFO 0.21%, Bitumen 0.53%. Lube & Grease
0.20% and LPG 0.18% respectively. The sale of the product is also displayed through the pie chart
below:

PRODUCT WISE SALE INTHE YEAR : 2023-2024

B HOBL {Octane}
™ WS [Petrol)
= 5K0 (Kerosenc)
HAD iDiesell
= | 5F0)
w FO [Furmace Oil}
w JBO (ute Batching QI
o Lube & Gregse
& Bitumen
ulPG
m Total Other Praduct (B)

The comparative picture of the above mentioned sales shows that due to the massive reduction of
electricity generation in diesel-driven power plants by the government in the fiscal year 2023-2024,
diesel sales and supply to private power plants have decreased significantly. The movement of
goods-carrying vehicles decreased due to fall of import-expont activities of the country for dollar
contraction and prevailing global economic instability for Geopolitical situation. So, the demand for
fuel oil has decreased because of overall economic downfall of the country. As a result, sales have
decreased by 13.66%.
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Imporiant Information regarding financial resulis:

Total Operating Income 155,28.20.763.00 |  154.46.58.756.00 81.71,007.00 0,53 |
Operating Expenses 169, 86,76, 86900 L05,40,10 320,00 4 46,66,549.00 424 |
Chperating Profit 45415289400 490648 436,00 | (3,04.95.542.00) {744y |
Others Income ST 37,77 285800 420,27 8842500 137,09, 58 860,00 AR |
Finangial Expenses 21681328700 | 18.37.43,317.00 3,30,69.970.00 17.99 |
Net Profit SRV 680500 | 450.96,93,547.00 | 130,14,23,348.00 28,706 |
Provision for Workess' Profil panmicipation {596) 200355 R45.00 22 54 R4.6T77.00 6,50, 71, 16E.00 2R RO '
Joint venture company’s profit/( Loss) 7.36,225.00 4.23.76.240.00 | (4,16,40,015.00) (98.26) |
Profit before Income Tax 552129727500 | 432,65.85.110,00 | 119.47.12,165.00 27,61 |
Provision for Incoma Tax 1 10,45,60,550,00 §1. 706081900 18.66,00.031.00 2032 :
Profit after Income Tax 441.6736425.00 | 3408562429100 | HOOE1,12.134.00 259:57 r
Earnings Per Share 40.00 30,87 9.13 2958 |
“Met Asset 2.514.4&65,511&.!‘}{} 2269079675700 255.38,68,749.00 11.25 |
Net Asset Per Share 228.61 205.49 23.12 11,25 f

In the fiscal year 2023-2024, product marketing has decreased overall. In the fiscal year 2023-2024,
operating expenses have increased by Tk 4.47 crore or 4.24% compared to the previous year. Despite
the application of cost control strategies, total expenses have increased slightly due to prevailing
inflation. Operating profit has decreased by Tk 3.65 crore or 7.44% in the fiscal year 2023-2024
compared to the previous year. Due to the increase in bank interest rates, other income has increased
by Tk 137.09 crore in the fiscal year 2023-2024 compared (o the fiscal year 2022-2023 and as a result
of this increase, net profit before allocation to the Workers' Participation and Welfare Fund in the
fiscal year 2023-2024 has increased by Tk 130.14 crore or 28.86% compared to the previous year. It
is t0 be noted that in the fiscal year under review, net income has increased compared to the quarterly
financial results. In the fourth quarter, the annual income increased due to an increase in operating
income and bank interest income.

In the financial year under review, excluding the allocation of 5% of net profit to the Workers'
Participation and Welfare Fund and including the profit of the associate company Omera Fuels
Limited, the net profit before income tax stands Tk 552.12 crore. Afiter allocation to the income tax.
the net profit after income tax is Tk 441.67 crore. which is Tk 100.81 crore or 29.57% more than the
previous year. Similarly, in the financial year 2023-2024, the earnings per share was Tk 40.00, which
is Tk 9.13 more than the previous year's Tk 30.87. The company's net assets per share as of June 30,
2024 35 Tk 228.61, which is Tk 23.12 or 11.25% higher than Tk 205.49 as of June 30, 2023, The
company's net asset value per share have increased due to the increase in profit from bank deposits.
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]
== | PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND PROFIT AFTER TAX FOR LAST 5 YEARS

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024
B hefore tax 266.180 260.26 238.39 432.66
W after tax 200.180 201.4 186.34 34086 441 .67

Transactions with related parties of Jamuna Oil Company Limited have been stated in the notes no.
2,11 and 36 to the audited financial statements for the year 2023-2024 enclosed herewith,

Investment:

Investment in Associate Company:

Jamuna Oil Company Limited signed an agreement with Mobil South Asia Investments Limited with
regard to form joint venture company “Mobil Jamuna Fuels Limited (MJFL)" on 26 July, 1998,
Jamuna Oil Company Limited invested a total tune of Tk, 8.77 crore against 25% share in the
company. Subsequently. Mobil Jamuna Fuels Limited (MJFL) has been renamed as Omera Fuels
Limited (OFL). The company (JOCL) has 25% ownership in Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) against
imvestment of Tk. 8.77 crore as £7,70,000 shares of Tk. 10.00 each. Subsequently, in the financial
year 2018-2019, JOCL invested another 10 crore against 50,00,000 right share (@ tk. 20 per share
including premium (@ Tk. 10. As a result, the company’s total investment stands at Tk 18.77 crore. At
the end of the year the investment with profit of the company at OFL was Tk.19,62,95,193 (Notes to
the Audited Accounts no; 5.4) after adjusting profit of OFL. Net Asset Value (NAV) of each share of
OFL was Tk. 64.66 each as per audited financial accounts ended on 30 June, 2024,

Accounts related to investments in Omera Fuel Limited (OFL) have been prepared under equity
method in the financial vear 2023-2024 as JOCL has 25% share in OFL. Omera Fuels Limited (OFL)
earned net profit after tax of Tk.29,44,898.00 for the year ended on 30 June 2024 and hence 25%
profit i.e, Tk.7,36.225.00 has been adjusted with the profit of this company.

Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) has invested in its subsidiary companies. Tk. 96.43 crore in Omera Tank
Terminal Limited against 99.99% shares, Tk. 1.40 crore in Omera Logistics Limited against 20%,
shares, Tk. 25 lac in Omera Chemicals Limited against 25% Shares and Tk. 30 lakh against 15%
shares in Omera Elysium Limited. The land for terminal installation owned by Omera Tank Terminal
Limited has been acquired by the Chittagong Port Authority (CPA) and CPA allotted land elsewhere,
where the new Tank Terminal was constructed. Revenue of Omera Fuels Limited (OFL) is expected
to be increased with the start of full-fledged business activities of Omera Logistics Limited. Omera
Chemicals Limitedand Omera Elysium Limited.

o~ —
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Investment in Shares

Jamuna Oil Company Limited signed an agreement with Mobil South Asia Investments Limited with
regard to form joint venture company *‘Mobil Jamuna Fuels Limited (MJFL)™ on 26 July, 1998,
Jamuna Oil Company Limited invested a total tune of Tk, 877.00 Lakh against 25% shares in the
company. Subsequently the company has been renamed as MJL Bangladesh Ltd. MJL Bangladesh
Limited released an 1PO valued at Tk, 40.00 (forty) crore and was listed with the Dhaka and
Chittagong Stock Exchange in September 2011. The shareholding position of the company at MJL
Bangladesh Limited fell 1o 19.45% after the issue of shares of Tk. 40.00 (Tk.4,00,00,000 shares at a
price of Tk.10 each) crore.

MJL Bangladesh Limited started commercial production on 08 May, 2003. Since inception to 30
June, 2024 JOCL earned cash dividend of Tk. 285.93 crore and 5.28.51,900 nos. bonus shares from
MIL Bangladesh Lid. On June 30, 2024 the total number of shares, including bonus shares, owned by
the Jamuna Oil Company, stood at 6,16,21,900 shares of Tk, 10.00 each. Market value of the
atoresaid 6,16,21,900 shares (@ Tk, 78.60 per share stood at Tk. 484,34,81,340.00 as on 30 June
2024, MIL Bangladesh Limited approved 50% cash dividend for the financial year ended June 30,
2023, According to the declared dividends, the company has eamed Tk. 30.81.09.500.00 as cash
dividend in the financial year 2023-2024. In addition. MJL Bangladesh Limited has announced a cash
dividend of 52% for the financial year ending June 30, 2024, As a result, the company will earn Tk.
32.04.33.880.00 as cash dividend in the financial year 2024-2025.

Share Capital Structure of the Company TAKA

Aunthorized Capital:
30,00, L 000 ordinary shares of Tk 10 each

Paid-Up Capital:
11.04.24,600 Ordinary Shares of Tk, 10 each

0000, 00,0040, 00
11042 46, 000,00

Classification of Sharcholders :

Sharcholding positionas on 30 June 2024
Particulars :
T No.ofShare %

u) Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 1 66346, 780 61,08
by Imstitutons | Financial & Others) 243 3:51.23.545 3l

Local 290 3.50,16,613 3T

Foreign 3 1.07.233 0.10
c) Individuals 7362 B9.53.975 B.11

Local Tad B9 15516 807

Mon-Residem Bangladeshis 62 37,262 .03

Foreign 3 1.187 .01
Total : 7.606 11,04,24.600 100
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Shareholding positing as on 30 June 2024

(U8 T ———"\ Dﬂi__,..-ﬂuﬂ'l

* Banglatesh Petralourn Cororation (H00es)
® |ititicm (Loca®] £11 7 %)
Imstitnitions {Farsignl (0.15%)
* Individuals (Lol (H:07H)
*  hipn-Resdent Benglodeshis [003%:)

 Individuals (Faesgn) {007 %)

et Profitbefore icome Tax 1 552,12,97.275.00 |

Provision for Income Tax 110,45.60,850.00
Net Profitafter Income Tax 441,67,36,425.00
Balance of undistributed profit of the previous year 255,28,57,705.00
Profit available for distribution 696,95,94, 130,00

b} Recommendation for appropriation:

15004 Cash Dividend on share capital of 1 10,42 46,000 165,63,69,000.00

Undistributed balance carmed forward 5313225 130.00

Total = 656,95 041 3000
n 3 - 1 ] H

Considering the interests of respected shareholders, reviewing current year's activities, future plans
and capital expenditures, the Board of Directors recommended a dividend of 150% per share for the
financial year 2023-2024 that is Tk.15.00 per share. The payment of dividend will require
Tk.165,63.69,000.00 in the year 2024-2025. The Company has not declared any stock dividend for
the finaneial year 2023-2024 as an interim dividend.

-~ DMVIDEND PER SHARE FOR LAST SYEARS

0 0 2220 N 12335 2ar334 | Prupesed)
Financial Year
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Payments to the Government Excheguer:

Hem wise statement ol contributlon to Government exchequer for the year 2023-2024 and 202 2-2023 are as under:

Takain Lakh
Financial Year 2023-2024 2022-2023
Vaulue Added Tax R 525.50
Inecome Tax 12,358.01 11.021.04
Dividend (BPC) 8,625,08 T.961.61
Others 339,19 11194
Total 21,838,94 19,923.20)

During the vear 2023-2024, the company deposited a total of Tk, 21.828.94 lakh in Government
exchequer as Value Added Tax (VAT), Income Tax, Dividend (BPC) and others. In the last
2022-2023 financial year the amount was Tk [9,923.20 lakh.

g Payment of The National Exchequer for Last 5 Years
25000
19923.2 21828.94
20000
1415547 14810.35
i 5 14484.54 | |
10000
) tL LL‘ l‘ ‘ ll
0l = e
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
B VAT B Teome Tax B Dividend (BPC) W Others W Total
Corporate Governance:

The company has been trying its best to improve the standard of corporate management by taking
necessary steps. Jamuna Oil Company Limited is pledge bound to adopt necessary measures of good
governance abiding by all prevailing rules & regulations and as consequence of these efforts, e-filing &
e-tendering have been introduced under e-governance programme. As the Company is enlisted with
Dhaka Stock Exchange Lid. and Chittagong Stock Exchange Lid.. the financial statements and
sharcholding report have been submitted to the concerned authorities in time. Compliance Reports as per
SEC notification no. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/ADMIN/80 dated 03-06-2018 and other operational
& financial information are attached here for your kind information (Annexure A, B, C, I-IV).

The Board meets regular basis to discharge its responsibilities. Number of Board Meeting held in
2023-2024 and the attendance & Remuneration of its Director shown in annexure-11.
orpor oci onsibilit

Jamuna Oil Company Limited as a state-owned company performs various social activities according
to the corporate social responsibility (CSR}) policy. The company has provided a total of Tk,
34,57,200.00 as grant to the Medical, Winter clothing distribution, Madrasas, Mosques, Orphanages
and Temple under CSR activities during the financial year 2023-2024, Similar social responsibility
activities will continue in the future.
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Annual Performance Agreement (APA):

In order to evaluate the quality and quantity of the performance system, Annual Performance
Agreement has been introduced in the light of government guidelines. Under this, various meetings,
online/offline training workshops, progress review and report evaluation programs have been
organized throughout the year for the implementation of the agreement executed by the company with
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation for the year 2023-2024, As a result, most of the parts of Annual
Performance Agreements have been achieved, About 89.5% of the total target has been achieved in
both the strategic objectives and the governance and reform activities. 100% target is expected to be
achieved in the coming years,

National Integrity Strategy:

Under the government's directive, a coordinated action plan has been formulated to implement the
national integrity strategy at the company level. An officer has been appointed as the focal point for
the implementation of the national integrity strategy. An integrity committee has been formed in the
company to implement the national integrity strategy. Meetings have been conducted by focal point
with participation of stakcholders. In addition, other action plans, including e-governance,
simplification of innovative initiatives and services, strengthening accountability, monitoring and
evaluation are under the integrity strategy. The management authority of the company has provided
all the necessary guidance for the proper implementation of the activities mentioned in the integrity
strategy. According to evaluation of action plan of National Integrity Strategy the company achieved
about 100% performance in the financial year 2023-2024,

Officer- Emplovee Relation:

During this year, the company maintained a cordial and peaceflul environment for labour relations.
According to the Bangladesh Labour Law, the workers' various demands are settled through bilateral
agreements after two years. A bi-annual agreement is in process between the company authority and
the Jamuna 01l Company Labour Union for the years 2023 & 2024. The management authority of the
company has always sought to take various measures to enhance the internal efficiency of the
company's manpower, improve their performance and work environment. Due to the good relations
between the officers and staffs/workers, the company will be able to make further progress in the
future.

Human Resource Development:

Skilled, capable and dedicated human resources are very important for the development of the
organization. The company has a number of skilled human resources to carry out comprehensive
activities related to the distribution and marketing of fuel oil throughout the country, meluding fuel
oil handling, storage, safety and security assurance. Other necessary steps have been taken including
participation in training and workshops in the country and abroad to further improve the quality of
human resources, This year, a total of 223 trainees (officers-employees) participated in various types
of training and workshops within the country. Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation and Bangladesh
Petroleum Institute have made special contribution in this regard.

Environment Protection and welfare activities:
To protect the environment, trees have been planted at the company's Main Installations and Depots.

This year. various entertainment programs like banquets. sports. cultural events etc. have been
organized. The company observes various national days with great importance. On the other hand,
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prizes were distributed among the children of the employees for good academic results to encourage
them to do even better in future, Company authorities have always been vigilant to ensure that river
pollution or any other type of environmental pollution does not occur due to fuel oil transport
activities and have ensured infrastructural facilities in this respect.

Explanation Pertaining to Audit Report :

In the audit report for the financial year ended on June 30, 2024, observations were made by the
Joint-Auditor on 4 subjects namely, confirmation and reconciliation of accounts with related party
transaction, trade receivables, fixed assets register, and bhumi namzari. These i1ssues were presented
separately in the board meeting. According to the decision of the board, necessary steps are being
taken up in the regard,

An audit committee was formed in accordance with the provisions of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission. The purpose of the formation of the Audit Committee 15 to develop the
Company's mtemnal financial control system and to inform the Board of Directors about updated
financial information of the company. Audit committee meetings were held to analyse the annual
budget. quarterly and annual financial reports of the company, and such reports were presented by the
audit committee to the company's board of directors. The Audit Committee has been given full
authority to examine the financial and other matters of the Company. A total of 05 meetings of the
Audit Committee were held in the financial year 2023-2024. Quarterly, half-yearly, annual financial
reports and other reports are examined and reviewed in that meeting. The audit committee report is
included in the annual report of the company.

Retirement and Appointment of Directors:

One-third of the directors retire on the basis of seniority at the Annual General Meeting, in
accordance with the rules of Articles 139, 140, 141 and 143 of this Company's Articles of Association.
[n this general meeting, Director Mr. M A Akmall Hossain Azad, Mr. Kabir Mahmood and Mr. Engr.
Shaikh Al Amin will retire from the board of directors. Director Mr. M A Akmall Hossain Azad, Mr.
Kabir Mahmood and Mr. Engr. Shaikh Al Amin are eligible for re-election and therefore they are
proposed to re-elect.

As per letter No. 28.00.0000.021.44.001.24.98, dated 26 November 2024 ol Energy and Mineral
Resources Division of the Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources Mr. Shankar Prasad
Dev. former Additional Secretary was replaced by Mr. Saleh Ahmed Khasru, a Columnist, Poet and
Social Worker and Mr. Kaosar Zahura, former Joint Secretary in place of Mr. Shamsuddoha, former
Joint Secretary are nominated as Independent Directors, The board of directors of the company has
appointed the two independent directors subject to the approval ol the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission. After receiving the approval of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission, the appointment has been presented for approval to the shareholders in the next Annual
General Meeting.

Brief resumed and other information of the Directors are shown in the page no 12 to 16

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

Nomination and remuneration committee (NRC) has been formed as per corporate governance code
of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) notitied vide notification no.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/ADMIN/80 dated 03-06-2018. Only 01 meeting of NRC was held in
the financial year 2023-2024. The NRC report is included in the annual report of the company.
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The present external auditors of the company M/s Shafiq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants and
M/s Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants are retiring at this meeting. M/s Hoda Vasi
Chowdhury & Co.. Chartered Accountants are eligible for re-appointment and wish 1o be
re-appointed for not having completed 3 (three) years as auditors of the company. M/s Shafiq Basak
& Co,, Chartered Accountants are not eligible for re-appointment for having completed 3 (three)
years as auditors. Therefore, in view of BPC's nomination the sharcholders will approve the
appointment of M/s Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants and M M Rahman & Co.,
Chartered Accountants as joint-external auditors at the existing fee at Tk. 3,50,000.00 (Three lakh
fifty thousand) subject to equal distribution to hold office till the next Annual General Meeting.

The Board of the Company has approved the appointment of M/s Mahmud Sabuj & Co., Chartered
Accountants for certification on comphance of corporate governance code for the year 2024-2025 as
per related clause of corporate governance code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC) notified vide notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/ADMIN/80 dated 03-06-2018
at (excluding VAT) Tk.22,000.00 M/s Mahmud Sabuj & Co. Chartered Accountants will be appointed
by the shareholders to carry out their responsibilities upto the next Annual General Meeting with a fee
{excluding VAT) Tk. 22,000.00 (Twenty two thousand) only.

Development of ICT to build up Digital Bangladesh:

To be a part of the implementation of Digital Bangladesh and to modernize day-to-day activities of
the company, the process of setting up computerized automation system is in progress. Installation of
computer network has been completed by this time for computerized accounting system and to bring
other activities under networking system. Company’s Head Office at Agrabad Chattogram, Main
Installation at Patenga, Chattogram. and Regional Sales Office of Dhaka, Fatullah Depot, Daulatpur
depot, Baghabari depot, Chandpur depot, Sylhet depot and Bhairab Bazar depot have come under this
networking system. The processes are gomg on to bring all depots and all regronal offices of Jamuna
Oil Company Limited under the computerized networking system. The company has introduced
e-filing and e-tendering under e-governance programme. The Company is now taking the advantages
of internet system tor its day to day business by using the internet at its Head Office in Chattogram,
Liaison Office in Dhaka and different depots across the country, The company has a plan to introduce
E-Commerce system in future. The Company has installed its own website and it 1s bemyg updated
regularly.

t v nt activities:

Company's operational capability and storage capacity have been increased by construction &
renovation of storage tanks at wvarious depots by expanding other operational facilities in
consideration with the increase of future demand. Foundation and bottom plate renovation of storage
tank no-1 of Barisal depot, foundation renovation of storage tank no-02. bund wall of two tanks,
drainage system and oil-water separator mn tank farm area. Reconstruction of main road inside
Chandpur Depot. Sylhet Depot Jetty Renovation Work. Also, CCTV installation and monitoring
system has been imtroduced at Fatulla, Daulatpur, Chandpur, Baghabari, Srimangal, Rangpur, Barisal
and Bhairab Bazar depots to strengthen the company's security system.
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At present the following development aciivities are in progress:
lakh Taka.
Descipiion Cost
Twmuna Office Bhaban Construction project 2nd phisse-3rd 1o 200k Noor, Dhak (05 per 2nd revised DPP). 22.187.45
Paltun letty located in front ofthe Main - Instal laton including all renovation works with. extension of LI -3 and pipe 241000
line extension work from °1J1-3" 1o *DOJ-37,
Feasibility study. design and drawing works for aulomation system works ol Main Instal lations of three ol 1300000
marketing eompanics{ Padma, Meghna, Jamuoa), (ome thivd of Jamunn)
Feasihiliry study, design ond drawing works for 3% depotautomation svstem works of — three il marketing 6.361.00
gompanies (Fadma, Meghna, Jamuna), (one third of Jamuna )
Electrical Renovation work of Company s Main Instal lation, Chattogram. 233.00
Construction of dicsel storage tanles of S000 MT capacity ot Fatullah Depat, T
Renovation works of Fatulla Depiot Tank noe-22 4733 |
Supply, Instal lation, Testing ond Commissioning works ofintemal foating roo Fand breather valve at slormge tink I57.90
no-22 at Main Installation including calibration work,
Fire Hydrant Type Fire Fighting  System Dhesign, Enginu:ring., Supply, Instal lation, Testing nnd Commission ng | B7.00
works at Chandpur Depot. |
Fire Hydeant Type Fire Fighting System Design, Engimeenng, Supply, Installation, Testing and Commissioning 221.20
| worksat Svlhet Depot
Walkway and Unloading Point B.C.C Pavement construction work of Baghabari Depot Tank Farm Area 26,59
[nstal lation and Commissionimg work of room construction 300 KV A Generator { Including Foreign Canapi and 206,50
ATE) cable & Enrthing Suprﬂ y of Company” s Daulatpur Depot
Ansar Barracks Extension and Renovation work of Daulatpur Depot. 3494
Renovalion work Noating dump Barge -05 of Thal akathi Depot. 204
Daulatpur Depot Tank lorry Filling Area Hord Standing Reconstrue tion Work, 91,05
Tank lorry Filling Gantry Renovation and Hard Standing Reconstruction works at Barisal Depot . L5304
O Automation conversion of three oil marketing companies (Padma, Meghna, Jamuna) in the
Main Installation Patenga.
1 Construction of a Furnace il Storage Tank with a capacity of 5,000 M. Tons to increase the
storage capacity in the Main Installation.
M Construction of total 4 storage tanks including two with capacity of 6,500, 10,000 and 12,000
M. Tons to increase the storage capacity in the Main Installation.
7 Modernization of firefighting facilities and cable renovation in Main Installations and Depots.
M Establish and control modem security technology with all major depots to strengthen
monitoring activities.
O  Automation conversion of 39 depots of three oil marketing companies (Padma, Meghna,
Jamuna).
1 Taking up and implementing financially profitable projects on unused land in different parts of
the country owned by the company.
™ Electrical Renovation work in Jamuna Bhaban.
A Modernization of fire-fighting facilities at Barishal, Srimangal and Rangpur depots.
M Reconstruction of filling gantry, construction of hard standing and drainage system at Sylhet
Depot.
1 Construction of full depot at convenient location of Jhalakathi district by purchasing land
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A Automation of all regional offices/ depot fuel oil management, sales and accounting activities
of the company.

M Undertake development activities for the use of advanced information technology in the
day-to-day operations of the company.

M Undertaking a project to set up a fully new depot at Bhairab Bazar.

d  Construction of 2 (Two) 300 MT Storage Tanks for Bhairab Bazar Depot for Ist Class
Petroleum Octane Storage, Transfer and Expansion of Pump House and Filling Gantry.

@ Construction of wagon shed, renovation of filling gantry, purchase and installation of internal
floating roof of tank no.15 at Daulatpur Depot.

M Construction of permanent depot on the bank of Shitalakshya River in Rupganj of Narayanganj
district.

M Construction of permanent depot instead barge depot of Sachna Bazar in Sunamganj.

M Construction of hard standing, mstallation of 250 KWVA sub-station supply and repair of filling
gantry at Chandpur Depot,

The Board of Directors hope that, the company’s business activities and income will increase
remarkably after implementation of development projects in progress and future plans, cspecially
Jamuna Bhaban, Dhaka and Paltun Jetty L1-3 projects.

Risks an lenoes:

The business of the company will face enormous challenges due to the creation of opportunities for
production and marketing of fuel oil at the private level. Demand for kerosene is steadily declining
due to increased power supply. Due to the gradual increase in o1l imports by the public/private power
plants under their management, the use of LNG in power generation will be increased. As a result,
demand for Diesel and Furnace oil will decrease. As the business of lube and grease, LPG and
bitumen are increasing at the private level. the marketing of these products is facing a direct
challenge. However, in the context of continuous growth of economic activities of the country, it will
be possible to tackle the marketing risk of the product by increasing the company's well-established
sales network and applying appropriate strategies. Details about risk factors are stated in the note no
2.34 to the audited financial statements.

The company is financially solvent and hence there is no need to borrow. Besides, the financial
position of the company is improving day by day and there is no need for working capital as the main
marketable products are supplied by BPC on credit. Products are sold subject to cash receipts and
therefore the company has no risk of liquidity or debt. In addition, the risk of foreign exchange
pricing is not applicable as the company does not import any product directly from abroad.

Future Prospect:

Many projects have already been implemented by the company. Several development projects are
under implementation and future plans for implementing more development projects have been
undertaken. As a resull. the management efficiency of the company will improve. In our country
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economic activities and communication systems are increasing rapidly. With the improvement and
modernization of the marketing network and the adoption of appropriate strategies. sales are expected
to be increased in the future. The company has plans to increase revenue in the future by taking
necessary measures in the marketing of new conventional Auto Gas, If the jetty expansion and
renovation works are implemented, the company's product handling and other operating income will
increase, resulting in an increase in the operating sector income in the future. The implementation of
the Jumuna office building construction project, Dhaka (2nd phase - 3rd to 20th floor) will increase
the rental income from that building. Besides. the reserves of the company are gradually increasing
and the financial position is improving day by day. With proper fund management returns from
financial gains and income from investment are expected to be increased day by day. As a result. there
will be no problem in maintaining this company as a going concern.

The Board of Directors 1s expressing gratitude to the esteemed shareholders for extending their
whole-hearted co-operation, advices and support. 1, on behalf of the Board of Directors would like to
take this opportunity to express gratitude and thanks to the Energy and Mineral Resources Division
of the Ministry of Power, Encrgy and Mineral Resources mcluding other ministries, Bangladesh
Petroleum Corporation and its subsidiarics, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,
Dhaka & Chattogram Stock Exchange. the Jomt Stock Companies & Fums, MIL Bangladesh
Limited, Omera Fuels Limited. Banks and all other related Government, Semi-Government, related
autonomous and Non-Government organizations for their continued support and assistance in
achieving company’s performance. | would like to express thanks and gratitude to all Dealers,
Agents/Distributors and all other customers of the company for their valuable support and
contribution.

I especially express thanks and congratulations to all employees of all levels of the company for their
untired hard work and sincere effort without which the success of the company could not be achieved.
Finally, T express sincere gratitude to the valued shareholders for their support and confidence in the
management of the company

In fine, | pray to Allah - the Almighty for day by day prosperity and development of Jamuna Qil
Company Limited.

Thanks and gratitude to all of you once again. Allah Hafez

On behalf of the board
-
~ -~ |
i {"-"'h:-""ﬂ_f_’
Yo

(M A Akmall Hossain Azad)
Chairman
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Annexure-A
| As per condition No, 1{5)(xxvi)]

Jamuna Oil Company Limited
Declaration by CEO and CFO

Date:05 November, 2024

The Board of Directors
Jamuna Oil Company Limited
JamunaBhaban, S5k. Mujib Road,
Agrabad C/A Chattogram.

Subject : Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No.l(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification

No-BSEC/CMRRCD2006-158/207/ Admin/80, Dated 03 June 2018 under section 2CC of the

Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Jamuna Oil Company Limited for the year ended on 30" June 2024
have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards ([IAS) or
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any
departure there from has been adequately disclosed:

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view:

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably
and fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of
internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Owr internal auditors have conducted continuous audits to provide reasonable assurance that the
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed:; and

{6) The management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:-

(1) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30" June 2024 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:
(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading:
(b) These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
(ii) Therefore, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the
company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely vours,

5

AV ¥
{Md. Jashim Uddin) (Mustafa Qudrat -1- Elahi)
DGM (Finance ) Managing Director
== =
24 zen JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED




ANNUAL REPORT

2023-2024
Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
INDACY
Report to the Shareholders of
Jamuna Oil Company Limited

On
Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code
For the year ended on 30 June 2024

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Govemance Code by Jamuna OQil
Company Limited for the year ended on 30 June 2024. This Code relates to the Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCDV2006-158/207/admin/B0, dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Govemance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereo! as adopled by the
Management in ensuring complianca 1o the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scruting and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopled by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those
standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Govemance Code

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and
afler due scruting and verification thereo!, we repert that, in our opinion:

(@} The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated
in the above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
{55%} as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by
this Code:

(c) Proper books and reconds have been kept by the Company as required under the Companies Act,
1884, the securities lzws and other relevant laws: and

(d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

Chattogram, For and on behalf of
Dated: 15 January 2025 Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Charizred Accountanis

e

Arafat Kamal FCA
Partner
ICAB Enroliment No: 1184

Prinipal Oy - Firamcust Fign (T Fioes GBS, Biow v Bioid Paroras Pt D 1006 T o0 TTNMEMGER 7V7E88 Whoh | U701 20605, S0 WP Bl ot com, e et (o
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Annexure-C
[As per condition Mo. 1({5){xxvii)]
Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’'s Notification No.
BSEC/ICMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/B0 dated June 03, 2018 issued under section 2CC of the
Securities and Exchangs Ordinancs, 1969:

({Report under Condition No. 3)

Compliance Status
{Put v in the

Condition appropriate column)

Remarks

Title

Complied

Not
Complied

(it any)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1)

Size of the Board of Directors

The total number of members of a company's
Board of Directors (herainafter referred 1o as
"Board™)} shall not be less than 5 (five) and
more than 20 (twenty).

1(2)

Independent Directors

H2a=)

At least 2{two) directors or one-fifth (1/5) of the
total number of directors in the company's
Board, whichever is higher, shall be
independent directors; any fraction shall be
considered to the npext integer or whola
numbear for calculating numbaer of indepandent
director{s);

y

T(2)(b(i

Withoutl contravention of any provision of any
ather laws, for the purpose of this clause, an
“independent director” means a director-

Who seither does nol hold any share in the
company or holds less than one percent {1%)
sharas of the total paid-up shares of tha
COMPany;

T{2)(b)(ii)

Who is not a sponsor of the company or is not
connected with the company's any sponsar or
director or nominated director or shareholder
of the eompany or any of its associates, sistar
concems, subsidiaries and parents or holding
antities who holds one percent (1%) or mora
shares of the total paid-up shares of the
company an the basis of family relationship
and his or her family members also shall not
hold above meantioned shares in the company;

T2k (i)

Who has not been an execulive of the
company In immediately preceding 2 (twa)
financial yvears;

T2} b)iv)

Who does not have any other relationship,
whatlher pecuniary or olherwize, wilh he
company or its subsidiary or associated
Companias;

(2N B)(v)

Wha is not @ member or .—E__REE.{_-FFE!EH_Q_I%QF?

Enlitlermant Cearificate) holder,
officer of any stock exchange;

direcior or

T2 b)vi)

Who iz nol a sharehoidar, director excepting
Independent director or officer of any member
aor TREC holder of stock exchange or an
intermediary of the capital market;

L

1(2)(b)(vii)

Wha is not a partner or an execulive or was
not a partner or an executive during the
preceding 3 (three) vears of the concermed
company's statutory audit firm or audit firm
engaged in internal audit services or audit firm
conducling special audit or professional
cartifying compliance of this Code;

1 (Z)(b){viil)
1{2){b){ix)
2 )()(=)

56

Who s not independent director |n more than S
(fiver) listed companies; .

Who has not been reported as a defaulter in
the latest Credit Information Bureaw {(CIB)
repart of Bangladesh Bank for non-payment of
any loan or advance or obligation to a bank or

a financial insthutionand
Who has not been convicted for a criminal
| offence involving moral turpitude;

—"
T

)
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Condition
MNo.

Title

Compliance Status
{(Put v in the
appropriate column)

Complied

Mot
Coamplied

Remarks
(if any)

1{2)e)

The indepandent director{s) shall be appolnted
by the PBoard and approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meaeting
(A

Provided that the Beoard shall appoint the
indepandent director, subject to prior consent
of the Commission, after due consideration of
recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the
COMPany;

(2 Hed)

The post of independent direclor(s) cannol
ramain vacant for mora than 90 (ninoty) davs:

4

1(2)e)

The tenure of office of an independant director
shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which
may bhe extended for 1 (one} tenure only:

1(3)

Qualification of Independent Director

1(3)(a)

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable
individual with integrity who is able to ensure
compliance with financlal laws, regulatory
requirements and corporate laws and can
makea meaningful contribution o the business;

8

TEINDAE)

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or
director of an unlisted company having
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 miillon
ar any listed company or a member of any
national or inlermational chamber of commerce
or registerad business association; or

1(3) (b))

T3k (i)

T3 EKiv)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top-level
exaecutive not lower than Chief Executive
Officer or Managing Director or Deputy
Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or
Head of Finance or Accounts or Company
Secretary or Head of Intermal Audit and
Compllance or Head of Legal Service or a
candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted company having minlmum  paid up
capital of Tk, 100.00 milion or of a listed
company, of . A
Former or existing official of government ar
statutory or autonomous or regulatory body in
the position not below &th Grade of the
national pay =cale, who has at |east
educational background of bachelor degree in
sconomics or commerce or business or law!
Provided that In case of appointment of
existing official as Independent director, |t
regquires clearance  from  the organization

-.Univem]ty Teacher who has Edu&.éli.iaﬁal..

background in Economics or Commerce or
Business Studies or Law, or

W

=1}
applicatls

{2 bv)

Professional who is orf was an advocate
practicing at least in the High Court Division of
Bangladesh Supreme Courl or a Chartered
Accountant oar Cost and hManagemeant
Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or
Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified
FPublic Accountant or Chartered Management
Accountant or Chartered Secratary or
equivalent gualification;

Mot
applicable

1(3)c)

The Independent director shall have at least 10
{ten) years of experences 0 any  fisld
mentioned in clawse (b))

1(3)(d)

in special cases, the above qualifications or
experiences may be relaxed subject to prior
approval of the Commission.

1{4)

Executive Officer

T4

The positions of the Chalrperson of the Board
and the Managing Director (MD) andfor Chief
Execiutive Officer (CEQ) of the company shall
be filled by different individuals;

men| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED




ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

Gumpliarlme Status
{(Pul v in the
| Condition appropriate column)
Mo, Title Not
Complied | Complied

Remarks
(if any)

The Managing Director (MD) andfor Chief

1(4)(b) Executive Officer (CEQ) of a listed company 4
shall not hold the sama position in another

listed comparny,

Thea Chairparson of the Board shall be elected :
{4y from among the non-executive directors of the 4
COMpany’; B

The Board shall clearly define respective roles
and responsibilities of the Chairperson and the N
Managing Director andfor Chlel Executive
OFfficer
In the absence of the Chalrperson of the
Board, the remaining membears may alect one
ol themsalvas from non-execulive directors as
14 e} Chairpaerson  for that particular Board's
meeting; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairparson shall be duly recorded in the
milnutes.

T{4pd)

Mot
applicable

1({5) The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

1(5)(1) An industry  outlook and possible fulure J

The Sagmeant-wise of product-wise

devalopmeants in tha industny;
1530 parfaormance;

Rizsks and concerns including internal and :
TS (i) externalrisk factors, threat to sustainakility and W
nagative impaact on anvironmeant, f any;

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross
15w} Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin, where o
applicable:;

A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary Mt
actlvities and their implications (gain or lnss); applicable
A  detalled discussion on related party
tranzactions along with a statement showing
T(5){wi) amount, nature of related party;, nature of LY
transactions and basis of transactions of all
related party transactions; .
A statement of utilization of proceeds raised

T(S0wii ) through public issues, rights issues and/or any
| other Instruments,

TS

Mot
applicable

An  explanation it the financial results
deteriorate after the company goes for Initdal Mol

Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering applicable
(RPO). Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.;

1(5)(viil)

An explanationon any . significant variance that Mo significant
OCEUirs betwaear Quartarly Financial Variance
1(5){ix) parformances and Annual Financial ocourred
Statements; during the

i yeaar

1(5)(x) A statement of remuneration paid o the !
directors including independent directors;

A statement that the financial statements
prepared by the management of the issuer
1(5)(xi) company present Tairly its state of affairs, the N
result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.

1(5) (il A statement that proper books of account of f
the issuer company have been maintained;

A statement that appropriale accounting
policies have been consistently applied in
{5 =iii) preparation of the financial statements and N
that the accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent |udgment;

A statemeaent that International  Accounting
Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in
(5N xiv) Bangladesh, have beean followed Ire o
preparation of the financial statements and any
departure there from has been adeguately
| disclosed,
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TS =w)

A ostatement that the system of internal control
iz sound in design and has baen effectively
implemanted and monitorad;

TR

A siatement that minority shareholders have
been protecied from abusive actions by, or In
the interest of, confrolling shareholders acting
aither directly or indirectly and have effactive
means of redress;

1(5)(xvii)

A stateament that there is no significant doubt
upon the issuer company's ability to continue
as @ going concern, if the issuer company is
not considered to be a going concern, the fact
along with reasons there of shall bo disclosed;

TS viiiy

An axplanation that significant deviations from
the last year's operating results of the issuer
company shall be highlighted and the reasons
tharaol shall be sxplainad;

1¢5)(xix)

(5 =)

{5 {xxi)

A statement where key operating and financial
data of at lsast preceding & (five) vears shall
be summarized;

An explanation on the reasons ifthe |ssuer |

company has not declared dividend (cash or
stock) for the yeaar;

Board's statement to the effect that no bonus |

share or stock dividend has been or shall bse
declared as Interim dividend;

TThe

Company
declarad
cash dividend

| @& 150%

1(5){xxil)

The total number of Board meetings held
during Lthe year and altendance by each
director;

\I

A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number

{along with name-wise datails whers stated below) held by:

aof shares

(5 )i} (@)

FParent or Subsidiary or Associated
Companiasand other related parties (namaea -
wizse datails);

3

1(53(xxiii}{b)

Directors, Chiel Execulive Oificer, Company
Secretary, Chiel Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audil and Compliance and their
spouses and minor children  (name-wisea
datalis):

2

(5 W x5

Exscutives,and

153 =i} )

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or
more voling interaest in the company (name-
wise dalails);

T(E)(xxivi{a)

A briaf resume of the director;

(5 ) xxiv )b}

Mature of his or her expearise
functlional areas:

in  specific

T (i)

MNames of companies in which the person also
holds the directorship and the membership of
commiltees of the Board,;

T{Sixxv i@}

Accounting policles and estimation for

preparation of financial statements;

1{5){xxv)(b)

Changes In  accounting policles and
estimation. if any, clearly describing the effect
on financial performance or results and
financial position as well as cash flows in
absolute figure for such changes:;

Mot
applicable

(5 (xxv)ic)

Comparative analysis (including effects of
inflation} of financial performance orresults and
financial position aswell as cash flows for
current financial year withimmediately
preceding five years explaining reasons
thereof;

T(S)xxv)iel)

Compare such financial perfformance or resulis
and financial position as well as cash flows
with the peer industry scenaro,;
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{50 e)

Brﬂeﬁy explain the financlal and economic
scenario of the country and the globe,

TS )

Risks and concems issues related (o the
fimancial statements, explaining such risk and
concems miligation plan of the company;

\I

1{Si(=xw)ig)

Future plan or projection or forecast for
company's operation, performance and
financial position, with justification thereof, i.a.,
actual position shall be explained to the

| shareholders in the naxt AGKNM,

W

{5 ) (xvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEDQ and the
CFO to the Board as required under condition
Mo, 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A;

TS v}

The report as well as cerdificate regarding
compliance of conditions of this Code as
required under condition No, 8 shall
bedisclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-
C.

{5 (vl

1(6}

The Direclors’ report to the shareholder does
not reguire to include the business strategy or
technical speciflcation related 1o producls or

“services, which have business confidentiality.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board mastings
and record the minutes of the meetings as well
as Keep required books and records in line
with the provisionsoftherelevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (B53) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered  Secretarias of
Bangladesh (ICSB) in 5o faras those
standards are not inconsistent with any
condition of this Code,

17

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other
Officer

Board mam.hers and C

hief Executive

W7 )Ha)

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct,

based on the recommendation of the
Momination and Remuneration Commitiee
(NRC) al condition No. &, for the Chairperson
of the Board, other board members and Chiaf
Exeautive Officer of the company;

1(7)(b)

The code of conduct as determined by the
NRC shall be posted on the website of the
company inciuding, among others, prudent
conduct and behavior, confidentiality; conflict
of interest; compliance with laws, rules and
regulations; prohibition of insider trading;
relationship  with environment, employees,
customers and suppliers; and independency.

GOVERNANCE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUBEIDIAR‘I' COMPANY

2(a)

Provisions relating to the compaosition of the
Board of the holding company shall be made
applicable to the composition of the Board of
the subsidiary company;

2(b}

At least 1 (one) independent director on the
Board of the holding company shall be a
director on the Board of the subsidiary
company,

JOCL have
no subsidiary

2(c)

60

The minutes of the Board meeting of the
subsidiary company shall be placed for review
at the following Board meeting of the holding

T
E—
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20}

2(m)

| company also;

The minutes of the respective Board meeting
af the holding company shall state that they
have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary

o subsidiary

JOCL have

Co.

The Audit Commities of the haolding company
shall also review the financial statementa, in
particular  the investmants made by the

3

no subsicdiary
Zo

JOZL have

MAMAGING DIREE‘TGH (MD)} OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

FINAMCIAL OFFICER (CFO), HEAD OF
(HIAC) AND COMPANY SECRETARY (CS).

3(1)

OFFICER

INTERMAL AUDIT AND

(CED),
COMPLIANCE

CHIEF

Appointmeant

3(1)a)

(1 b)

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director
(MDD} orChief Executive Officer (CEOD), a
Company Secretary (C5), a Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) and a Head of Inlernal Sodil and
Compliance (HIAC);

Tha positions of the Managing Director (WMD)
arZhief Executive Offlcer (CEO), Company
Secretary (C5), Chiefl Finandcial Officer (CFO)
and Head of Intarnal Audit and Compliance
(HIAC) shall be Filled by different individuats:

31 )

301 3d)

The MD orCED, C5, CFO and HIAC of a listed
company shall not hold any exeoutive position
in any other company at the samsa tima:
Providesd that CFO or CS of any listed
company may be appointed for the same
position  In any other l=ted or $on-listed
company undar the same group for reduction
of cost or for technical expertise, with the prior
approval of the Commission:

Provided further that the remuneration and
perquisitéa of the sald CFO or ©5 shall be
sharod by Appointing (l=lpplel-Talli

proporionately;

The Board shall clearly dafina raspac'twa roles,
responsibilitiees and dutles of the CFO, the
HIAC and the C5;

3(1)e)

3(2)

The MD or CEOQ, S, CFD and HIAC shall not
e removed from  their position  without
approval of the Board as well as immediale
dissemination 1o the Commission and stook

| exchange{s). i
Reguirement to attend Board of Directors’

Mesatings

The MR or CEQ, CS5, CFO and HIAC of thea
company shall attend the mestings of the
Boarc:

Mot
applicable

3(3)

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief

Financial Officer (CFO)

3(3)(a)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to
financial statements for the year and that
belief:

the Board that they have reviewed
to the best of their knowledge and

3(3)(a)i)

These statements deo not contain any
materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements thal might
be misleading:

3(3)(@)(ii)

These statements together presant a true and
fair view of the company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards
and applicable laws;

3(3)(b)

The MD or CEC and CFC shall also certify
that there are, to the best of knowledge and
belief, no transactions entered into by the
company during the year which are fraudulent,
illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for
the company's Board or its members;

3(3)(c)

The certification of the MD or CEOQ and CFO
shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

e
=
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4 BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMITTEE

A} Audit Committee; N
4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee. v
5 AUDIT COMMITTEE
5(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5(1)(a) The company shall have an Audit Committes J

as a sub-commitlee of the Board;

The Audil Committee shall assist the Board in
ensuring that the financial statements reflect
5(1)b) true and fair view of the state of affairs of the W
company and in ensuring a good meonitoring
system within the business;

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to
5(1)(c) the Board; the duties of the Audit Committee i
shall be clearly set forth in writing.

5{2) Constitution of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall be composed of at "
5(2)(a) least 3 (three) members; X

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit
Committee who shall be non-executive
5(2)(b) directors of the company excepting o
Chairperson of the Board and shall include at
least 1 {one) independent direclor;

All members of the audit committes should ba
financially |Rerate”™ and at least 91 (one)
membar shall have accounting or related |
financial managemeant background and 10
{ten) years of such experience:

S5(2)(c)

Vivhen the teErm of sarvice of any
Commitiee member expires or there s any
circumstance causing any Cammittes
membear to be unable to hold office before
expiration of the term of sarvice, thus
making the number of the Committes
S(2¥d) members to be lower than the prescribed Not
number of 2 (three) persons, the Board “Q bi
shall appoint the new Committee member to fill ey Al
up the vacancy immediately or not later than
60 (sixty) days fram the dale of vacancy
in the Committes to ensure continuity of the
parformance of work of the Audit Commities;

5(2)e) The company sacretary shall act as the |
secratary of the Committea;

The guorum of the Audit Committee meeling

S(2)T) ghall not constitute without at least 1 (one) W
independent director.
5{2) Chairperson of the Audit Committee

The Board shall select 1 {one) member of the
Audit Committee to be Chairperson of the |
Audit Committes, who shall be an independent
director;

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committes, the remalning members may elect
ona of themselves as Chairperson for that Mo such
particular meeting, in that case there shall be ciroumstance
na problem of constituting a gQuorum  as arisen  during
required under condition No. S5(d4ib) and the the year.
reason of absence of the regular Chairperson
shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

S{3pa)

S{3}b)

Chairparson of the Audit Commillee shall
5{3}c) remain present in the Annual General Meeting W
(A,
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5(4)

Meeting of the Audit Committee

5(4)(a)

The Audit Committea shall conduct at least its
four meetings in a financial year:

Frovided that any emergency measting in
addilion (o regular meeting may be convened
al the request of any ona of themembars of the
Committes,

S(4)b)

The quorum of the mesting of the Audit
Commitiee shall be constituted in presence of
aglther two meambers or two third of the
members of the Audit Committee, whichever is
higher, wheare presence of an indeapandant
director is a musl.

5(5)

Role of Audit Committee

5(5)(a)

Overses the financial reporting process;

W

5(5)b)

Monitor choice of accounting policies and
principles;

Y

S(5)(c)

5(5)(d)

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process
lo ensure that it is adequately resourced,
including approval of the Internal Audit and
Compliance Plan and review of the Internal
Audit and Compliance Report,
Oversee hiring and performance of external
auditors,;

5(5)e)

Hold meeting with the external or statulory
auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for
approval or adoption;

5(5)(f)

Review along with the management, the
annual financial statements before submission
to the Board for approval,

S(5Ma)

Review along with the management, the
quarterly and half yearly financial statements
before submission io the Board for approval;

5(5)(h)

Review tha adequacy of internal audit function;

S(5)(1)

Raview the Management's Discussion and
Analysis before disclosing n the Annual
Report:

S5(5)0)

Review statement of all related party
transactions submitted by the management;

5(5)(k)

Review Management Letters or Letter of
Internal Control weakness issued by statutory
auditors:

5(5)(1)

Oversea the determination of audit fees based
on scops and magnilude, level of expeartise
deployed and time required for effective audit
and evaluate the performance of external
auditors;

v

5(5)m)

COverses whether the proceeds raised through
Initial Public Offering (IPQ) or Repeat Public
Offering (RPQ) or Righls Share Offer have
been utilized as per the purposes stated in
relevant  offer document or prospeclus
approved by the Commission:

5(6)

Reporting of the Audit Committee

5(6)(a)

Reporting to the Board of Directors

S(6){a)i)

The Audit Committes shall report on its
_activities to the Board,
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Complied | Compliet y
s(6MaI) The Audil Commiltes ahall mmediately repor 1o the Board on the following

finding=, if any: -

s{e)a)i)a)

ot
applicables

S{EHa )]

B(Gadie)

_statemants;

Buspecied of preslmed fraud or irreqularnily or
materinl defect dentified in the internal aodit
and compliance prooess. or 0 the financial

et
apphcakble

Suspected infringement of  lows, ragulatony
complimnoes iroluding securities related  laws,
| Fules and regulathons]

S(E (@) i)ty

S{gkb)

ot
applicable

Ay other matter which the Aodit Commilles
idezems nncu:s;:.ry shall be disclosced to the
Board mmediateal

Mot
applicalkles

Roporting to the Authul‘!tlﬂi

Ir the Audil Committea has reported o the
Board abaul anything which has  matarial
Impact on the financial condition and reasuilts of
operation and bas discussed with the Board
and the managoment that any rectification
I3 meoessary and i the Audit Committaa
finds thal such rectification has Deaan
umresasonably  gnored, the Audil Cammittes
shall report such fnding 1o the Cormumiisshbor,
upon reporting of such matters to the Board for
threa times or complation of & pariod of & (six)
monthe from the date of firet reporting o the
Bioward, whiichieswear is earliar

s5(F)

Mot
applicable

annﬂlng to the Shareholders and General
Invastors

Report on aclivithes  carried oul by the Adcddit
Committeae, inauding any meport madoe o thoe
Board undar condition MNo, S(6}apil above
during  the yaar, shall be signed by tha
Chairperson  of  the Audit Committes  and
disclogted in the annusl reporl of he igssusar
CHMTMIENRI, .

Mo nation and Remuneration Commitises (R

__8
G}

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

B0 a)

=)

Mot
applicalble

The compony shmall bave a Momination  and
Roarmunoraticon Comrmittoom (R f3 1 o
subcammittes of the Board;

B013(1)

The NRC shall assist lhe Board in formukation
of the rormiiraticar oritceriey or  policy for
determining gualifications, positive atrbutes,
expariences and independence of directors
arnd lop-level sxecllive as well as &8 policy for
formal procsss of considaring remunacation of
dirrctors, lop lovel executives;

6(1)(c)

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the MRC
shall be clearly set forth in writing covering the
areas stated at the condition No. 6(5){b}.

6(2)

Constitution of the NRC

Gi2)a)

The Committes shall comprise of at least three
members including an independent directar;

B(2)(b)

Al least 02 {lwo) members of the Commiltes
shall be non-executive directors:

B(2){c)

Members of the Committee shall be nominated
and appointed by the Board;

B(2)(d)

The Board shall have authoarity to remove and
appoint any member of the Committes;

B{2}a)

In case of death, resignation, disguallfication,
or remaoval of any member of the Committes or
in any other cases of vacancies, the board
shall fill the vacancy within 180 {(one hundrad
aighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the
Commities;

Mot
applicable

BL2)(F)

The Chairperson of  the Committes may
appoint or co-opt any external expert andlor
member{s] of stall o the Commilles as
advisar who shall be non-voting member, iF the
Chairperson feels that advice or suggeslion
from such exiemal expert andfor membear(s) of
atall shall be required or valuable for the
Committes;

E{2Z¥a})

B(2){h}

| secretary of the Committes;
The guorum of the NRC meeting shall not

The company secretary shall act as the

i

constitute without attendance of at |east an

indepaendant director;

4
*

)
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S{2)i)

6{3)

Mo member of the MRC shall receive. either
directly or indirectly. any remuneration for any
advisory or consultancy role or otherwise,
other than Director's fees or honorarium from

the company

Chairperson of the NRC

B(3)Ma)

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the
MRC o e Chairperson of 1he Committes, who
shall be an Iindependent director;

B{3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRGC,
the  remaining members may elect one  of
themselves as Chalrperson for that particular
meeating, the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the
minutes;

Mo such
siluation ook
place.

G(3)c)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the
annual genaral meeating (AGM) (o answer the
gueries of the shareholders:

G4}

Maaoting of NRC

Bla)ia)

Bl4)(b)

The NRC shall conduct al least ane rmseling in

a financial yaar,

The Chairporson of the NRC may convene any
amargency meeting upon reguest by any
member of the NROC;

et
appllicable

B(a)c)

Bl4)(d)

The guorum of the meating of the MNRC shall
be constiiuted iIn presence of ellher  wo
meambars oar bwo third of the members of the
Committes, whichever Is higher, whore
presence of an independant director is must as
required under condition Mo, B{2)(H);

Tha proceadings of each meating of tha NRC
shall duly be recordad In the minutes and such
milnutes shall be confinmed in the mext meating
of the MRGC,

6(5)

Role of the NRC

G(5)(a)

MNRC shall be independent and rEEupnnslMe or
accountabla to the Board anmnd 1o the
shareholders;

o

6(3)(b)(i)

MRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with

recommendation to the Board:

formulating the criteria for determining qualifications,
independence of a director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, top level execulive, considerin

positive attributes  and

the following:

B(5)b)(i)a)

The level and composition of remuneration is
reasonable and sufflicient to attract, retain and
motivate suitable directors to run the company
successfully;

6(SHb)i)(b)

6(5)(b)(iMc)

The relationship of remunearation to
performance is clear and meets appropriate

performance benchmarks; i
Remuneration to dwa::tws top level executive

involves a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appraopriate o the
working of the company and its goals;

B(S)(b)ii)

Devising a policy on Board's diversity taking
into. consideration age, gender, experience,
ethnicity, educational background  and
naticnalily;

6(5){b)(iil)

B(SHb)iv)

Identifying persons who are qualified to
become directors and who may be sppointed
in top level executive position in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend

_their appointment and removal to the Board;

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of
performance of independent directors and the
Board;
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Complied | Complied (if any)

Identifying the company's needs for
employeas at different levels and determine
their selection, transfer or replacemant and
promotion criteria; S
Drevverloping, racummund!ng ‘and  reviewing
G5B} annually the company's human resources and +
training policies;

GBS} b}v)

The company shall discloss the nomination

B(5)(c) and remuneration policy and the evaluation J
criteria and activities of NRC during the vear at
a glancea in its annual raport.
7 EXTERNAL OR STATUTORY AUDITORS
7(1) The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform
the following services of the company, namely:
: Appraisal or valuation services or fairness
71a) nEi?‘ulons; ¥
TE1) Financial information  systems  design  and v
implementation;
ZE1)tiii) Book-keeping or other services related (o the J
accounting records or financial statements;
| 7{1)iv) | Broker-dealer services; ~
7(130v) Actuarial sarvices: A
Internal audit services or speclal audit
7 sarvices, i ¥
7010w ;\&yil.mf;::a;'lfﬂ Thal  the  Audil | Cormamilbee J
Audil or certilication services on compllance of
T vl corporate  govemance &8s 2 reguired under o
condition KMo, a(1);
71 }(ih‘.j Ay I:It-F‘l'I'M' sarvice  that oreates conflict of J

interest. = ——— =
Mo partner oF employeess of the axterhal audit
firme shall possass any share of the company
they audit &t least during the toenure of their
audit assigoment of that company; his or her
family members aiso shall not hold any shares
72 in the said company: J
Provided thal spouse. san, daoghter, FfEther,
mother, brother, sister, son-n - lawand dawghter
=in=law shall be considered as family membears.

Representative of extarnal or statutory auditors
Zhall remain presaeant i the Shareholders”
Ti3) Meaeting {Annual SGanaral Meating or W
Extracrdinary Ganaral Meating) to answer the
guiriss of thae shoraboldars . i

8 MAINTAINING A WEBSITE BY 'l'!-lE C(_]MFANY
linked with the website of the stock exchange.

8B(1)

8(2) The company shall keep the website functional J
§ from the date of listing.

The compary shall make availabla the detailed
dizmolosures on ils websilese as reguired uvnder

B3 the listing regulations of the concerned stock =

L] REFORTING AND COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE G'I:IVERNAN!:E

The company shall obtaln & certlificate from a
practicing Profossional Accountant or
Secraetary (Chartersd Accountant or Cost and
Managament Accountant ar Charterad
(1) Seacrelary) other than its statutory auditors ar b

Audit firrm =11 wesarly Basis resgarding
compliancea of conditions of Corporats
Govarnance Code of the Commission and
shall such carlificate Shall be disclosad in the "|:

The pr&feaalanal who o will prowvide  the
cartificate on compliance of this Corporate -
S(2) Govermanose Code shall be appointed by tho LYy
shareholdera i the annual general mesting. = | Accountaits) g,

The directors of the company ahall state, n T
o¢3) accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in i *
the directors’ report whether the cumpany has
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ANNEXURE-T ;
Compliances about Financial Statements:

The financial statements of the company present a true and fair view of the company’s state of
affairs, result of its operations, changes in equity and cash flows.

Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the financial statements and
accounting estimates were reascnable and prudent.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards
(IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

The Internal Control System is sound in design and effectively implementad and monitored.
There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Minority shareholders have been protected from abusive action by or in the interest of controlling
shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress.

ANNEXURE-II ;
The number of board meeting and the attendance of Directors during the year 2023-2024 were as follows:

Name of Directors Position Meeting  Attended  Attendance
held Honorium
Mr. AB M Azad NDC Chairman 13 13 1,56,000
Mr. Md. Amin Ul Ahsan Chairman 02 02 24,000
Mr. Shankar Prasad Dev Independent Director 15 14 1,68,000
Mr. Md. Shamsuddoha | Independent Director ' 15 | 15 ' 1,ﬂu,uiu-u
Mr. Anupam Barua ' Director . 15 15 1,80,000
Mr. A K M Mizanur Rahman Director 15 14 1,68,000
Mr. Dipak Kumar Chakraborty | Director 15 14 1,658,000
Mr. Sk. Md. Belayet Hossen Dirackor 15 15  1,80,000
Mr. Mohammad Hasan ' s ' 15 15 1,80,000
Hisairan | Director |
Mrs. Anika Chowdhury Shareholder Director 15 10 1,20,000
Mr. Md. Gias Uddin Ansary ' Managing Director 15 15  1,80,000
=== e
m=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED 67 |
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ANNEXURE- III :

(i) Pattern of shareholding as on 30 June, 2024

Sl.No. Shares held by No. of share % Remarks
A. Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 6,63,46,780  60.08 Jm"',ljl'l,m'rml L
B. Institutions 35123845 3181
C. Individuals 89,53,975 B.11

(i)

(i)

(iv)

11,04,24,600 100.00

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary,
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Audit
and their spouses:

Directors:

. Mr. Md. Amin Ul Ahsan - -
. Mr. Shankar Prasad Dev - -
Mr. Md. Shamsuddoha - -
Mr. Anupam Barua - -
Mr. A K M Mizanur Rahman - -
Mr. Sk. Md. Belayet Hossen - -
Mr. Dipak Kumar Chakraborty - -
8. Mr. Mohammad Hasan Uzzaman - -
9. Mrs. Anika Chowdhury - 5
10. Mr. Md. Gias Uddin Ansary - -

NO U AW

Chief Executive Officer and his spouses & minor children

Mr. Md. Gias Uddin Ansary - -
Company Secretary and his spouses & minor children

Mr. Md. Masudul Islam - -
CFO and their spouses & minor children

Mr. Mohammed khasru Azad - -
Head of Internal Audit and his spouses & minor children

Mr. Arshad Asgar Chy - -

Executive (Top five salaried person other then CEOQ,CFO,CS,HIA)

1. Mr. Md. Jashim Uddin DGM (Finance) - -
2. Mr. Syed Shahidul Islam DGM (HR) - -
3. Dr. Uttam Barua CMO (Grade M-1) = -
4, Mr. Md. Anwarul Islam  DGM (DLO) - .
5. Mr. Md. Helal Uddin DGM (Operations) - -

Shareholder having ten percent (10%) or more voting
interest in the company:
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 6,63.46.,780  60.08%

E -
rEn| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
L1



ANNUAL REPORT

2023-2024
RE — IV =
Py ) A ANC

Particulars 2023-2024 | 2022-2023 | 2021-2022 | 2020-2021 | 2019-2020
CORPORATE QPERATIONAL RESULT
Product Handiing : Quantity (Lac Metric Ton) 16.81 19,48 18.68 17.51 14.88
Met Earnings on Patroleum Products (Lac Tk.) 13,419.47 13,843.27 12,915.28 11,707.82 10,469.20
Other Operating Incorme e 2,108,83 1,603.31 1,483.13 931.12 3,085.75
Overheads/Expenses " 10,986.77 10,540.10 | 10,424.44 9,664.43 .710.42
Cperating Profit/{Loss) - 4,541.53 4, 906,44 3,973.08 2,974.51 3 844 B3
Finarncial Expenses = 2,168.13 1,B37.43 1,839.9] 1.6878.6% 1,726.31
Other Income ) 55, 73777 42,027.88 22.775.15 26,068.23 26,735.20
Met Profit/{ Loss): before WPP & WF 58,111.17 4509694 | 24,B09.22 | 27,164.09 2B,853.42
Contribution to WPP & WF ' 2,905 55 2,754.85 1,240.45 1,358.20 1,442.67
Share of profit/{loss) of associabes (Net of tax) 7.38 423.76 270.72 220.43 (F92.79)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax o 55,212.97 43,265.85 23, 839.48 26,026,32 26,617.96
Provision for Income Tax " 11,045.61 9,179.61 5,205.65 5,885.89 6,599.47
Net Brofit after Tax “ 44, 167.36 34, 086,24 18,633.83 20,140.43 | 20,018.49
KEY FINAMCIAL INFORMATION
Paid-up Capital (Fig. in Lac Taka) 11,042.46 11,042.46 11,042,496 11,042:46 11,042,486
Number of Shares  (Fig, in Lac Shares) 1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104.25 1,104,25
Met Assete/Sharehoiders Fund (Mg, in Lac Tk} | 2,52,446.65 | 2,26,907.07 | 2,0B,707.01 | 1,90,604.80  1,78,223.73
Met Assots Per Share  {Taka) 23861 205,40 1ED.00 180,54 161 .40
Earming Per Share  (Taka) 40.00 30.87 16.67 18,24 18.13
Dividend Per Share — Cash  (Taka) 15.00 13.00 12.00 12.00 12.00

- Stock - - = - X
Currenl Assels (Fig. in Lac Taka) 9,14.441.13 | 93954534 | 567,719.32 | 34571767 | 3,61,920.43
Currént Liabllitles (Fig. In Lac Taka) 785,192,494 | 645010.94 | 40570105 | 2,94,320.30| 2,99,182.43
Current Ratic 1.18 L1l 1.17 1.17 1.21
Return on Shareholders’ Funds (%) 17:50 15.02 803 10.09 11,23
TOTAL HUMAN RESOURCES . e 462 as9 a8
Executive 8 Officers 121 178 118 132 114
Staff & Workers 372 438 343 | 367 367

Annexure IV (B)

There are three major marketing companies in the petroleum industry namely Jamuna Oil Company
Limited (JOCL)., Meghna Petroleum Limited (MPL) and Padma Oil Company Limited (POCL) under
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC). A comparison of three marketing companies” financial
and operational data during 202 3-2024 are summarized below:

m=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Particulars JOCL MPL POCL
Sales (MT in Lakh) 16.81 23.69 25.95
MNet Earnings on petroleum products 155.28 287.40 305.21
Administrative, selling & distribution expense 95.89 125.61 214.28
Operating expense 131.55 158.30 242.99
Total operating profit 45.42 158.75 145.89 |
Profil after lax 441.67 542.30 408.59
EPS (Taka) 40.00 50.11 41.59
Met Asset Value Per Share (Taka) 228.61 23412 231.56
MNet operating cash flow per share (Taka) 22.88 (46.17) 63.82
Number of employee 443 | 363 853
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Value Added Statement
For The Year Ended 30 June, 2024
| Taka in Lakh
2023-2024 S 2022-2023 W
Walua Added - Nel Earning on Petroleum Products & Others T1,273.43 100.00 57,808.23 100.00
APPLICATIONS :
Governmeant Revonue & Tares 11,444.35 18.06 9473054 16:38
Salaries & Benefits to Emploviees B422.19 a.0 6,225 76 10.75
Administative & Other Expanses 2,768.08 a.88 264250 4 57
Fimancial Expanses 216813 3.04 1.837 .43 AT
Workers Profit Farticipation & Welfare Fund 2,905.56 408 2.254.85 3.80
Dividand ta Sharehalders (Propoged) 16,563.69 23.24 14,355,290 2.7
Ratalned by Thi Campany 2500143 40.68 21,108.55 646
71,.273.43 100.00 57,898.23 100.00
Value Added for The Year 2023-2024
Retiinesd by the Govermment Hevenue & Tox
Campony.
Salirten & Henefis o Emplovecs
Administrative & Other Expenses

Drivadend 1o

Sharcholders T e

: ity \ Finnscial Expenses

— Workers Profil Participation & Welfire Fund
Valoe Added for The Year 2022-2023
Redaimed by the e
Campany Crovernment Revenne & Tax
Salares & Henefits o Eniplovess
Admiinistrtive & Other (S IHETCY
Divicend b i S
Shﬂt‘ehﬂ:[ﬂl‘ﬁ itancial Xt
(Proposed)

— Warkam Profit Pariicipation & Welfire Fand

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED :‘31.:'
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AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

An Audit Committee Comprising of the following members of the  Board of Directors was formed
in compliance with the Bangladesh Sec urities & Exchange Commission No tification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/ Admin/R0 dated 3 June, 2018 :-

Members of the Andit Committee

Mr. Shankar Prasad De v, Independent Director ~ ——- Chairman
Mr. Dipak Kumar Chakraborty , Director = —===-- Member
Mr. Sheikh Mohammad Balayet Hossain, Director e Member
Mr. Md. Masudul Islam, Company Secretary ———— Secretary

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to ensure and to improve the adequacy of internal control
system and provides the wpdate information to the Board of Directors. The commiltee i1s
empowered to examine the matter relating to the financial and other affairs of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all matters  specified under clause-5(5) of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Not ification dated 03 June, 2018, which also
includes the following:-

(a) Oversee the financial reporting process;

(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles:

(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately res ourced.
including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal
Audit and Compliance Report;

(d)  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval or  adoption:

(f) Review along with the management. the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval

() Review along with the management. the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval:

(h)  Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

(i) Review theManagement's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report :

() Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management;

(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Inte mal Control weakness issued by statutory
auditors;

(1) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude. level of expertise
deployed and time required for etfective audit and evaluate the performance of external
auditors; and

The Audit Committee carried out their responsibilities as per the above BSECs Natification and

submitied their report to the Board of Directors.

(=~

{Shankar Prasad De v)
Chairman
Audit Commitlee

|82 m=n| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE’S REPORT

ANomination and Remuneration Committee Comprising of the following members of the Board of
Directors was formed in compliance with the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission
Notification No, BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June, 201 ¥:

Members of the Audit Committee

Mr. Md. Shamsuddoha, Independent Director —-—---  Chairman
Mr. A K M MizanurRahman, Director e Member
Mr. Mohammad HasanUzzaman, Director ~ —— Member
Mr. Md. Masudul Islam, Company Secretary  -—---- Secretary

% -~ : - - — S .

Ihe purpose of NRC to assist the Board in formulati on of the nomination criteria of policy for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend a
policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive

The terms of reference of NRC cover all matters specified under clause -6(5) of the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission Notification dated 03 June. 2018, which also includes the
following:-

1. Owersee the appointment procedur ¢ and remuneration of Director and top level executive of the

company.

Oversee Board's diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,

educational background and nationality .

3. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in top
level executive position In accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend their
appointment and removal to the Board

4. Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board.

5. Identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their
selection, transfer orreplacement and promotion criteria; and

b

6. Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and
training policies:

The Nomination and Remuneration Commutteecarried out their responsibilities as per the above
BSEC's Notification and submitted their report to the Board of Directors.

(%r

(Md. Shamsuddoha)
Chairman
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED &4
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T==n JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

wme| DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

INTRODUCTION:

The Dividend Distribution Policy is preparcd and adopted in compliance with the requirements of the

Directive No. BSEC/CMRECD/2021-386/03 dated 14 January, 2021 of the Bangladesh Securities and

Exchange Commission (BSEC) regarding the dividend declaration, pay off, disbursement and compliance.

OBJECTIVE:

The ebjective of this Policy is to lay down the eriteria and parameters that are to be considered by the Board

of Directors of the Company while decidimg on the declaration of Dividend from time to time. This Policy 15

applicable to dividend declared/recommended on the equity shares of the Company.,

DEFINITIONS:

“the Act” means The Companies Act 1994

“the Company” means Jamuna Oil Company Limited

“AGM™” means Annual General Meeting

“Board” means Board of Directors of Jamuna Oil Company Limited

*Shareholders™ means Members whose name is registered in the Member Register of the Company,

“Shares” means Ordinary Equity Shares,

CONCEPT OF DIVIDEND:

Dividend is the share of the profit that a Company decides to distribute among its Shareholders in proportion

ter the amount paid-up on shares they hold in the form of Cash and/or Stock (Bonus). The profits eamed by the

Company can either be retained in the business or can be distributed among the Shareholders as dividend.

TYPES OF DIVIDEND:

The Act deals with two types of dividend - Interim and Final.

- Imterim dividend is the dividend declared by the Board between two AGMs as and when considered
appropriate. The Act authorizes the Board to declare interim dividend during any financial vear out of the
profits for the financial year in which the dividend is sought to be declared and/or out of the surplus in the
profit and logs account.

- Final dividend 15 recommended for the financial year at the time of approval of the annual Anancial
statements as well as appropriation of profit. The Board shall have the power to recommend final dividend
to the sharcholders for their approval af the AGM of the Company. Dividend recommended by the Board
of Directors cannot be changed prior to halding of the AGM.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND:

Dividend shall be declared or paid only out of —

1) Current financial year’s profit,

a. after providing for depreciation in accordance with law:
b. after transferring to reserves such amount as may be prescribed or as may be otherwise considered
appropriate by the Board at its discretion and as per applicable law.

2} The profits for any previous financial yvear{s) atter providing for depreciation in accordance with law and
remaining undistributed,;

3 In case of madequacy or absence of profits in any financial year, the Company may also declare/pay
Dividend out of the accumulated profits carned by it in previous vedrs and transferred h}' the Company o
the reserves, provided such declaration/payment of dividend shall be made only in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

FINANCIAL PARAMETERS CONSIDERED WHILE DECLARING DIVIDEND

The financial parameters that may be considered betore declaring dividend are profitability, ¢
future growth and profitability outloo : COmpy

B4 T=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH SHAREHOLDERS MAY NOT EXPECT DIVIDEND:

a. Due to losses incurred by the Company and the Board considers it appropriate not to declare dividend for
any particular year;

b, Due to operation of any other law in force;

¢, Uncertainty of the earnings/financial results of the Company;

d.  The availability of oppoertunities for reinvestments of surplus funds and

¢, Any other corporate action resulting in cash outflow.

FACTORS AFFECTING DIVIDEND DECLARATION:

a) External Factors to be considered while recommending/ declaring dividend

= Any significant changes in macro-economic environment affecting Bangladesh or the geographies in
which the Company operates, or the business of the Company or of its clients:
*  Any political, tax and regulatory changes in the geographies in which the Company operates;
= Any significant change in the business or technological environment resulting i the Company muking
significant investments to effect the necessary changes to its business model;

*  Any changes in the competitive environment requiring significant investment.
b} Internal Factors to be considered while recommending/ declaring dividend

Apart from the various external factors, the Board will take into account vanous internal factors ineluding

the financial parameters while declaring dividend, which inter alia will include:

= Expected cash requirements of the Company including working capital, capital expenditure

*  Quarterly and Annual [inancial resulis

» Investments including Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A)

= Expansion and Modermzation

»  Free cash flow generation

»  Funds required to service any outstanding loans

= Research and development;
¢} Retained Earnings

Retained earnings would be used to further the company's business priorities. If there are excess reserves

beyvond the medium to long tenm business requirements, the retained eamings would be distributed to

shareholders via Dividends or other means as permitted by applicable regulations.
PARAMETERS FOR VARIOUS CLASSES OF SHARES:
Currently, the Company does not have different classes of shares. I the Company has more than one class of
shares in future, dividend for each class would be subject to preseribed statutory guidelines as well as terms of
offer of each class to the mnvestors of that class of shares.
PUBLICATION OF POLICY:
This Dividend Distribution Policy shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company and on the
Company’s website www_ jamunaoil. gov.bd If the Company proposes to declare dividend on the basis of any
additional parameters apart from those mentioned in the Policy or proposes to change the parameters contained
in this Policy, it shall disclose such changes along with the rationale for the same in the Annual Report and on
the website.
EFFECTIVE DATE:
This Policy has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 17" December
2022 and shall be effective and applicable for dividend. if any. declared for the Financial Year 2021-22 onwards.
REVIEW & AMENDMENT
This Policy may be reviewed and amended as and when required by the Board to ensure that_imeets the
objectives of the relevant legislation and needs of the Company and remains effective. The Boafd has the right
to change/anyendyhe polic may be expedient taking into account the law for the eing in force.

== JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED 85)
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Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co Shafig Basak & co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders of JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Statement of Financial Position of JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED (“the
Company™), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024, the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity.the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualitied
Opinion paragraph. the accompanying financial statements, prepared in accordance with
International Accounting Standards (1ASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2024 and results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act 1994,
Securitics and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for qualified opinion

1. Trade Receivables (Taka 2.241,662.589) mcludes Taka 134,578,955, Taka 50,100,405 and Taka
5.770,737as receivable from Power Development Board, Bangladesh Chemical Industries
Corporation and Chattogram City Corporation respectively which is carried forward since long,
The company made correspondences with parties to realize the outstanding balances but no
satisfactory response has been obtained till to date (Note # 08.00). No provision has been
maintained in accordance with paragraph 5.5.15 of IFRS-9 considering lifetime expected credit
losses, as such net profit has been overstated to that extent.

I

ltemized list of Property, Plant and Equipment consisting year of purchase/construction.
depreciation rate, written down value, users, and location. ete.. is not maintained by the
company. As such, physical verification of fixed assets could not be done in absence of detailed
register. Moreover, we did not observe any physical counting of fixed assets by management as
a part of internal control.

3. The Company owns total 59,9703 acres of frechold land valued at taka 27,849,084, out of which
land measuring 2.30 acres are yet to be registered in the name of the company. Out of the
freehold land, land measuring 1.7116 acres possessed by Chittagong Dry Dock Lid and 0.3859
acres of land acquired by the Chittagong Development Authority for constructing airport road
without payvment of compensation to the company. The company has no agreement with
Chittagong Dry Dock Ltd for using possession although the company sent several reminders to
Chittagong Diry Dock Ltd. to execute lease agreement or to return the possession of the land.
Eventually, the Company is deprived of economic benefit that could have been generated from

Gy, the said asset (Note —3.2).

No balance confirmation certificate has returned by the related party to verify the am
4 Taka 62,195,655,096 of related party balance (Note -36.00).
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Emphasis of Matters

I.  Revenue from marketing of refined Petroleum Oil, Lubricants, L.P, Gas and Bitumen has been
disclosed as net basis by offsetting direct cost (cost of goods sold) which is non-compliance to
paragraph 32 and 33 of IAS-1.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance n
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statement as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Revenue Recognition
Refer to note 20.00 and 21.00
The Key Audit Matter

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Company and therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management to meet specific targets or expectations.

We focused on the proper cut-off of sales to the Company's customers due to the fact that the
documents of confirming.

The acceptance of the products (HOBC, MS, SKO, HSD, FO, LSFO, IBO, LP Gas, Lubricants,
Bitumen etc.) were provided by numerous dealers/ customers based in different depots. There is a risk
of differences between the timing of acceptance of the products by the Company’s customers and
when revenue was recorded. Accordingly, there could be potential misstatements that these revenue
transactions are not recognized in the proper reporting periods.

How Our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters
We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls focusing on the following: -

%  We conducted substantive testing of revenue recorded over the year using sampling techniques,
by examining the relevant supporting documents mcluding sales invoices and challans,

%  We have checked the Gowvt. gazed regarding sales price and commission thercon with DO,
invoice and party ledger to confirm the Net Earmnings during the year.

4  Furthermore, we tested the sales transactions recognized shortly before and atter the reporting date.

2. Measurement of Deferred Tax

Refer to note 15.00

The Key Audit Matter

The Company recognizes deferred taxes relating to property, plant and equipment, investment in

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED




ANNUAL REPORT

2023-2024
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co Shafiq Basak & co.
Chirtered Accountimis Chartered Accountants

How Our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters
Our audit procedures in this area included, among others: -

% Assessed the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key controls in respect of
the Company and the process of recognition of deferred taxes.

% Using our own tax specialists to evaluate the tax bases and Company tax strategy.
#  Asscssed the accuracy and completeness of deferred tax, and
%  Evaluating the adequacy of the financial statement’s disclosures, including disclosures of

assumptions, judgments and sensitivitics, We involved tax specialists to assess key
assumptions, control recognition and measurement of deferred tax liabilities/{ Assets),

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management 1s responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report. but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.,

Our opinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 15 a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020
and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines 1s
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 18 responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of aceounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

: !_38 e JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and mmintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also: -

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statement or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors” report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease o continue as going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company’s audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding., among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We described these matters in our auditors” report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020, we also
report the following: -

a)  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof:

b}  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appeared from our examination of those books:

¢}  the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

d)  The expenditures incurred were for the purposes of the Company’s business.

St

Showkat Hossain, FCA Md. Shafiqul Istam, FCA
Enrollment No, 0137 Enrollment No, 0595

Senior Partner Senior Partner

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co Shafiq Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2412040137A8427581 DVC: 241204013TAS4275%1
Place: Chattogram Place: Chattogram

Dated : (4 Dec 2024 Dated : (04 Dec 20024
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JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
ASSETS bl ts ” Taks Taks
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant & Equipment 3 EL1ETE 2094 B51,971.731
Capital Waork-in-Progress 4 1376008314 1089, 158,589
Loy Tasttnn liyvestiet 5 11,133,4%]1.340 12.233.321.210
Investment in Aszociate 5.4 196,295 193 195, 558,968
13,51 7,658,145 14370012498
CURRENT ASSETS
Short Term Investment s 1, Eal, 00 15,9000 AR ()
Inmvenones T 19,083,137, 727 14261, 712457
Accounts & Other Recervablo 3 3,223 451 388 2.298.542.061
Advances, Deposits & Pre-pivments . 14, 765,60T4.43] 24.531.055.088
Cashand Cash Equivalenis ik 35,771 B45 285 3L 063324747
GL444.112.831 43,954,6014,353
TOTAL ASSETS 10:4,961.770.97h0 108, 324.6:46,851
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share Capital I 1,10, 246,060 1, 10,246,000
Capital Reserve L3 152,833,103 152,833,103
Crenernl Reserve 13 12 500, 000, 08 11,5000 LRI, (M)
Fuir Vilue Gain On Investment 5.3 4,517,992 273 4,945 340149
Retaned Edrnimgs 13.1 6,969 594 110 4988 377 505
TOTAL EQUITY 25, 244,665,500 22,690, 796.757
MON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Gratuity 14 943 487,500 024 06,178
Ereferred Tax Linbilicy I3 254373546 207,794,658
1 197,861.046 1,132,755 836
CURRENT LIARBILITIES
Creditors & Accrunls Iy T6,546,367,224 B3 130928673
Creditors For Cither Finance 17 348.401,002 485,004 48 |
Income Tax Poyable | # I, 115,853,450 BTT. 446,758
Uneclaimed Dividend 16 7,562,648 7,714,346
TR,519.244,424 H4.501,004,258
TOTAL LIABILITIES TRT1LT 05470 HE.633, 450,004
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 100,961, 7T ThH T 324,646,451
Contingent Liahilities, Assets and Commitments 37 -
Mot Assers Value (NAV) Per Share 28 221861 20549

The wmexed nedes from (1 o 44 are an integral port of these finoncial stniements
I'husi finpmen] statemants should be redd in conpunetion with the annesed notios
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JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Shalig Basak & co.
Chartered Accountants

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
™
i Taka Taka

Net Earnings on Petrofeum Praducts 20 1,341,947,127 1,384,327,379
Oither Operating Income 21 210,882,636 160,331,377
Total Income 1.552.829.763 1.544,658,756
Expenses
Administrative, Selling and Distribution Expenses 22 (958,901,187) (916,258.5897)
Depreciation 3:1 (139, 775,682) (137.751.423)

(1.098.676.869) (105401032
Operating Profit / (Loss) 454,152,804 400,648,436
Finuncial Expenses 23 (216.813.28T) (183,743.317)
Uther Income 24 5573777288 4,202, 788.428
Net Profit 5.811,116.895 4.509,693,547
Contribution to Workers' Profil Participation and
Welfare Fund @ 3% of Net Profit 16.2.1 (290,555,845) (225,484.677)
Share of Profit/{ Lass ) of Associates {Net Off Tax) 54.7 T36:225 42.5376.240
Profit before Income Tax 5521.297.278 4,326,585.110
Income Tax{Expenses)/ Benefits:
Current 18 {1035 489.968) (812,445.544)
Deferred 15 (69.070.882) (105.515.275)

(1,104,560.850) (917.960,819)
Profit after Income Tax 4.416.736.,425 3.408.624.291
Other Comprehensive Income
Unrealized Gains/{ Loss) on Available-for-Sale
Frnanecial Assets 5.1 (449,839 870) (277,298.550)
Deferred Tax on Un-Realized Gain/ Loss 22.49] 904 13,864,927
Total Comprehensive Income 3,989, 388,549 3,045, 190,668
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 27 40.00 J0RT

The annexed notes fromm 01 to 49 are an intégral part of thesye financial statements,
These lnancial stmements should be reod in conjunction with the annexed notes
el were spproved by the Board of Dirsctors on 01 12,2024
and were signed on 15 behal by
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Géneril Lok Retained
Purticulars ” i Cip Rame Riserve hﬁ::;:ﬂ Earnings o

vk | %k | Ve || Taw || ek | Taha |
Balance as o 01 July 2023 | s | vsaanion | oseesean | dmsaeas | semames || nenmensT |
Final Cash Dividend fur 2023 - (LA35.519.400) (1435 519,001
(tbver Coemprehensiog [sooms: (449 839 571 (49 839 800y
Mt it forthe Yenr - - 4 410,736,425 4410736423
s Tt o - Rl G : 32 401,994 23491954
Trnnsfirmed o General Resorve 1,00, D01 101 o (N O |

- 000,000,000 WSTAT 1ORL2IRRS 563,468,140
Mot Mawe 22 | szeeme ] isasan | nsoseon | asmenan ]| esmssin || ssaseessie
{Ralance 3¢ on 81 July 2022 | wogieom | sem] s | e
Finil Czsh Dividend for 3022 (1,125, [105 2005 {11 325,155, 2000
[ther Comprehensive [mcome - - (XTI, 550 (277,208,550
Nt i o the Ve ; : 140064291 3408 424,291
Defsred Tk on UnResisd ks VAT 13864927
Transfermed to General Reserve - |,|IH|I|H;|'.I,1HH? {0 IR EEN DDy I
: - 100,000,000 CRALES  LORLSe | 520,095,468

BalanessatWlane 203 | oo | s | nseseen | amsyean | assomas| e
[Niteia) | 1l I 12 I 11 I 5. | 13|

The anmexed notes from 01 to 44 ape an imfegral part of these financial statements.,
These fimancial statements shaould be read in conjunetion with the annexed notes
and wete spproved by the Board of Directorson 01, 12.2024
and were signed omits hehalf by

e

Director
Signed m termis of our separate report ofeven date annexed

f.'m&lny Secretury

Munaging Director
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JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

: 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
MNote(s
i Taka Taka
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Ciross Collection from Margin basis Product Supply
& Other Income 25 20921 337,627 238,330,217.586
Payment for Product Cost and Other Expenses 26 (A5 A3 816 25T (225,183,239.307)
Bank Charges 13 {7.698,098) (7.578,794)
Fncome Tax Paid 9.1 (1,235,801.549) {1,102,104,24()
Cash Inflow/(Outtflow) from Operating Activities (A) 2.526,021,723 12,037,294,749
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment 3l (99,675,253) (82,083,774
Capital Work-in-Progress 4 (286,849, 725) (126, 70K 984,
Investment in Fixed Deposit Receipt 5.2:& 41 1 2,050,000,000) {6,080, 000,000
Interest on Fixed Deposit 24 8 82 1. 500,680,014 1.173,838,275
Interest on SND 24 3.260.181,156 2.520.566,345
Dividend Receipt 2 308,109,500 308, 109,500
Proceed from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 24.1 21,298,001 441 809
Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (B) 2.651,743,602 (2,265,819,82%)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid 19 (1,432,458,393) (1,333.011,673)
Transfer to C.M.5.F, ] {3,183, 105) =
Creditors For Cther Finance 17 64,396,621 |6.544.610
Cash Inflow/{Outflow) from Financing Activities (C) (1L3TI244.877) (1,316467,063)
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash & Cash Eqguivalents for the
Year {A+RB+() 3. 808,520,538 RAS5.007 857

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 11.963,324,747 23 508,316,890
Unrealized Ciaim or Loas on Foreipn Comrency Transaction = =

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 35,771,845,185 31,963,324,747
Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share 29 22.58 (XN}

The annexed notes from 01 tod4 are an integral partof these financial statemsents.
These financial statements shouwld be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
and were approved by the Board of Directors on 01.12.2024
and were signegron its behal by

w0
o
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Cor ny Secretary Managing Director Dhirecior Director
Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

THE COMPANY & ITS OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated on 12 March 1975 as Private Limited Company under the
Companies Act 1913. Subsequently it converted into a Public Limited Company on 25 June
2007 vide special resolution dated 03 June 2007 under the Companies Act 1994 (amendment
in 2020) The company listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock
Exchange (CSE) in 2008, The registered office of the Company is situated at Jamuna Bhaban,
Agrabad C/A, Chattogram.

The company acquired all the properties, rights, interests, and assets of Bangladesh National
Oils Limited (ex-Pakistan National Oils Limited) which were vested in Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation under an agreement entered into between the Company and the Corporation,
based on the audited financial statements of the Company as on 31 December 1976, The
Company also acquired all the propertics, rights, interests and assets of Indo-Burma
Petroleum Company Limited (a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation) on 01
January 1986 based on the audited financial statements of IBPCL as on 31 December 1985,
Vendor's agreement to this is yet to be executed.

The Company is functioning as a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation. The
business of the company is marketing of refined Petroleum Oil, Lubricants, L.P. Gas and
Bitumen.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION POLICIES
Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information made in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange
Rules 2020, other applicable laws and regulations and the International Accounting Standards
(IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).

The Board of Directors are responsible for preparing and presenting the financial statement
including adequate disclosures, who approved and authorized for issue of these financial
statements. The Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income have been prepared according to TAS |- “Presentation of Financial
Statements™ based on accrual basis of accounting following going concern assumption under
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in Bangladesh and cash flow statement
according to [AS 7 - “Statement of Cash Flows".

Presentation of Financial Statements
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The Financial Statements comprises:

= Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024;

= Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2024,
+  Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2024;

«  Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2024,

«  Notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.3 Principal accounting policies

The specific accounting policies sclected and applied by the Company’s management for
significant transactions and events that have matenal effect within the framework of 1AS-1
“Presentation of Financial Statements”, in preparation and presentation of financial
statements have been consistently applied throughout the year and were also consistent with
those used in earlier years.

For a proper understanding of the financial statements, these accounting policies are set out
below in one place as prescribed by the IAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements™, The
recommendations of TAS-1 relating the format of financial statements were also taken into full
consideration for fair presentation.

24  Application of Standard

The following [ASs/IFRSs are applied to the financial statements for the year under review:

1AS | Presentation of Financial Statements

[AS 2 Inventories

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

IAS 8 Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
IAS 10 Events After the Reporting Period

[AS 12 Income Taxes

IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

IAS 28 Investment in associates

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

IAS 33 Earmings Per Share

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosure

I[FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IERS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

[FRS 16 Leases
2.5  Application of new Standards (IFRS 16) vet to adopt

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) has adopted following new
standard and amendment to standard-

_ IFRS -16 Leases

“accounting. lssued in January 2016, the new IFRS is replaced the existing guidance in [AS
leases. [FRS 16 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2019.

; m=e
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2.6 Reporting Period
The linancial statements cover one year from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024,

2 Authorization for Issue

The financial statements have been duly authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 01
December 2024 for the year ended 30 June 2024.

2.8  Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is
the Company’s functional currency. All financial information has been rounded off to the
nearest Taka except where indicated otherwise.

2.9  Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year ended 30 June 2023 for all
numerical information in the financial statements and the narrative and descriptive
information where it is relevant for understanding of the current year’s financial statements.
Figures for the year ended 30 June 2023 have been re-arranged wherever considered
necessary to ensure better comparability with the current year.

2,10 Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with IFRS/ IAS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, mcome and expenses, and disclosure
reguirements for contingent assets and liabilities during and at the date of the financial
statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recogmzed in the period in
which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8:
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

2.11 Related Party Disclosure

Parties arc considered to be related if one of the parties has the ability to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and nperalmg
decisions. The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on arm'’s
length basis at commercial rates with related parties. Related party disclosures have been
given in note 36,

2.12  Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of “1AS
7: Statement of Cash Flows™. The cash generated from operating activities has been reported
using the Direct Method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules. 2020 and as
encouraged by IAS7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments
from operating activities are disclosed.

2,13  Accounting Convention and Assumption

The financial statements have been prepared based on historical cost convention basis and
accordingly adjustment has been made for inflationary factors affecting the financial
statements. The accounting policies, unless otherwise stated, have been consistently applied
by the Company and are consistent with those of the previous year.

2.14  Going Concern
The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for near future. For this reason,

meet the present requirements of its existing businesses and operations,

a1 JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED 97)
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2,15  Materiality and Aggregation
Each material item as considered by management significant has been presented separately in
financial statements. No amount has been set off unless the Company has a legal right to set
off the amount and intends to settle on net basis,

Income and Expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the relevant
accounting standards.

2.16  Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at
cost less aceumulated depreciation and the capital work-in-progress (when arises) is stated at
cost in compliance with the requirements of “IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equpment”, The
cost of acquisition of an assct comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use inclusive of inward freight,
duties and non-refundable taxes.

Maintenance Activities

The company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of property, plant and equipment.
Repairs and maintenance costs are charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the
cost of replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied with the items will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period in which
it is incurred. In situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the
non-current assets, the expenditure is capitalized as an additional cost of the assets. All other
costs are recognized to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as
expenses if incurred. All are up-gradation/enhancement is generally charged off as revenue
expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment

On disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated and gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the Statements of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income, which is determined with reference to the net book value of
the assets and net sales proceeds.

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Depreciation for an asseteeases at earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale

in accordance with [FRS-5 and the date that the asset 15 derecognized, The depreciation__

method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by nsq,l}
entity. After considering the useful life of assets as per IAS-16 "Property, plant [ iif-'.'fl»ﬁ,g

equipment”. the annual depreciation have been applied equally over useful life of assets wh
is considered reasonable by the management.

98 oxen| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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The rates at which assets are depreciated per annum are given below:

Category of Assets Annual Rate (%)

Building 5-10

Tank and Pipe Lines 5-15

Plant & Machinery 7.5

Up-Country Depols Tid

Service & Filling Stations 10

Pumps Filling & Fire Fighting Equipment 5-15
Laboratory Office & EngineeringEquipment  7.5-15

Vehicles & Other Rolling Stock 20
Railway and Jeity 5-7.5
Furniture & Fixtures 5-20
Returnable Packages 20
Oil Tanker M. T. Jamuna & Others 10

2.17  Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant
mfluence is the power (o participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Company’s investment in associates is accounted for in the Financial Statements using
the Equity Method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the
investor's share of the profit or loss of the nvestee after the date of acquisition which is
classified as non-current assets in the statement of financial position. The investor’s share of
investee’s profit or loss is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Company’s share of the results of operations of the
associate. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the
associate. the company recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement
of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
company and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

2.18 Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value as prescribed by “1AS 2:
Inventories™, Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis. The cost of inventories
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price
less any further costs expected to be incurred to make the sale.

c ' of Stocl Basis of Valuati
Petroleum Products Valued at cost, those from at ERL transfer Pri
Other Products and Store & Spares Weighted average cost.
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2.19  Accounts Receivable

2.20

2.21

2,22

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given mn return, After imitial recognition, these are carmied at cost less
impairment losses, if any, due to un-collectability of any amount so recognized.

Provision for doubtful debts is made based on the company policy. Bad debts are written off
on consideration of the status of individual debtors.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand and cash at banks have been considered as the cash and cash equivalents for
preparation of these financial statements as there was insignificant risk of changes in value of
these current assets.

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

Investment in shares of listed company has been valued at fair value being year-end stock
exchange quoted price in compliance with the requirements of 1AS-39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement™. The said investment has been considered as
available-for-sale and presented as long-term investment, and accordingly, the gain on
revaluation has been shown under “Other Comprehensive Income™ in compliance with the
said [AS-39,

Investment in other shares is valued at cost, intrinsic value was not considered.
Accounts Payvable & Accruals

Trade and Other Payvables
Liabilities are recorded at the amount payable for settlement in respect of goods and services
recetved by the company, whether or not billed by the supplier.

Provision
The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with International Accounting
Standards IAS - 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenucs
and expenses, assets and liabilities during and at the date of financial statements.
In accordance with the guidelines as prescribed by IAS 37, provisions were recognized in the
following situation;

* When the company has a present obligation as a result of past events;

« When it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation: and

* Reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligation
Management has shown the provisions in the statements of financial position at an appropriate
level with regard to an adequate provision for risks and uncertainties. An amount recorded as
a provision represented the best estimate of the probable expenditure required to fulfill the
current obligation on the financial position date.
Other provisions are valued in accordance with TAS 37 — “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets™. Other provisions comprise all recognizable risks from uncertain

@
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2.23

2.24

225

2.26

ke 3
el

%\ Provision for Workers’ Profit Participation & Welfare Fund has been made @ 5% of net pr

Comparative Information and Reclassification

Comparative information has been disclosed for all numerical imformation in the financial
statement and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for
understanding of the current period financial statements. To facilitate comparison, certain
relevant balances pertaining to the previous period have been rearranged/reclassified
wherever considered necessary to conform to current period’s presentation.

Restatement of Comparative Figures

Comparative figures of these financial statements are rearranged, if necessary.

Revenue Recognition

Income i.e., Margin on products supplied by BPC and other gas companies are recognized
after delivery of goods to the customers.

The Company is engaged in marketing of oil products. The income it eamns is termed, as
‘Margin’ that is fixed and determined by the Government, Jamuna has no control over fixing
the price of the products. Company records ‘Purchase” while receiving supply and ‘Sales’
while making delivery of the same considering the nature of business and its earmning, the
management changed the presentation of financial statements in the year 2005-2006.
According to the changed policy, sales net of cost of goods sold (net earnings from petroleum
products) has been directly presented in the financial statements. Before 2005-2006 purchases
and sales were separately shown in the financial statements.

Dividend income 1s recognized on approval of the said dividend in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) and interim dividend is recognized after record date of relevant company:.
Stock dividend (Bonus Shares) i1s not considered as revenue.

Interest on fixed deposit is accounted for on accrual basis.

Employee Benefits

Employee’s Provident Fund

The company operates a contributory provident fund scheme for its permanent employees.
Provident fund 1s administered by a Board of Trustees and is funded by contributions partly
from employees and partly from the company at pre-determined rates. These contributions are
invested separately from the company’'s assets.

Employees Gratuity

In accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 25.03,2015 gratuity scheme
has been followed. Under this scheme the employees are entitled to 2 (two) months basic
salary plus D.A. after completion of | (one) year but less than 10 (ten) years of service in the
Company. In case of service life exceeding 10 (ten) years, the employees are entitled to
gratuity payment as per scheme. The Gratuity liability has been created in the financial
statements as per guideline of IAS - 8, Para - 25, "Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors’.

Insurance
Employees are covered under the Group Insurance Scheme.

Warkers® Profit Participation & Welfare Fund (WPP & WF)

as per provision of the Bangladesh Labor Law 2006 and is payable as defined in the law.

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED 101)



ANNUAL REPORT

2023-2024

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co Shafig Basak & co.
Chartered Accountanls Charlered Accountanls
2.27  Income Tax Expenses

2.28

2.29

2.30

Income tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expenses is
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and
accounted for in accordance with the requirement of [AS 12 - Income Taxes.

Current Tax

Current Tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years. The Company qualifies as a “Publicly Traded
Company™; hence the applicable tax rate is 20.00% as preseribed in the Finance Act, 2023 &
ITO-1984/TTA-2023, Tax on dividend has been provided at applicable rate.

Deferred Tax

The Company has recognized deferred tax using balance sheet method in compliance with the
provisions of IAS 12: Income Taxes. The Company’s policy of recognition of deferred tax
assets/liabilities is based on temporary differences (taxable or deductible) between the
carrying amount (book value) of assets and habilities for financial reporting purpose and its
tax base, and accordingly, deferred tax income/expenses has been considered to determine net
profit after tax and Eamings Per Share (EPS). A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available, against which temporary
differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent liabilities are current or possible obligations, arising from past events and whose
existence is due to the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events,
which are not within the control of the Company. In accordance with IAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets”, Contingent liabilities and commitments are
disclosed in note-37 of the financial statements.

Proposed Dividend

The amount of proposed dividend has not been accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements (Note- 40) along with dividend per share in accordance with the
requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1: Presentation of
Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standard
(IAS) 10: Events after the Reporting Period, because no obligation exists at the time of
approval of financial statements and recommendations of dividend by the Board of Directors.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS 33 - Earnings per Share
- dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Basic earnings represent the earnings for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders.

Diluted Earnings Per Share
No diluted EPS is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution
during the year under review.

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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2.31

2,32

2.33

2.34

5 e
JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED 1.51'?:_}

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing on
the respective dates of transaction. The monetary assets and liabilities, if any, denominated in
foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated at applicable rates of exchange ruling at
that date. Exchange rate differences are charged as Revenue Expenditure in compliance with
the provisions of IAS - 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.”

However, there were no foreign currency transactions during the year under review.

Concentrations

The Company has significant concentration of business transacted with a particular supplicr,
BPC, If business with BPC is stopped suddenly, it will severely affect the company’s
operation.

The company does not have a concentration of available sources of labor, services. or licenses
or other rights that could, if suddenly ecliminated, severely affect the operations of the
company.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors

The Board of Director is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements,

Financial Risk Management
The company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the company’s risk management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s
activities. The company has exposure 1o the following risks from its use of financial
instruments.

e Credit nisk

e Liquidity risk

& Market risk

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the
company 's receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to credit risk is
monitored or an ongoing basis. Risk exposure from financial assets, i.e., Cash at Bank and
other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. Typically, the company ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents
to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of
the cash flow forecast, prepared based on timeline of payment of the financial obligation and
accordingly arranged for sufficient Liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due
date.
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In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the
form of shert term [nancing.

Market Risk

Market risk 1s the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and
interest that affect the company’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters.

o Currency Risk

Asg at 30 June 2024 there was no exposure to currency risk as there were no foreign
currency transactions made during the year under review.

® Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There
was no loan which is subject to floating rates of interest, The company has not entered into
any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest rate as at the reporting date.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Taka Taka
3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
A. Cost
Opening Balance 2,434 3R] 47R 2356472714
Addition durnng the vear 90.675,253 #2.085.774
2.534.056,731 2.438,558,490
Deletion during the vear {10,575 880) (4,177,013
Closing Balance (A) 1517,480,845  2,434,381.478
B. Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 1,582.407,747 1,448, 718,690
Depreciation Charged during the year 139,775,682 137,751,423
1,722,183.429 1.586.470.113

Adjusted durimg the year (16,575.882) (4,062 366)
Closing Balance (B) 1.705.607.547 1.582.407.747
Written Down Value (WDV) [A-B] B11.873.298 851,973,731

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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4 CAPFITAL WORK-IN-FROGRESS
Crpenimg Bulomce
Expeenditure incurred during the year - nate 4.1

Capitalized during the year-note 4, |
Closing Balanee

Shafiq Basak & co,
Lh.jr!n:-wd Accountanis

30 June 2024 “ 30 June 2023
Tuk

Takn ]

TR, 98,8 P EET)
175,722 467 150,741, 454
1464, 981,056 L1342, 190.563

(BR.ET2T40)

(53.031,975)

4.1 The break up of Capital Work-in-Progress - note 4
Al Fipunntines Cupitalized Al
Particulars 01 July incurred during the 30 June
2023 during the year 024
year
i) Chattogram Terminal:
Automiation of Main Installation of Theee Oil Co. 6885170 10,137 868 AGYA3 03
HSD Pipelenes for Three O Companies-5PM 2121006 2121000
Expansion ol L1-3 & Expansion of PipeLing from L1-3 1o DOJ-3 - T A A 97 46600
Elecirial Renosation Works in Main Inssallation/CTO 2308 0 2339, (00
Automation of Depots of Theee (il Co. 03258447 03,252,427
i} Chattogram Office:
[Mesdiel Filling Suation - Architechiura] Works EIEEEEN| Il EIEER | -
iil) Dhaks Lintson Office:
Constroemion of T¥haka ¢ Hikee Bailding (2nd Phase) 20 A5 B Sl1.420 445 || 315,080,301
Flse: |'|__:|||:n_u Sywrems. For Dihaka Cdfice H|.1i|;||n!1 2od Phas) JHIﬁ{.IIFE}'_III |H.Ir||'-.1]l|'}'lll
ivi Barisal Depot:
Renovation of Ol SMorsge Tank No, (] & 02 T.839,095 3777 0 I1006,703 II -
Internul Moating ot OF storige tank-{1] 296000 4l A A0 -
v]  Bhairah Buzar Depot:
| Renosation of Office Building 12,609,550 | 4H43 00 ] R T || - |
vi) Chandpur [Depot:
|H|,'-(_‘m15trm:1:|nnnflr|.um| Mlain Hioad 402 218 ” 8 886,775 || g 28R 9973 ﬂ = |
vii) Baghabari Depot:
[1rternal Mosting Roof of Tank No. i 2,760,000 || 830,000 || 3,350,000 | =t |
viii) Daulatpur Depot:
Fenovation of Ol Storuge Tank Mo, 14 & |6 10,867,101 10,025 145 20 5u2 446 -
Canstruction of Room & Supply of Cable for S00 KV A Generilor . 2,003,500 || 2,063,500
ix} Fatuliah Depot:
Construction work of 5000 MT Storage Tank ILE70.116 233433550 . " 55827 bhh
Jetty Expansion, Renovation & Pipeling Construgtion TBE2. M 10216346 17,808,360 2
%) Sylhet Depot:
Inseallazion e Peep Tube Well LA - 2 i II .
Renevation of Tey 2418392 2418502 -
wi) Parbotipur Depot:
Renewvaticn of Rall Line i Depsts ares 54 450 572 - || M A50 AT
Te-Cametruction oof Bonslary Wall for Semi-Bunod Hormoes s Tank-16 OUE 539 Q18,359

ki) Momgla O Ingtallation®

|C-:|n:i:ru|:11||r1 of Mungls Chl Instaflannn

707,795,530 ||

707,745,330 |

| 30 June 2024

| 300 June 2023

1,089.158,580

G421 448,605

3?5'-’11451’ B8.871 TJII 1.376,008.314
159,741,959 53,031,975 LAk§9, 158,589

1.1 Mongla Oif Insiallagion (project i serial xi) was Construcled by Bangladesh Petraleum Carporation and cost of construction was -:h:ln, b=
mh POCL, JOCT. & MPL and JOOUL'S share i TE.TOT, 795530 g on 30,06, 2024, The amount has been kepl under capilnl work i i
A pecoumt, As the company did not receivee sy directive from BPC about completion of the project as well as imstruction to copitalize

m=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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3 Fune 2024 3t Fume 2023
Taka Taka
5 LONG TERM INVESTMENT
In Shares
ML Bangladesh Linited - wote 5.1 4,343 281,340 5293321210
In FIMK - note 5.2 3, 25, D, LR £ b 0L 00
11133481340 11233320210
5.0 ML Bamglodesh Eimited - note 5
arke Market Value Muarket Valu
Noof nrket prite £ Unreatived
Purthenbars Ehar thls AEDY as o A% an o hﬂ 4
- 30 June 2024 30 June 2024 3 June 2023 i
Cptgrinal Shives £, 770, (6K ;
ey TH&D 4,843,481 340 5293 321,210 AW B3R
Tonus Shares T2.88 1,000 ik “ : 4
Tuotal (AR 4843 481,540 5.193,311,210 (449,535 70}
Less: Oginnl Cosz-noe 5,101 HT TR HK A7, TR
Fair Value Gain on Investment 3,755, 791,340 5 205,621,210
S0 Original Cost of MJL Bangladesh Limited - note 5.1
BIT0000 | Shures (0 T 0 eech at par fally prid-up HT, TN O KT T0000
SZR31,500 | Bonus Shares i The |0 ooch ot par .
61,621,900 Sharesof Tk, 111 each ai par B, UG T, T
512 TheCompany holds 1%45% chares of MJL Baaglodesh Limited.
LA JOCL enrned 50% on 61,621,900 shares ie. TE. Y08, 109,300 us Final Cash Dividend from MIL Bangisdesh Limited for the year ended 30
Jurie 024, (Th. J08, 09 S0 For the vear emded 30 June 20235,
S04 The marketvalue ofcoch shure of” ML Bangladesh Limited wis TR, 78,60 oo 3 June 2034 in Chittagong Stock Fsehanse Limited.

52 I FDOR - note 5

Principal- Bank & Finoneunl Institution
Sasianlt Bank PLLC
Agrani Bank PLC
Buspali Bank PLL
Junartn Bk PLE
AH Hank PLC
First Security Islami Bank PLC
Gilobal slami Bank PLEC
Lindcm Bonk PLC

53 Fuir ¥alue Gain Onp Investmen) - note 5
Oipening Balaree
Cither Camprehensive Tncome
Dhefierred Tox on Un-Renlmed Guoin

ra=n| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

S50, 010, O

A0 1000

ROOL 00,000

| SO0, D 1R s, 000
T, MM ESH0,000 0130
1R M N G0 300,000

1y 1 ER, CHM 1, L0000,
(MU PR TRIT 10000000
e, C10N A1, (00,000
£, 2 S, DD, M) 61,540, HODLHHD

4,245 340,149

5208, 773,772

FA48E39.870) (277,298,550}
22,451 494 13, f64,927
4.517.992,273 4.945,340.149

—— e
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54 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
(hmiera Fuels Limited

541 The Company holds 25% shared of Omerd Fuels Limibted.

Shafig Basak & co.
Chartered Accountants

3 June 2024 3 dune 203
Taks Taka
196,205 193 105 558 U6
186,205,193 195,555,968

542 JOCL has got allotment of 8,77i0iHKE shares of Tk 10 csch of Omern Fuels Limited (OFL) in consideration of §7,500.000 valued of its
land wnd cash 230 e 30 June 2015 JOCL has got allotment of 5 (00,000 Right Shires of Tk, 20 gach (TE. 10 per share premium

initudud b of Cmera Fuels Linvited (CFLY By 30 June 20049,

£43  Omers Fuels Linitsd (OFL) higs commenced s commercial gctivities i Aumest 2003, Previews nome of OFL was Mobil Jamuna Fuels
Larmmeesd { MUIFLp o renumed s Omern Fuels Lomited (GFL) on 20 Cretober 200 1 OFL his set up o Tonk Termmal of 14 Tanks havig totud
storage capacity of TOL000 MT ut Guptiklal, Patengn, Clintiogram o s gwn frecheld lond mepsaring 6075 Acres reyalued of Tk, 3 22500
Ml son (Ovagrinl ciost T 8750 Million), The Tk Termmol hes alitomated custody trusfor dnd inventon mansement system with oo
manusl imterventon ond this s the first & only Teok Termimal in Banglodesh of International Stondard and Cenified by "Crermunischer

Llovd SE",  lesichmy intermaiional certificstion body,

Edd4 Omers Fuels Limited mvested it subsidiery company named Omera Tonk Terminal Limited (Formerly known as Esstern Fisheries
Lirmited i dunimg the vear 2005 pmoeunting Tk, 964,251,310 and OFL holds 99 9999 5% shgres of mera Tank Terming Limited.
545 Omera Foels Limited mvested mos aszocnne company samed Omera Lagistics Limited m omountoog The B0HL00 and OFL holds

2ita sheresof Umers Logistics Limited.

546  Omers Foels Limited invesied i s assocune company nemed . Omera Chemicnls Limited i smounting Tl 2,500,008 and OFL holds

25 shares of  Chmera Chemicals Limited.

547 Movement of Investment in Associnfes
Opening Balance

iﬁ:h: Shire Value (5,000,000 Tk20 each Tk 10 por share pramiom includadj
L)

Ithon during the veur
Shigre of profit{ Loss) ol egiily sdeounted investen {Associntes)
Closing Balanee

The compuny has nocounted for it's yestment in asseciate in Omera Fuels Limited wsing the sguity accounting method.

Muovement of Shurcholding in Associntes
Urpening balance

Mumber of Bight Shore

Closing balance

Totul Number of Shure of OFL

Perseninge of Shures of assaciates won by Jumuns Ol Company Limited

Sumumary of Mnanactal Information of Equity Aceounted Tnyvestee
Urwmership

W Cirrent Aty
Current Axsets
Total Assets

Shure Capatal

Shite Premium

Rievaluition Sumlus

Speoml Beserve for Throughpat {hargee

Creneral Reserve

Retnined EarmingsiLossy

Moni- Controling Imerest

Equity Attributable to owner of the company

Hon-Current Linbilities
Corrent Linbilines

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Net Assets vahie INAV) per Share
Revenue

ey Tanicgumes

Expenszs

Frafit! {Laoss) for the Year

| BOCL share of prafit {Loss) for the year

|95, 556 0% | 53,082,724
TGS 42,376,240
195,245,193 195,554,964
No of St Neof St
B 770000 87T
£.000,000 S 000,00
13,770,000 13,774 000
S5.0K0. 00 52 181,014)
5% 2504
5%, 1545
47492 362,935 4. Bh5.R24.425
443,570,715 407,220,053
R A — L L L
S 501800000 S50, BN, 000
2000000 20000 K
2,760, 378,000 2. 760,175,000
3,663,347 10,603,347
[.131.5¢1 1131511
IRATSOT2 355500146
|43 176
SR IRSOTE  BSSEAA0ITE
|, 568,530,475 1.766,301,47%
(M, 102 47.842.331
1LHTH.A4R.8TT 1814404310
 SIIEVAI6SN  SITIN4484
4,06 (=N
Z20,654,717 406,482,111
12,390,550 13,232,124
(230, 106, 384) (250,209 276
2,944 K48 16%,504,9
36,225 42,376

m=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED




Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
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G SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Short Term Investment in FOR- Bank & Finoncial Instiution

ANNUAL REPORT

2023-2024
Shafiq Basak & co.

Chartered Accountants

0 Fune 2024
Tk

3 dumie 2023
Tnkn

14,6000, 000 LMKy

13,906,000 44N

18, G000, (M, WM 15, D000, 10
£l This represents investment in FIFR up to the period of 81 foneh vear
Hinnk Al-Folnh PLC 20,000, (0 -
Erhnks Bank PLC 40,000, Wy -
Mg Bank PLC 1, BE0000, (0 1 700,010
HRupali Bank PLE 25400000, (HKE 1L GA0L 000,00
Janutn Bk PLC 3T 00, MM R TR
HASIC Bank PLC [EERTET JUCE L0 AMEH)
Invesmment (orporntion of Hangladesh (1CB) [SUNREHERL EH 120000 40
Buangljcbesh Commerce Bank Limited T4k 00, (b GALL OO0 DD
AHBank PLC LRI ETRIH TR0 A
First Securily Isfami Bank PLC 2070, (b 2L 000000
The Premier Bank PLE [EIVEEHTRUH 120,000 AN
Al-Arafah lslami Bank PLC 0,0 Db A0L000.000
rlobal lslami Bonk PLC 3320400 DMy 3,300,000 400
Linaion Bak PLLC 210,000, Db 2 TA0,000.000
Soclal Isbani Buek PLC e IR 1200000 AN
O Bank PLO 20,00, 00 -
Linited Commercial Honk PLC | T (y -
Mutiontl Bank PLC T, -
NCC Bunk PLC L0000 iy -
EXIn Bank PLC 2000, {0, ik IRILA00.000
il i, i, i
T INVENTORIES
Liventoiries im Urace < mabe 7.1 18,977.717,24] 14,186,283 465
Seones & Spuges - note 7.2 105420 486 U5 428 a2
19.08,137,727 14,261, 712,457
7.1 Invenltories I 'Traile = tiole 7
Major Producis - noge 7.8 1540479 214 13,802,200 %12
Mingr Products - robe 7.1.2 416,438,027 364081553
18,977, 7T17.241 14,166,283 465
700 Major Products - ante 7.1
kd
Mijiie Prédizia | 30 June 2024 — Il 30 June 2023 = |
Quantiny (Lir) || Taka | Quanuty (Lie) || Taka ]
MO H, TR 639 812,605,805 2135043 120600 080
M5 WI3E 4TH LOTEILE 444 3639874 G531 UL0E5R
SR 3 TI5AH1R ST.TIT635 1009.512 402445, 165
HE 1 52.020,225 15127325590 06,4 4 b 1 791,742 4006
Fii 10086411 ROSANT 326 [E 554,540 | 420 461426
LSF0 258332 25453475 E77.254 6,908, B35
IHC 14,538 D24 417 4338 G104 126,002,712
FRS,1123,442 14,540,874, 214 138,637,130 13,802 200,912
T.1.2 Minor Products - nade 7.1
30 June 024 Al June 2023
el syt Quaniity (Lir) || Tukn Quantity (1Lt || Tuka
L. Gias (Cylinder) Tis i, 4K [ L Ei2337
Lobricants-MIL Producis 61,726 A4 JEXATR TRE 268 2R(LEA3 D50
LubricantsHBlended 105 45 22482039 143, THe 2HEIT AT
{ircase 8423 ILTIE LS 4 608 N0TE 322
Hitumen (MT) 144 L1 924 37 324801
L9705 420,538,703 el 021 TAL 747602
Flaw Materinls - Lubsicants G5 THT B 200 534 151 58] 3033305
1163192 416,838,027 1.0 14,5412 Jo4, 081,553
30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
T2 Btares & Hpares-mmle 7 Taka Taka
Won Retumable Empiy Packages 1113 400 T14T 354
s, LG Store Materials 36.861.5560 35.963.550 ,
g, Chattogram Tenninal Stores SO,057, il 44,556,500 E_‘ n
II Trepot Stores 15,138,354 6,014,211 13’ ‘0
BN Pesicide Materinls 447,237 -1-4? '-'.3"
f 105,420,486
Y
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H ACCOUNTS & OTHER RECEIVABLE

Agcounts Reveivable <note 8.1
(b Receivable < st 8.2

8.1 Accounts Revoivalile - note §
POL Products
LPG
Betuimen

Provizion for Doubtlul Debis

Shafig Basak & co.

Chartered Accountanis
A0 June 2024 30 June 2023
Taku Takn

AXIERTR NG 1,745, 03,422
YT AT L2 552 RIE A3
223451 35K 1,208,542,

23T IT3052 1733654 24
83527 (I S
5936817 594,817
2241662 S 1751487744
(5. 784 320) {5, THY 3h]
I,I35,878.163 1745, 703,422

0.2 Wo emdunt was due by the Dineetors (including Managag Directory, Manigers & Officers of the Comgany ) any of them severally and

jatly with any other porson,

Due to upcerumy of recovery of Tk. 44 371,237 the Company fled o cose seomnst e party o the cose isan prodress i Use courl, Anber
Prebtors Bolding Tk, 49684567 was also conssdered dowbifal and the Company filed stmilor redsvery se and in consequensy Tk
380K N0Y ek pecdvired on 25 October 2007 and balonee The 14,690,567 is cxpaciol 16 ba reeovened sooh.

H.1.3  Apeing of Accounts Receivahle

Lass than b months 1 560054 3007 1 A 6,527
B o ovebe but Tess than 1.2 mosibs ok TR 6] 1,346,520
Crver | 2 menths 2H6,B59.591 155,434,701
2 341 662,580 1751 487,748
& months syvabe
Maume of the Coastomcr Less Thun & Monihs || bt less than 12 Ower 12 months || As on 30 June, 2024
monihs
{A) POL Froduct
Piyover Development Boord - = 134 578055 114578 955
Bangladesh Rnlway | A8 F02.920 4 T4 B4 ] 29257 60 1,533, 709071
Bangladesh Chemical Tndusines Corporation - - S 100 403 500, 100,405
Drefence 326,330,093 - 2082330 316411423
Chattoegram Pore Autharity 115,545,204 - - 15548214
Baluka Filling Stshion - - 44371037 44371 237
Cornl Shipping Line - - 14,604 567 14,684,567
Koestia Supar Mills Limited - - - -
Orthers (Imcluding DealerThstributors - - 5555, 1 B0 5,558, |80
1,551,981,227 34, T4R691 ZRO.643.134 L22TATANET
(B LP Gas
[etinoe LRUEERIL - B3 100 BOEE 1 HO
Private { Including Dealer Distributors - - 144,540 194,544
4073080 - 2TH040 BASLT2
{C) Bitumen
Clusttaserrnm Chry Coparntivg - - 3,770,737 5770937
Private {lneiuding Desler/Distributors) - - LifAiED L (kadd
% = 5036417 5036417
Total (A+BC) 1.560,054.307 ERITYT 286,850,501 3241 42,589

8.2 Other Kecelvable - nome 8
Crilier Receivable - Averued Interest on FOR

O87.A73,125

552 43IR.639

URTSTII2S

S51R38.639

m=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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Huoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Churtered Accountants

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Taka Taka
9 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS & PRE-PAYMENTS
Advances-note 9.1 14,637,744,791 29,350,422 482
Deposits - note 9.2 B9.875,501 141375311
Pre-Payments - note 9,3 34,058,139 39,257,295
14.765,67T8,431 29.531.055.088
0.1 Advances - note 9
Bangladesh Petroleuwm Corporation 11,273 444,622 26,591.510,989
Padma Ol Company Limited 21,530,121 (R4 182 656
Meghna Petrolenm Limited 431.405.274 382837687
Eastern Refinery Limited 2.926.154 15324 860
LPG Limited 172,454 172,454
MIL Bangladesh Limited 19,102,889 40,200,030
Advance Income Tax 1.733,192,842 1294, 444, 609
Advance against Capital Expenditures - note 9,11 3,500,000 3,504,000
Standard Asiatie Oil Company Limited 3A3RAL10 #36,156
Others 448 831 988 349 813,023
14,637,744,791 29.350,422,.482
9.1.1 Advance against Capital Expenditures - note 9.1
LPG Import, Storage & Bottling Plant st Mongla 3,500,000 3,500,000
3,500,000 3500,
9.2 Deposits - note 9
LPG Limited 24495450 24,495,450
Standard Asiatie Oil Co. Ld, 3,500,000 3,500,000
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Lid, 106,624 106,628
Others 61,773,423 113,273,213
R9.875,501 141,375,311
9.3 Pre-Payments - note 9
Pre-paid Rent & Insuranee AR,058,139 39,257,295
318,058,139 39,157,203
9.4 Advance realizable in Cash
Employees - Car, House Buil ding Loan ete, 155,086,214 144,533,503
189,086,214 144,533,503
9.5 Amount recoverable or adjustable within twelve months from the date
of Statement of Financial Position, 13,007 590,099 28.212,115.030
9.6 Aggregate amount due by managers and officers of the Company, 26,372,885 13,258,212
9.7 Amount due by the directors of the Company, . =
10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
With different banks:
Shon Notice Deposit (SND) Account-Note 10.3.2 A5 729.827.769 3I2491.360,872
Current Account - note 10.3.3 950,300 {B9Y.030,925)
35, 730,818,069 31,792,329,947
Imprest Cash & Bank-Note-10.2 1.027.216 L, KN
FDR Receipt-Note 10.3.1 A, 000,000 | 70,0000, i

r==n| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

35,771,845,285

.1 The eredit balance arises due to issuance of cheques for an amount in exeess of balance lying with banks.
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Chartered Accountants

Chartered Aceountants

S0 June 2024 30 June 2023
Taka Tuaka
10.2 Imprest Cash & Bank
Bagahun Depot 34,730 S, (000
Bairab Buzor Depot 12 862 4 3006
Horsal Dhepad 26,374 13,990
Bogrn Office 113,913 2618
Chandpur Depot 26,330 24 523
Chilmary Depit 3,223 2065
Chatrogerany CHTice #2010 20,242
Chattogram Terminal Office S00475 Gl 289
Dol otdpur Depot 20,159 208910
Dok OMTice 31,942 SEA07
Fotullah [repo 18,805 3314
Julakats Depot 17878 23,965
kehulbna Office 1.B28 | 1=
Mongla Onl Inswallation 24679 B.735]
MNarore Depot T1 065 11,341
Parbatpur Depot 11,610 18,015
Rapshahi Depot e 9, 169
Rangpur Depot 11,348 I8, 030
Sochomma Bazar Depot 826 61074
Sreemongal Depo 27,339 4,560
Sylhet Depot 22, 96H 20,052
1LO027.216 S4B
10,21 Break-up of Imprest Cash & Bank
Immprest Cash in Hond 71467 MELAGT
Imprest Cashnt Bank #33,749 691,333
LU27.216 [IERTI
L3 Cash at Bank
Fixed Deposit Receipt - note 10,301 00, G M 1 7O 00 (30
Short Motice Deposit-note 10032 35,729,827, 7649 2491 360,872
Current Account - note 10.3,3 S90 AHI {6 0H)L925)
A5, 77081 R 069 31,962 329,947
130 Fived Deposit Reccipt
The Premier Bank PLC RERCTRTIEIY
Social Iskami Bank PLC . 120, (K100
Linited Commercinl Bonk PLC A0 W0 A0 TR, D
S0, O 1 TOLOA Ok
132 Special Notice Deposit
AB Bank PLC 053,683,726 4. 0110 %72 341
Agrani Bank PLC 97,331,838 5907 1,637
Bank Asa PLC G1R 556297 59,042 804
BRAC Bank PLC F2TL 2T 236 1837202354
L1t Bonk NA 16, 300 Sld9d
The City Bank PLC 3269022 555 TH2,083, 586
Durch Bangla Bank PLC J45. 817304 #7,670,02%
Enstern Bank PLC 2267 TR 954 16548 3RS 540
First Security Islnmi Bank PLC 3 AT IR A058 4,159 300,785
HSBC PLC 41,452,724 776,219
IFIC Bank PL{ 4240231911 F500,383, 169
Mercentle Bank PLC X712 290172 3.U53 BOT 450
Mutunl Trust Bank PLE LR 643316 | 5,899 4672
One Bank PLC 3,221,95] 788 363968318
Pubnli Bank PLC 27IE L1138 3,733,584,378
Rupali Bank PLC B4, E80 )32 553 B 452
Sonali Bank PLC LT 727415 244 634, 200
Southeost Bonk PLC 2453 204 BUS L9935 8RR, 107
Standard Chinrtered Bank A3.431 B4, 774
Linited Commarcial Bank PLC 1,021, 559,345 200,381,740
Litturn Bank PLE 2,238,268 A8 443,637
35,729, 827,769 32491360, K72
Current Account
i Agrani Bank PL.C
£ ubali Bank PLC -
Boutheost Bonk PLC SO0k 3N
3 kL L

" Thecredit balanee nrses due toasseance ol chegoes for an aneunt inexcess ofbolonce Tying with banks

m=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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Churtered Accountanis Chartered Accountamnts
30 June 2024 30 June 023
Taka Taka
11 SHARE CAPITAL
1.1 Awthorised Capliral :
Number
00000000 Ordinary shaves of Th 10 gach R R 3 OH0E EEM bR
1.2 Issped, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital:
5.000,000 | Sriaty-sheces: of “Tk 10" el Sutly; paid--for- consiceatian 50,000,000 S0,000,000
otherwize than in cash,
105,424,600 | Ordinary sharesof Tk 10 cach issued as honus -note 11,.2,] 106548, 2446, () 1,054, 2446, (00
110424600 Ordinary shares of Th 10 cach 1004, 24, (iR 1, 004, 246, (Wb
11.2.1 Bonus Share Capital
S5.000.000 | Bonusshares of Tk 10 each for 20005-2006 Sh AMAD A0 TR R
A3,000,000 | Bonus shores of The 10 each for 2006-2007 ERTIREN RGN ERIIRUE TR
SO00000 [ Bonus shores of Tk, 1each for 20008200 0 LR AMBLE, LMD RUERHERREH
16,200,000 | Bonus shares of Tk. 10 ¢ach for 20110-201 | T2, 0 162 (WD (00
21,060,000 | Bonuos shares of Th. 1each for2001-2012 2000, 000 210,600,000
126,000 | Bonusshares of Tk, 10 each for 2001 2-201 3 S 2600, 00 G, 2640, 000
1LO3E,600 | Bonus shores of Tk, 1 cach for 200 3-2014 TOHb, 3t (000 TR, 350, (M0
LUS 424,600 1054, 246,000 1054, 246,000
11.3 Position of sharcholdings
30 June 2024 Il 30 June 2023
Mame of Sharcholders Nu. of Percentage () No. of Percentage (%)
Sharcs of sharcholding Shares of sharcholding
Bangladesh Petrolenm Corporation 66346, T80 olL08%, b 346,774 LRI
Institutions (Financial & Others)
Local 3506613 31.71% 34,573,965 JL3 1%
Forcign 107332 L (S 259,529 (3,240,
35123845 JLB1s 34843, 4% 31559
Individuals
Local 8015516 a07 0,193,030 832
Meam-resident Bungladeshi 37,262 1.03%, AR 3T LR E L
Forcign 1.197 (01 %s 1.5931 (LSRR
8,053,975 ®.11% 9,234,332 H3T7%
11ih424. 60 LA 1 Lik 424, 610 1 CREL E00 4
114 Classification of Sharcholders by holding
| 3 June 2024 Il 30 June 2023
Range of Holdings Total Holdings No. of Total Holdings
N, of Holders o Holders (%)
Less than or equal 500 shares 5.626 LB5Y, 5411 LR S
501 1o 5,000 3hares 1.612 231% 1,612 231%
SAMb] to 1O MK shares 142 4928, 155 101 %
L0000 | g 240, (HHY shiires it LR L L]
20,000 to 30000 shares 15 OE1% 41 (39305
30,001 to 50,000 shares 4 1.18% i5 12405
F0001 vo TR shares 33 2. 44% 32 2.05%
LOE 00 o | MK MM shares 45 9.06% 45 Q5700
Cheeer 1,000,000 shires 10 B 1.40% | i1 Bl 4%
T 6k LML " TALY TR AHD ™Y,

1.5 Market Price of (rdinary Shares.
The shares are Hsted with Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange on 30 June 2024, each share was quoted at Th.

% in the Dhaka Stock Exchunge Lid, Tk 174,00 in the Chittagong Steck Exchange Lid, ﬁ-"‘s"!....
ption on Unissucd Ordinary Shares m"":; ]
I LT o
A There wis no option on inissucd shares ason. 30 June 2024 K
B, :51-3
=0 JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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12 CAPITAL RESERVE
Capital gain oo sale of land & structure ot Chandpor

Capital gain on sabe of 12,35 acres |ond ot Potengo Lo
Jaind Vennwre Coo o detii | belaw:

Sole of Ll

Onginal Cost ol Land

Related Expenses agoinst Transfer of Eand

13 GENERAL RESERYE
Opening Balanee
Trunsferred during the year

Closing Balance
131 RETAINED EARNINGS
Opeming Balonce
Translcreed by General Reserve as per board miceting dated 12.11.2023

Shafiq Basak & co.
Chartered Accountuanis

30 June 2024 20 June 2023
Tukn Tuka
3,591,102 1591102

175,00 TR

175 0000000

{14, 428) |14, 428}
(25.743.571) (25 T43.571 )y
1443 242 (K1 145,242,010
152,833,103 152,833,103

1 TR THH)
1R 0D (R

10, S0, LR 0
10000, OB A0

I 2, 500,000,000

11 SO, OO0, 000

4. 988 377 505
{1 IR0 T )

3004, 5248,414
{1, CHE0, DR, 0N

Mt Profit forthe Year 4416, 736,425 3408624 291
Final Cash Dividend {1 A3S.5 10,800} (1,325, 0u5 200)
Closing Balance . B, S0, 130 4, 988.377.505
14 PROVISION FOR GRATUITY
Cypeninig Balanee Y24 9461 178 GIE UG 420
Provision made during the vear 79,702,022 T2,390.261]
1,004,663, 200 100 AH2, 68T
Payment made during Lhe voar (60, 175005 {76421, 500)
Closing Balance 943,487 500 924,961,178
15 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY /{ASSET)
Opening Balance 207,794,658 Ii6, 144,310
Provizsion made durimg the venr - -
207,794,658 16,144,210
Adpusted for Deferred Tax ¢ Assets )V Linbilitics 64U LT RED 5,515,275
Adjusted for Uneealized Guin on Quoted Share {22 459] 004y (13,864,927
Closing Balance 254,373,540 207,794,658
s Ty T AR 5 Temporarary Deferred Tax
l:']:[.::;:{tﬁlli.‘z Irl"ﬂSE.n Rate  ||Carrying Amount Tax Base Difference (Assets) Liabilities
ALI0 Jupe, 2024
Property Plan &
Eguipment | Exeept Lo} 20.00%% TTRATT AR TER.095 908 30,241,573 6048 15
Proviston ForGrrstuy 2100 (943487 500) - (Y43 48T 5000) { IBE. 64T 500
Avcrued FDR Interest 20,00 YRT.573,125 - OR7.5T73.125 197,514,625
Investment in Associate 20.00%% 196205193 1E7, Tk 00 B395.193 1,71%.03%
Investment in Share Sy 4,843,445 1,340 AT, T AN 4,755, THL, 340 237,749 (6T
Deferred Tax { Assels)/Liabilicy 5802199639 1023495908 4.538,7003,.731 2154373, 540
o . o Tempiirarary Delerred Tax
l:i:iﬁﬁﬁg }::;—,ﬁ[:'n Rate  ||{Carrying Amount Tax Base Difference (Asssts) Lisbilltics
Ad 30 June, 2023
Property Plant &
Equipment { Except Luiid) 20.00% BIH.332 861 T1H,501 306 101,831,555 2036631 1
oD rovison For Crralmty 2000 (924.201,178) . (924,961, 178) (1B, 992 236)
cermied FDR Interest 20,005 552,834,039 - 552 H3R. 630 LI0.567,728
i v estment in Associate T P55 58 968 187 700N TEER.GE 157179
" o Wvestment in Sharo ERTTE 52935201210 BT, T (M0 5205621 2H) 260,241, 08
TR cferred Tax { Assets )/Linbility 5935, 090,500 G0 i L MG 4,943, 189 194 207, 704.6

m=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Taka Taka
16 CREDITORS & ACCRUALS
For Tradding Supplies & Services -note 16,1 TASTIA41.253  ROK55 956,644

For Expenses - note | 6.2

16.1 Creditors for Trading Supphies & Services - note 16

22714925971

2274972029

—T6816367.224 83130928673

Payable 1o BPC TLO04019,163 T, 790,006,013
Pavable fo Dthers 20T 422 190 4.065.950,631
74.571.441.253  80,855,950,644
12 Creditors for Expenses - note 16
Puyable to BRC | 496,358,593 LS0E 716,965
Pavable to officers & staffs aeamst salary 52,754,008 56,845,745
Tunkercharge payahle 131,410,505 | S, (00, 250
Workers Profit Participation & Webfire Fund {note- 16.2.1) 290,535,045 125,484,677
Railway freight payable 24,508,237 44,1185,533
Piviable to Others 279,538,723 2B3.B38,800
2.274,925.97] 1,274,972.02
16.2.1  Waorkers' Profit Participation & Welfare Fund - Note 16.2
Chpening Balinee 225 484,677 |24, 046,047
Prowision made for the vear 2900555, 843 215484677
Paymeent made for the vear (223 434.677) {124 046,047)
290555845 125484677
17 CREDMTORS FOR OTHER FINANCE
Povable to Dialers & Distribators { Secunty Deposit) 189,541,595 184,701,545
Payable to LPCG Distributors ( Security Deposit) 14,807,790 14,807,790
Puyvuble to Supplier & Contractirs § Security Deposit) 0,224,590 S 0E, 00
BPC's Fuel Sector Development Fund 251 827,121 23] 406,403
Dividend Suspense Account . .
549,401,102 4H5, 004,481
15 INCOME TAX PAYABLE

Opening Balance B77,446,758 545,755.010
Provision made during the yeur-nite 18,1 | 035,439,508 1L A5 544
1,912,936,726 1 ASK200,160
Adjustment misde duning the vear (797,053.276) (R0, 754,402
Closing Balanee 1.1 15,883,450 277.446.758

{1} Assessment settled upto the vear 2000-2011.

(it} Assessment pending in the High Court for the veur 200 1-2012 & 2012-2013,

(i) Return submitled LS-82BB of 1TO 1984 lor the years 200 3-20 1400 2020-2021 &
{ivy Normal Retum Submitted for the wear 20021-2022,

{v) Retrnsubmitted UrS- 1 80 of ITA 2023 jor the years 2022-2023.

r==n| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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Shafig Basak & co.
Chartered Accountanis

181 Seatement of Income Tax Provision :
Computation of Total Income and Income Tax Liabitityv:
Income Yeart 2023 - 2024, Assessment Y ear: 2024-2025
Avcounting Profit Before Tax

Lass: Slure of Profiv{ Loss) of Assodiates (Mey O Tax)

Less: btems for Separate Constderathon

Dividend Income

Bestuweat Iscorme

Rent Ineome

License Fee, Houwse Building & Car Loan Interest and Others
Avcounting Profiten Sale of Fived Assets

Add: Inandmissilile Expenses
Accounting Deprecimnon
Prowvision for Ciesluity
Comstralsution o W PP&W F

Less: Expenses Admissible But Not Shown
Doprecistion ey per 3rd Schedule
Arniiization

Pavment for Crroluity

{a)] Business Incomss

(b} Rent [ncoime

{e) Finaneial Arsets Income

() Cither Sources Incomie

(&) Incomie From Capital Con on Sale of Fixed Assets
Add: Income Received from Non Business Head
Fireal Peofit O Sade of Fixed] Asgeis

Tuotal Taxable Income

Courrent Tax Charge During the Year
i) Calenlation of Tas Linbilicy

{n Business Income

On Rent Incomi

O Crher Sources Income

O Finoncial Assets Income

O Ineomne From Capitid Giom

Tutal Tax Expenses

i) Minimum Tax L/S 163(5)

3 June 2024 M June 2023
Takn Tuka
5,501,297 275 4325 585,110
(756.225) {42.376,240)
5530, 561.050 AR, 208 870

FOHE, | U S0
(5,195,505 6356)

{0, § s SO0
(3,847 /59440

{38,766, 554) (37,804 288y
{10,007, 241) (3, T72.037)
(21,297,997} (347,163)
(53,216.238) Bl 420,442
139,775,682 137, 751423

T, T02023 72,496,261
166,261,466 201,568,126
AR, 079,350 65,732,126

| (55,015 3 115,453
61,175,700 T6421,500
120,360,152 142,278,584
36,000,313 145,269, 538
38,766,854 A7 8§94 208

5068970670
26,343,692

A:002.930.302
LR RIS

4,930,337 -
5175941867 A 709.008,73T
TAR263 IR RSTANR
1,753,371 7,578,888
5.276,738 1,778.922
1014341 ,545 TG, 856

TaR 051 -
RIREXL IR RIZA3553

30,151,228 | |

31,166,769 |

Current Tax lability {Higher one among i & ii) 1,035, 480,068 Ri2. 445544
18.2 Reeonciliation of effective tax rute
Profit before tax (Net off share of profit of associates) 3.520.56] 050 4284 208 BT0
Total income fmy expense 20.01% 1104, 560,450 31430 D1T.060,820
it
Tax using the spplicable rute Ziione 104,102,200 20 BS6.R41.774
Biflerence botween accounting and fiscal depreciation 0.26% I4.318.246 0.34% 14378, 86%
Drifference betwesn gratully provisionand payiment .07 1,705,264 L0032 { ROS OS50
Adjustment of item for sepamite considemion 00245 (9R4.3170 Q.00%% (46, 1 L)
Impact of bempormry difference in deffercd tnx 1.25% 68 070,882 246", 165, 515275
Adpustment of interest acered bat oot reeanvad =157 [ B YE6 HYT) -t (110.567,727)
Adpostment for fegnil artax and mmimum tax whichever s higher 0.01% S4T.411 1.23%, S2.643.797
Adjustment (or Tax on Capital Gain TRINEN TaRa51 QAL -
Lastal 20001 % 1.104. 560, 850 21.43% D1 T.G0LE20
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
COpening Balance TT4346 L5 A30RLY
Erevadenid for the yesr 2003 A5 510,500 1 A25095.200
E 443234, 146 1,340, 726,019
Foayment made during the year {1.432.458,393) {1.333,01 1,673)
Transferto C.M.5F. (3,183, 105) -
Tg?ﬂﬂ T.71 [
Yeur wise break up:
]ll'l‘-"-;';ﬂ.?,ﬂl - 3.197.752
: 2021 2,223 541 2,244 349
222 2,247 698 L 2P2 245
(UHER 3 120,360 -
X T3
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iy 2 June 24

July I1-Jume 23

1] NET EARNINGS ON PETROLEUM PRODUCTS Takn Talos
Cirvas Murgom on Petrofeum Produ 1480, 374 408 LAYT ITH A4S
Alel Less  Operationnl Cam Loss b {1 0E 26 R 112,95 by
1 A40,47,127 1.384,327.379
.1 Cirasy vurmings on Petreleum Prodoct
Jualy 2023 10 June 2024 1 Juky 2022 1 June 2023
: Oiperntianal Crpreratiomal
Cirasy Margin CHRY i Mot earning Gross Margin CalaiL s Net earniog
i
HOBE 106,630,754 (B0 206,652 46,234,102 HIHL 262 448 (54,843,937 An41R5110
M [ELEREREES 15570, 124) 4, 2HE 020 130,360 448 (M5 253030 A4,5 |2
SKO 15320331 108170458 25, 398 37H 15 114,042 10818481 2X,000.42%
HED Hind ATHA2H | LBA BAl 90y WIT A5 40 RS s48413 { 1R ARS 478) MWILTINAT
LSFC) s es .1 | 1 0H35 430 i, 474 gk 1272404 2A3T2T 1506221
e 131 FHib BT [HE.T74, 276 FH0, 355084 (LR i |99 F1 5054 AREHATAS
MTT - . . - - -
1RO (HIL550) 3555840 3375290 4,671,554 b 640 3 3THIA3
Sub Twtul 1. 263,014 400 (138.374,241) 1,124,640, 1065 1.274,774.514 (HILENL2 1 160,503,301
Minor Products
Fitumen IhH4. 454 - 2 hE4 454 AETR S . Ls7u ]|
Lubricants & Urease 216,108 44610 |10, 7HS Y 26 THTATR 213307, 157 {48 HE9) 2132040248
LG 11323288 (41 By NEENELT 56017,659 (%2982 55244677
Sub Tatal 17,380,007 {51,645} TN, M2 213,503,929 [139.851) 221,364,078
Gornd Totil 1 ASDITA N2 (138,426, BRG) L341,047.127 1497278441 (112,951 ) 1384327379
20,2 Margin Bosis Product Marketing Quantity, Voloe and Cost
Cduly 2023 fo Juny 2024 __dduly 2022 (o June 2023
Markering Froduct Marketing | | Produce Markering Murkening Prrduct Murkering | | Froduct Morketing
Cruantity Crrwsa Value Cost Value Cunntity Grods Value Cost Value
MT Tk Tk MT Tk Tk
Major Froducts
TR LU LR 1T 1 88041 {17 A0RE, 218 660 105212 17, L0, 6, | 44 {16398 32T i)
M 137 605 TLAA0HR4 20 (ALZI5T5.8760) 14,722 LIMELEA56HD (22803485254
SEA 14,153 2,536,242 670 (2330,522,337) 2T 2HTEETIATY (260,764, 137)
HED (WEE R I 440 81| 474 | 145 585 435.448) 1210751 172 HE2 MG H1H | 171836, 728,305
LA 3493 355451 500 (A0, 122908 4,762 512,933,731 (31066 257)
Fix T A0 BT I8, 83T (THARE2] | 02y 2.6 19450, 3 s (19389 963 174)
M1 - . - . . -
JBO ] | | T4 0 A, DGR (474,005 727 2 ARG IHL 438504 EH'-‘IA-.IH:-.‘}‘S[I]
Sub Taral 1666367 27 H0L996, 492 (B[ e R U 1927, 704 136115, 460.95] (204 K40, 695 43T)
Mbbinini Prodicts
Ritumeh 3K SR A0 406 (B, a2 13,07 e 205227 (RRLG3E14)
Lubwicatits & (igease JAa5 L7108 448 {1 A%, L H T 3R 1. 786,982 520 L1 543,675 3h1)
LG 2444 124 585, 1 {13, TS 454 3053 |27, 7TEb 254 {122 (WE575)
Sub Tatal 15,117 1 ARY, 28R, ) (2. 271,926,453) 1,932 177,913,961 {2508 A HLST)
I, 601594 2o 5T IR, AR 2040185, 56 1,947,734 LIH A6, D80T 1237305, 105, 4449)
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21 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Product Handling Commission & Others
Service Charges
Net Profit/{ Loss) on Operation of Tanker MT Jamuna

Shafig Basak & co.
Chartered Acconmtants

22 ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Storage. Selling & Administration
Pavroll & Benefits
Contributory Provident Fund
Rent & Other Taxes
Travelling & Office Transport
Fuel & Electricity

Repair & Maintenance
Insurance Premium

Audit Fee (Statutory) - note 29
Directors' Fee

Management Service Charge

23 FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation - note 23.1
Interest on Workers' Profit Participation & Welfure Fund
Bank Charges

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Taka Takn
2003891, 265 144,764 5003
10,311,635 20,021,963
3,320,264 (4,400,089
210,882,636 160,331,377
185,352,473 | B0020 803
627, 712.588 GURE3,902
14 506,713 14492 223
490640, 364 30 982 K93
18,675,049 16,599,658
23377617 200441,792
25,011,727 26,784,751
12,257 654 7,589,745
FAHH LT REEN
1,704,000 [L2200.000)
BTS00 HT5 000
058,901,187 016,258,897
107,721,014 124,259 405
101,394.175 51,875,158
7,698 (9 T.a78,794
216,813,287 183,743,317

23.1 This represents provision made for financial expenses which is computed on sales quantity ranging
from Tk, 0.0306 to 0.,0699 per liter against major products.

24 OTHER INCOME
Dividend lncome - note 5,1.3
Interest on Bank Deposits
Interest on Fixed Deposits
License Fee
Interest on House Building Loan
Interest on Car Loan
Rent Receipts
Profivi{ Loss) on Sale of Non-Current Assets - Note 24. |
Others

@

08, 109,500 FOR, 104, 5iM)
3,260,151,156 2,320,560,345
19354145000 1,327,093,095

5,159,836 5427552
4,400,594 2921 778
352,880 358,082
38,766,854 37,894 285
21,207 997 347,163
453,571 40,625
5.573,777.288 4,202,788,428

C P
-] framesarl
B
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Ace. Dep. ar wov Brubit [
Particulbars of Assets (Orniginal Cost on us 120 Sales Price (Lows) Mame of Partics Mode of Disposal
30 Jun 23 A0 Jun 23
Mogaffar Al & Sons e 1igeas Toma Filling Srandoan,
Loy Scrap by it i S.ll._':lldly'-u. l~‘.|.!|i..1||. Ty danetion
Kushris Sll.i:n. IR A R4 S Foustna £-'|_|,|r_! Majampur, Kt
Irvemmury Scrap Kushta
' WS, by
:,]J:::;\'” L wasonea||  16asuE0 | 2t el Epese Hakalia, dinstien
II,I1urrrs"_|;r:n.|
1 575 B0 16,575,883 3 2L20R0N0 20297047
My Jume 2124 b June 223
Tinkin Taka
Cirnss Callection from Margin basis Frodocts Sapply & Other Ineome
Gross Vahee of Margin basis Produets Marketing 209,570,352 583 135886 383,910
Prosfuct Orperationl Ciind Lass b [ 138420, H85) (L2950, 064
{ Inereasey Docreise mn Acoounts Recesvables {455, 1740419 (50,218,984
Reveipts of Caher Operatm liscome 20 RRD 36 160 331 37T
Receipts us (iher Income TIOTZ 152 47,0104 48k
Profii on Sale ol Fixed Asses {21,267 9497 (347, 1013
10%.201,337.627 138330217580
Payment for Praduct Cost and Other Expenses
ot Val e of Margmi hosis Product Moeting 208,085, B8, 564 1370389, 105,450
Admmistrative Selling & Distribution exp Q5E. 00, 14T B16.258 897
{Inireiese ¥ esrine m Proviseen for Cratuity (TR 526,322 4,025,248
Provvision for Worker's Profit Perticipation Fund 19l 555 845 225484 67T
Finamcinl Expansas for WPERE W 101,394,175 51,875,058
Financizal Expenses for Products Sapply 107, 7210014 |24, 289 465
Agljustments with corrent assets & linbilisies:
Tnventorics in trade- Incisse’ [ decnesa) 48,433,776 4662204 060
Stopes & spare- Incesse) (decrease) L9494 5354 Bed
Advainee Deposind Prepayienis- Iereese! [(deceise) | 13,204, 24,930 17392311832
Creditors & Aceans- ncrease | Deorease f, 284,501 449 {35,590 6659 5 L)
205,431, 816,257 125,185,239, 803
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Eanwirge attributalie tw the Cedinary Sharcholdees A 41R T 428 JANER424 29)
Weighted avernge number of ordinory sleares during the year 110424 500 110,424,600
4000 BT

Earning Per Share IEPS)

NET ASSETS VALUE (NAV) PER SHARE
Thevompatation ol NAY Per Share is given helaw:
Total Assets
Lt Total Eiabilitie

Namber of ardinaery shares outstandimg doring the vear
Net Assets Valwe ([NAV) Per Share

NETOPERATING CASH FLOW PER SHARE
Ne Operating Cash Flow { from Statement of Cash Flows)
Wiiphted sverage number of ordinary shares doring the year

r==n| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

104361, THLE

324 6d60,851

197105470 RS F3 3RS0, 004
15,144,665, 305 22,699,796,757
V1B A S, G 110,424,600
EETA] 20540
2526021723 | 2057 294, 749
THLAZAH00 (10,422 600
RN 100,01
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M Revoncilistion of Net Profit with cash Mow Trom sperating aciivities
iNotification Mo BSEC/CMRBROIN200k- 158208 Admin/81 dated 20 June 2018)
Reference Note- 5 (b)

Profin before Income Tax

Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cashs
Drepreciation

G o sale of Froed Assets

Davidend Incore

[isterest oi Bank Deposils

Irterest on Frged Deposisg

Irvcomme Tax pisiil

Changes in Working Capital:

{Inerease VDecrease i Inventories

{Increase ) Decrease m Aceounts & Other Receivable
{Incregse 1 Decrease in Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments
{Devrense) Incresse n Creditors & Acerunts

{Decreose)! Increase in Delemed s Liabilities

Met Cash Inflow | (Outllow ) Trom Operating Activities

M AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Audit Fee (Statutory)

Shafig Basak & co.
Chartered Accountanis

Notek 30 Jume 2024 30 Jund 2423
Tuka Taka

3,320,561.030 4,784,208, 570

3 139,775,682 147,751,423
24 (21.297.95%T) (347,163
24 {308, 1049 _S(1y {308,109 50403
el ! (3,260,181, 156) 12,520,566 345)
24 {1, 935.4) 4 5060 {1L.327.093,095)
{1,335,501,549) 41, 102, 104 2410)
(1,108,467 ,940%) (836,200,050
7 {4,821, 425.2T0) (4,670,.558.953)
g (490,174.541) 650,21 5954
L] 15,206, 124 930 (FT3N2 31 1.832)
16 {6284 501 449) 35,590 660 816
3.007.963.370 12,577, 580,047
15 8576,323 {4023 24K)
1626, 489,607 12,873,554.700
1526,021.721 12,037,204 744

s 000 A 00

R0 R DM

Audnt lee represents suditors” remuneration only which is foced up by the sharchalders ai the Annual Geaernl Meeting,

; =cme
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32 REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR, MANAGERS & OFFICERS
| 30 June 2024 I 30 June 2023 |
Particulars MD & T MID & T
MANAGERS A vt MANAGERS s
Sulary. Allowances & Bonus: 31,648, 1 (5,966, THe 01T 064 51,727,127
Housing
Rentul 13,397,673 26,455,203 L4 477,497 23,006 454
Utilities 4,704,503 10,800 547 5,107,014 335,669
18,237,176 37,256,050 19,985,416 33,532,127
Leave Encashrient 4,658 THT B.6T2 ) TTURTIY U335 §25
Provident Fund 217,732 BRI ET I 2508 344 A E24 EL4
56,723,804 115,842,677 6,310,552 s, 319,893
Mumber of Persons 25 96 31 vy

321 The Maongging Director, General Manager, Departmental Heads, Managers and OfTicers are paid house rent
allowances in cash.

32.2 The Managing Director, General Manager & Departmental Heads are provided with free use of company’s car,
subject to limit, Other Managers are paid cash assistance under car loan scheme, subject 1o limit and other
Officers are paid cash allowances.

323 Managing Direclor, General Manager, & Managers are provided with residential (elephone primarily for
Company’s business communication, subjectio limit,

32.4 The Managing Dircctor, General Manager, Managers & Officers are provided with free medical facilitics
according to company s rules,

32,5 The Managing Director, General Manager, Mapogers & Officers are provided with coverage for Group
Insurance Scheme.

326 The Directors, other than Managing Director who is an Ex-Office Director, are not paid any remuneration
except lees and expenses i connection with sttending Company™s Board Meeting

33 ATTENDANCE STATUS OF BOARD MEETING OF DIRECTORS
During the year ended 30 June 2024, there were |5 (Filteen) Board mectings held, The attendance status of all the
meetings are as ol lows:

SL Name of the Directors chrusﬂn:utlvu Position Meetings Held || Attendance
I (|Mr. AB M Azad NDC BPC Chairman 13 13
Mr. Amin ul Ahsan BPC Chairman 2 2

2 ||Mr. Shankar Prasad Dev independent Director 15 14
3 |IMr. Md. Shamsuddoha Independent Director 15 15
4 ||Mr. Anupam Barua BPC Director 15 15
S ||Mr. A KM Mizanur Rahman BPC Director 15 14
6 ||Mr Dipak Kumar Chakraborty BPC Director 15 14
7 ||Mr. Sk. Md, Belayet Hossen BPC Director 15 15
H ||Mr. Mohaminad Hasan Uzzaman BPC Director 15

4 || Mrs. Anika Chowdhury Shareholder Director 15

10 ||Mr. Md. Gias Uddin Ansary BPC Managing Director 15

=0 JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED 121)
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3 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees with an aggregate wang
remuneration not being less thon Th 360060,

15 EXPENIMTLRE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Mo parymienl was mde dunng the vear in forergn corrensy on scoount of roval by, prolessiomal, consul iahon Fees, interest & others,

M HELATEDR PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Shafigq Basak & co.
Chartered Accountunts

MNumber of

Employees |

A June 24524
Tuka

30 Jume 2023
Takn

458

477

In neevadance with 1AS-24 | Relied Party Disclosures, kéy manmgement personnel of the compieny are these persens having the anthority pnd
responsibility for planning, dircoting and contralling the activities of the company, dinectly orindirectly

n) Key Mapngement Personnel Compensation

Short term emploves benefits
Pt eployment benefis

A0 June 2024 30 June 2023
Tuka Takn
d2 714072 25 4T AR
196477 A2 {23 K27 Sh
330,502,454 149,300,040

# Koy management personnel compensation ingludes benefits for employees of the ank of DGM end abowve.

Pusing the year enced A June 2024 | the company carmied out o numsber of transactons with reloted party in the norml eouse of business on
A Lenghth Basis', The npnse of these related partics, pature of trungsctions and their tobl velue have béen set ln gecordance with e
provisioengof TAS 24 Related paity dischosures:

by Tramsactlon with BPC & Other Related Companles Amonnt in Taka
Mimeonl Pty ampnny Retatian Transaction During the Year Closing Bulance
30 June 2024 3 June 2023 30 June 2024 St June 2023

Bl adialy et leam Corparatiun Mlother Clineem SHLTIR TR0 20 AN SR ED (T AD R 255 e
Padera Ol Company Limdled REFC Lnil 5A,208.077 215,008 {70, 35,608 (104,597,014
Mleghina Petroleurn Limniied B Linn I, B05 322 23 R35,0125 IRRATR TS 22,275,227
Enstern Refinery Limited BPC Ul i Bk A36ANA U615 2 W2 HeA
WL Bangladesh Limibed Investment Supplicr SMET08 450 3, L3205, 584 LA & 0,1 (4580
i brwern Fpels 1imibtes] Irwestmieni
Eastern Lubiwicants Blenders Linmited BPC Uit 4,535 3 2L759,751 (F2a324) |5E7 5415
Liguefied Peirobenim Cias Limited BFC Linil 230, AT 255,Mih, 317 el 14,255,074
Stwnclusd Axiatic Oil Connpuny Limied BFE L 14517165 137,285 175 2rg BT 13RS 237)

ml S04 100029, 195 N2 ETT NG ERD (62 195 655 | (SL.770.686.229),

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, ASSETS AND COMMITMENTS

A7 Contingent Liabilities:
There were no contingent Habd ines ason 30 June 2024,

A7.2 Contingent Asseis:

There were no contimgent asseisps on 30 June 2024,

37.3 Capital Expenditure Commitmenis:

Capital Expenditure Commitments
The capitu]l expenditure comminnent as on 30 June 2024 was Thk 15,854.23 lac & 30 June 2023 : Tk

3 50187 lac)
AR GUARANTEE

There was no guarnntes to any third party as on

A% CLAIMS

Cluirm againat the campany bt not ackoow] edeed as debse { Income Tax)

A0 June 2024,

@

30 June 20024

30 June 2023

Tukn Takn
1,585,423,000 A5, 1K7, 000

Al June 2024

A0 June 2023

Tukn Takn
IR7, 660,468 ART. 660,468

JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

The Board of Directors m therr mectmg held on O1.12.2023, recommended 1 50.00% final cash divide
{Tuka |f'r."r,l'i3.l1u,ﬂlhi.{!u i far tlie WOHr en ded 30 June 2024
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41.03 Financial Instraments- Accounting classifications apd fair yalues
The fol bowring table shows the carrying amounts of financial assers amd finascial liabilities, i does not ineluds fabr vilue informarion for financial assots and fnneial Vabilites non measned
ait farr value s the corryaing smount is o reasorable approgmtion of furvalue,
Currying amount
Fair value Fair value
Pirticiduis Note || Foir value ithroogh n_ _,_..-n “.””__Mw_,, nﬁ.—u.ﬁ“ﬂ_n Financial asseds Oiher Mnancial Total
Ref. profit or Joss i PERERSIVE || ot amortised cast Tiabilities
inceme deht incame- spuity
instrumeits istruments
|30 June 2024 Taka = Taku Taka Taka Taka Taka
Financial Assers measored af fair value .
Investments in gooled shares L | A543 451,345 4343451, 3440
Financlal Assets mof measared at fair valug =
liwestments in FOR 52 - 24,5501 000 24 K000, 000
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41040 Financial risk management

41.1

41.02

The Company management has overal] responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk. management framework. The Company's risk management policies are established 1o identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence 1o limits, Risk management policies, procedures and svslems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company's asctivities. This note presents information about the
Company's exposure to each of the sbove risks, the Company's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk and the Company's management of capital. The company has exposure at the
following arcas of risk,

a) Credit risk:
b) Ligquidily risk
¢} Market risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the rsk of a financial loss to the Company if a custommer or counterparty 1o a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposue to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis, In
monitoring credit risk, debtors are grouped according to their risk profile, 1.e. their legal status, financial
condition, ageing profile etc, Accounts receivable are related to sale of petroleum and agro-cheoncal
produced. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the stotement of finoncial positon. Credit soles as compared (o the total sales are msignificant.
Government institutions arcallowed o purehase on credit.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrymg amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum cxpesure to
credit nisk at the reporting date was:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Taka Taka
Accounts & Other Receivable 3,223,451 3488 2,298,542.061
Advance, Deposits & Pre-payments 14.765.678.43] 29.531.055.088
Cash and Cash Equivalents 35771, 845285 I1.963.324.747
53,760,975,104 63.792,921,896

m=en| JAMUNA OIL COMPANY LIMITED
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Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company's appreach to manage Hguidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will always have sufficient liguidity o meet its Habilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurting unacceptable losses or risking domage 1o the Company's reputation. Typically,
the Company ensurcs that it has sufficien| cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses,
including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of
payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liguidity/fund to make the expected
payment within due date,

The following are the contractual or legal maturities of financial labilities :

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Taka Takn
Craditors & Accruals 76,846 367,224 K3,130,028 673
Creditors For Other Finance 549,401 102 ARA (N AR |
Ineome Tax Payable 1115 853 450 877446, 758
Unclamed Dividend T.592 648 7.714.346
TH.519,244,424 84,501,094,258

Muarket risk

Market risk 15 the risk that any change in market prices, such as toreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Company's mcome or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management i3 to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,

Exposure to currency risk

There was no exposure to foreign currency risk on the reporting date,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk s the risk that arises due o changes in interest rates on borrowings, However the company
do not have any outstanding bank borrowings on the reporting date thus they are not exposed to any interest
rile rsk,

Significant Deviation in Earning per Share (EPS):

Earnings per share has been significantly increased mainly due to increase in FDR Interest income and SND
interest incorme during the year 2023-24 comparing with previous year.

Significant Deviation in Net Operating Cash Flow per Share (NOCFPS):

Met Operating Cash Flows per Share (NOCFPS) has been decereased mainly due to deerease of nel earnings
and inerease of payments to ereditors and suppliers compared to the previous financial year,

GENERAL

Figures appearing in these accounts have been rounded off to the nearest taka.
Previous yvear's phrases & amounts have been re=arpanged. wherever considered necessary, to conform to the
presentation for the vear under review,
The annéxed notes from 01 to 44 are an integral part ofthese financial statements,
These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
and were approved by the Board of Directors en (1. 122024
and were signed off its behal by

Cmg:u}' Secretary Managing Director Directior

Signed m terms ol our separate report of even dote annexed
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